Readfield Board of Assessors
March 14, 2022, Meeting Agenda
Meeting starts: 6:00 PM
Meeting ends; 6:30 PM

Tax Abatements
Supplemental Tax Assessments
Other Business

Adjournment
Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022, Meeting Agenda
Select Board Meeting starts: 6:30 PM
Select Board Meeting ends (unless extended) at 8:30 PM
Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting Items - 5 min.
22-104 - Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of February 15, 2022,
22-105 - Warrants: #36-37
Communications - 25 min.
Select Board communications. - 5 min.
Town Staff Reports - 10 min.
e Treasurer’s Report - February 2022
¢ Town manager’s Report
Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments - 5 min,
¢ Board and Committee Minutes (sce reverse for full listing)
Public Communication - Members of the public may address the Select Board - 5 min.
Appointments, Reappointments, & Resignations - § min
22-106 - Consider the appointment of Elaine Katz to the Age Friendly Committee
22-107 - Consider the appeintment of Elaine Katz to the Comprehensive Plan Committee (as the
representative of the Age Friendly Committee)
22-108 - Consider the appointment of Ed Sims to the Age Friendly Committee
22-109 - Consider the re-appointment of Jerry Bley to the Conservation Commission
Old Business -55 min.
22-022 - Consider COVID-19 protocols and meeting policy - 5 min.
22-101 - Consider pending real estate foreclosures - 5 min.
22-062 - Discuss the Fairgrounds Multi-use Enhancement Project status and next steps - 10 min.
21-068 - Hear an update and consider next steps for broadband internet - 10 min.
22-103 - Consider a revised Town Manager Contract - 5 min.
22-089 - Discuss the Fiscal Year 2023 Budget - 20 min.
New Business - 25 min.
22-110 - Consider a draft Town Meeting Warrant - 25 min.
Other Business, Upcoming Meetings, and Future Agenda Items - 5 min.
Adjournment

This meeting will be held in-person af the Town Office
Participate via Zoom at: hitps://us02web.zoom.us/(/88 149608367 or
Call-in at +1 (929) 436-2866 and enter meeting ID: 881 4960 8367 and passcode: 781405




Board and Committee Minutes:

Appeals Board minutes of January 13 and February 3, 2022

Broadband Internet Committee minutes of January 26 and February 16 &21, 2022
Budget Committee minutes of February 3, 2022

Cemetery Committee minutes of December 20, 2021

Comprehensive Plan Committee minutes of December 15, 2021

Conservation Commission minutes of December 14, 2021, and January 11 & February 8, 2022
Library Board minutes of February 2, 2022

Recreation Board minutes of November 16 & December 21, 2021 and January 6, 2022
Trails Committee minutes of October 27 and December 7, 2021

Solid Waste and Recycling Committee minutes of January 12, 2022




REGULAR MEETING

¢ VIINUTES
¢ \WARRANTS




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
Readfield Select Board Item # 22-104

Regular Meeting Minutes — Tuesday, February 15, 2022 — Unapproved

Select Board Members Present: Carol Doorenbos, Ralph Eno, Sean Keegan, Dennis Price and Kathryn
Woodsum
Others Attending: William Starrett (Channel 7), Sarah Miller (Channel 7), Eric Dyer (Town Manager),
Anjelica Pittman (Board Secretary), Hannah Flannery

Executive Session (6:00 pm):

Dennis called the Select Board meeting to order at 6:35 pm followed by the Pledge of Allegiance

Regular Meeting Items:

o 22-099

22-098 - Minutes: Select Board Meeting minutes of January 31, 2022

‘;.

!

\}f.

>

Motion made by Dennis to approve the Select Board meeting minutes of January 31, 2022 as
presented, second by Kathryn. Vote 5-0 in favor.

— Warrants: #33-35 (FY22)

Carol reviewed Warrants #33-35

Motion made by Kathryn to approve warrants #34 & 35 in the amount of $75,145, second by
Dennis. Vote 5-0 in favor.

Motion made by Kathryn to approve warrants #33 in the amount of $32,000.50, second by
Dennis. Vote 5-0 in favor.

Communications (30 min)

Select Board Communications (5 min)

Kathryn: Presented a Brown Tail Moth Brochure from Waterville with information regarding mitigation
and minimization of BTM, suggested we make the brochure available for Readfield residents as well.
Sean: Reported a great winter fun day had by all who attended. Maranacook Ice Fishing Derby coming
up March 5, 2022, tickets are available to purchase, ticket holders not required to fish.

Ralph: Pleased with pothole work in town that was completed by maintenance

Kathryn: mentioned a great job with snow removal on sidewalks from last snow storm

Dennis: Reminded the public that sand buckets are available to those in need

Town Staff Reports (10 min)

>

Treasurers Report — February 2022

Finances in balance, working on accounts for John Hancock, representative scheduled to visit the
Town Office February 17, 2022 and the budget is underway and the full draft is available.

Town Manager’s Report

Email is up and running. Many town vacancies filled, welcome Stephen Kingston,
Transportation and Maintenance and Sarah Miller, AV Assistant. Town office closed for
President’s Day Monday February 21, 2022, also Eric will be out February 24" and 25" 2022.
Comprehensive plan has been pushed out 7 months from November 2022 to June 2023. Ralph
suggested comprehensive plan be sent out as a mailed survey. CMP is working on the
groundwork for the 5 new streetlights. Fire department sprinkler system on hold until there is
more information regarding costs and specific system requirements. Road posting signs going up
a couple weeks earlier than usual due to weather. Town cleaning services proving successful.
Transfer station staffing stabilized, new employees being trained and the electronic payment

Page 1 of 3 — unapproved



Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Tuesday, February 15, 2022 — Unapproved

system is installed and training for that will be done by the end of February. Watershed
management discussion in the beginning phases, however Winthrop not interested in interlocal
approach. Katherine suggested a 15-20 minute slot be added into future meetings to discuss
ongoing projects.

¢ Board, Committees, Commissions & Departments (10 min)

» Fairgrounds Recreation Improvements Update
Hannah Flannery attended to provide an update, stated wants & needs completed by all 3
committees, next step is a group review of original plan and revision, seeking public input once
working group in agreeance, permits are in work, everyone is getting prepared and a placeholder
is in the budget if approved by June.
Budget Committee Minutes of January 27, 2022
Planning Board minutes of September 28 and November 3, 2021
Library Board minutes of January 5, 2022
Broadband Internet Committee of November 10, 2021

Y VY

A

¢ Public Communications - Members of the public may address the Select Board (5 min)
» none

Appointments, Reappointments & Resiognations:

e 22-100 — Consider the appointment of Megan Lachapelle to the Trails Committee
» Motion made by Katherine to appoint Megan Lachapelle to the Trails Committee, Ralph
seconded, 5-0 vote in favor.

Old Business — 30 min

e 21-068 — Consider next steps for investigating broadband internet — 10 min
» Wayne, Mt. Vernon and Readfield have cable, may work together to provide broadband,
committee awaiting next scheduled meeting on February 16, 2022 for an update with more

information.

o 22-089 — Discuss Fiscal year 2023 Budget — 20 min
» Budget is complex in part due to the pandemic. Capital and labor costs are raising, much

investment going into the community, property values are increasing quickly. The budget is
considering large projects such as the new Ballfield at the Fairgrounds, a new firetruck and
broadband. School budget increased 6-10% but because of the last budget process, there is a
reserve account for RSU that is being used to offset increases in the school budget. Mil rate
increase could help offset capital costs. Budget workshop is March 3, 2022; information will be
given as it becomes available.

New Business — 15 min

e 22-101 - Consider pending real estate foreclosures — 5 min
» Had 8, now 7 possible foreclosures, which are 3 years past due, however, this is the smallest
number of foreclosures in 6 years, and we are seeing an increase in monthly payments. Two

Page 2 of 3 — unapproved



Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Tuesday, February 15, 2022 — Unapproved

weeks remain to reach out to homeowners and rectify their accounts, once foreclosed owners
will begin 30 day redemption period.

e 22-102 - Consider the financial warrant policy - 5 min
Kathryn metioned to extend meeting by 5 minutes to handle regular business and finish executive
session, and invite Eric to attend, seconded by Sean, 5-0 vote.

» Same day warrants are difficult due to available time for review, Eric proposed an entire
overhaul/review of the disbursement and municipal warrants to allow extra time for board
members to sign for warrants between Monday and Wednesday and report thereafter, the
warrants would be publically available at the Town Hall. Kathryn motioned in favor of Eric
reviewing and revising the warrant policy by July 2022, Carol seconded, 5-0 vote.

e 22-103 — Consider a revised Town Manager Contract — 5 min
» Done in Executive Session

e Other Business, Upcoming meetings, and Future Agenda Items — 5 mins

g

> none

Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:03pm: Vote: Unanimous

Minutes submitted by Anjelica Pittman, Board Secretary

Page 3 of 3 — unapproved



Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022

item # 22-105
Feb 28, 2022 Warrant Summay
Warrant {Journal Warrant Signatures [Approval
#: #: Amount Type: SB Reviewer: [Required: |Date:
36 380 $ 366,999.60 |Warrant Three
A 380 S 5,400.84 [State Fees |C. Doorenbos|One 2/18/2022
B 380 S  4,548.19 (State Fees |R. Eno One 2/24/2022
37 389 $ 21,005.20 [Payroll One
SUM $ 388,004.80
Indicates public review is required following prior approval
Indicates public review and approval are both required




Warrant # 36 & 37

$388,004.80

Dates: 2/17/2022

To the Treasurer of Readfield:

This is to certify that there is due and chargeable to the accounts listed below the sums
indicated, and you are directed to pay the amounts listed to the payees named herein,

Payee Account Amount Check #'s
EMPLOYEES Payroll $21,005.20 70955-70967
170955-170569
VARIOUS VENDORS Accounts
Payable $366,999.60 70919-70954
Total $388,004.80

Dennis Price

arol Doorenbos

Ralph Eno

Sean Keegan

Kathryn Woodsum




Readfield A / P Check Register 02/28/2022

12:21 PM Bank: Androscoggin Bank Page 1
Type Check Amount Date Wrnt  Payee

. P 999 50.16 03/03/22 36 0031 Centraj Maine Power Co
P 70918 5,400.84 02/17/22 36 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
P 70919 4,548.19 02724422 36 0086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH)
R 70920 132.10 03/03/22 36 0022 Audette's Hardware
v 70921 0.00 03/03722 35 0024 Baker & Taylor, Inc
R 70922 685.02 03/03/22 36 0024 Baker & Taylor, Inc
R 70923 357.20 03/03/22 36 0603 C.N. Brown Company
R 70924 166.35 03/03/22 36 0072 Consolidated Communications
R 70925 48,454.27 03/03/22 36 0453 Cushing Construction, LLC
R 70926 29.98 03/03/22 36 0810 Eric Dyer
R 70927 878.93 03/03/22 36 0704 Fabtan Gil
R 70928 271.70 03703722 36 0484 Gettysburg Flag Works, Inc
R 70929 366.36 03/03/22 36 0206 Grainger
R 70830 24.00 03/03/22 36 0791 Group Dynamic Inc
R 70931 27149 03/03/22 36 0408 Jordan Equipment Co.
R 70932 207.69 03/03/22 36 0152 Lowe's
R 70933 6.00 03/03/22 36 0657 Maine Information Network
R 70934 105,46 03703722 36 0066 Maine Municipal Association
R 70935 8,268.00 03/03/22 36 0065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP, HEALTH
R 70936 3,000.00  03/03/22 36 0424 Main-Land Dev. Consultants, Inc
R 70937 1B.36 03/03/22 36 0229 Melissa A Small
R 70938 1,697.54 03/03/22 36 0621 New England Salt Company, LLC
R 70939 21.00 03/03/22 36 0138 On Scene Tags
R 70940 348.68 03/03/22 36 0823 QTELCO
R 700941 575.85 03/03/22 36 0806 Overhead Door Company of Portiand
R 70942 7.18 03/03/22 36 0075 PARIS FARMERS UNION
R 70943 21.10 03/03/22 36 0320 Patricia Clark
R 70944 31.63 03/03/22 36 0858 PETTY CASH
R 70945 300.00 03/03/22 36 0069 Regional School Unit#38
R 70946 288,602.91 03/03/22 36 0069 Regional School Unit#38
R 70947 20,00 03/03/22 36 0561 Shredding on Site
R 70948 13.17 03/03/22 36 0696 Spectrum
R 70949 44427 03/03/22 36 0313 Toshiba Financial Services
R 70950 104.96 03/03/22 36 0495 United AG & Turf NE
R 70951 871.00 03/03/22 36 0664 US BANK CORPORATE TRUST BOSTON
R 70952 45.55 03/03/22 36 0765 W.B. Mason Co., Inc
R 70953 634.19 03/03722 36 0094 WHITE SIGN
R 70954 18.47 03/03/22 36 0273 WINTHROP AUTO SUPPLY

Total 366,999.60
Count
Checks 37

Voids 1




Readfield
12:22 PM

Warrant Recap 02/28/2022
Page 1
Warrant 36

Amount Account-------=--

00022 Audette's Hardware

00022 Audette's Hardware

00022 Audette's Hardware

00022 Audette's Hardware

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00024 Baker & Taylor, Inc

00603 C.N. Brown Company
00031 Central Maine Power Co
00072 Consolidated Communications
00072 Consolidated Communications
00072 Consolidated Communications
00453 Cushing Construction, LLC
00453 Cushing Construction, LLC
00810 Eric Dyer

00704 Fabian Ol

00484 Gettysburg Flag Werks, Inc
00206 Grainger

00206 Grainger

00206 Grainger

00791 Group Dynamic Inc

00791 Group Dynamic Inc

00408 Jordan Equipment Ca.
00152 Lowe's

00152 Lowe's

00657 Maine Information Nebwork
00066 Maine Municipal Association

00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP, HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00065 MAINE MUNICIPAL EMP. HEALTH
00424 Main-Land Dev. Consultants, Inc

00229 Melissa A Small

00621 New England Salt Company, LLC

00138 On Scene Tags
00823 OTELCO

19.99 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - EQUIP REPLAC / TOOLS
31.98 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - EQUIP REPLAC / TOOLS
35.14 Maintenance [/ Bldg Maint - BUILDING O&M / MAINTENANCE
44.99 SOLID WASTE / BACKHOE - EQUIP O,R &M / Backhoe

128.25 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL

20.39 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV [ LIBRARY COLL
20.39 COMM SERVICE { Litwary - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
29.06 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
43.92 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
212.33 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
53.11 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
102.75 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
54.37 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
20.39 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
357.20 GENERAL GOVT / Heating Ast - UTILITIES / HEATING
50.16 PROTECTION / Tower Sites - UTILITIES / ELECTRIC
52.69 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
53.84 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
59.82 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
32,000.50 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC
16,453.77 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC
29.98 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
878.93 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - UTILITIES / HEATING
271,70 CEMETERIES / CEMETERIES - COMMUNITY SV / Vet Memorial
84.98 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - EQUIP O,R &M / PPG
92.54 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING Q&M / SUPPLIES
188.84 Maintenance / Gen Maint - EQUIP O,R &M/ PPG
16.00 GENERAL GOVT { Insurance - INSURANCE / HRA
8.00 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - INSURANCE / HRA
271.49 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / Bobcat Skid
199.20 Rds & Drain / Road Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / PATCHING
8.49 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / EQUIP MAINT
6.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / MISC.

10546 GENERAL GOVT / Insurance - INSURANCE / UNEMPLOYMENT
2,384.72 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - INSURANCE / HEALTH INS
5,608.13 GENERAL GOVT / Insurance - INSURANCE / HEALTH INS

132.31 GENERAL FUND / HEALTH INSUR

123,76 GENERAL FUND / IPP

19.08 GEMERAL FUND / VSP Vision

3,000.00 CAPITAL IMPR / Sidewatks - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC
18.36  COMM SERVICE / Library - ADMIN / MISC.

1,697.54 Rds & Drain { Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / Erosion/Salt
21.00 PROTECTION / FIRE DEPART - EQUIP O,R &M / PPG
21.03 COMM SERVICE / Library - UTILITIES f TELEPHONE




Readfield Warrant Recap 02/28/2022
12:22 PM Page 2
Warrant 36
Vendor------- Amount Account----------
00823 OTELCO 327.65 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - UTILITIES / TELEPHONE
00806 Overhead Door Company of Portland 575.85 Maintenance / Bldg Maint - BUILDING Q&M / MAINTENANCE
(0075 PARIS FARMERS UNICN 7.18 50LID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - EQUIP REPLAC / TOOLS
00320 Patricia Clark 21.10 COMM SERVICE / Library - COMMUNITY SV / LIBRARY COLL
00858 PETTY CASH 26,64 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / POSTAGE
00858 PETTY CASH 4.99 SOLID WASTE / TRANSFER STA - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
00069 Regional School Unit#38 288,602.91 EDUCATION / RSU#38 - ASSESSMENTS / RSU#38 PYMT
00069 Regional School Unit#38 300.00 COMM SERVICE / Library - EQUIP REPLAC / CAPITAL EQP
00086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH) 5,400.84 GENERAL FUND / Motor Veh Fe
00086 SECRETARY OF STATE (MOTOR VEH) 4,548.19 GENERAL FUND { Motor Veh Fe
00561 Shredding on Site 20.00 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
00696 Spectrum 13.17 COMM SERVICE [ Readfield TV - UTILITIES / ELEC COMM
00313 Toshiba Financial Services 444.27 GENERAL GOVT / Office Equip - EQUIP O,R &M / OFFICE LEASE
00495 United AG & Turf NE 104.96 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP O,R &M / ID Mower
00664 US BANK CORPORATE TRUST BOSTON 871.00 DEBT SERVICE / Fire Truck - FINANCIAL / BOND INT
00765 W.B. Mason Co., Inc 31.76 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
00765 W.B. Mason Co., Inc 13.79 GENERAL GOVT / Admin - ADMIN / OFFICE SUP
00094 WHITE SIGN 634.19 Rds & Drain / Road Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / SIGNS/SUPPLY
00273 WINTHROP AUTO SUPPLY 1847 Maintenance / Veh/Eq Maint - EQUIP Q,R &M / Dump Truck
Prepaid Total-- 9,999.19
Current Total-- 357,000.41
Warrant Total-- 366,999.60




COMMUNICATIONS

e SELECT BOARD
® STAFF REPORTS
¢BOARDS & COMMITTEES
e PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS




Appeals Board Organization Meeting
January 13, 2022

Members present: Peter Bickerman {Chair), William Gagne Holmes (Vice Chair), Holly Rahmlow (Secretary), John
Blouin, Clif Buuck, Henry Whittemore and Francis Zambella

Also in attendance: Chip Stephens (CEO), Town Manager Eric Dyer, Leah Hayes for SSMH, Paula Clark (Planning
Board Chair), Jack Comart (Planning Board Vice Chair)

Peter called the meeting to order at 7:07 via Zoom.

The first order of business was the election of officers. Peter said he has been chair for 10 years and would
prefer to step back. Henry thanked Peter for his able service and suggested it would be best to have an attorney
at the helm. Holly suggested that Will, also an attorney who has served as vice chair, and Peter switch roles, and
both members were agreeable to that solution.

John nominated Will to be chair; Clif seconded. Unanimous vote.
Will nominated Peter to be vice chair: Jehn seconded. Unanimous vote.

Holly said she was willing to continue as secretary. Henry nominated her to be secretary; Peter seconded.
Unanimous vote. Members of the board thanked Holly for her continuing good work as secretary.

The second order of business was to discuss and approve the minutes from the Morash hearing last October. Clif
had a couple of corrections. Henry moved to approve the minutes as amended; Clif seconded. All voted in favor
except for John, who was absent from that hearing and thus abstained.

The third order of business was discussion in preparation for the hearing on the Safe Space Meeting House
appeal scheduled for Thursday, January 27, 2022. This discussion was limited to procedures about the coming
appeal; there was no debate ahout the substance of the appeal itself.

Peter explained that the upcoming hearing will be limited to issues discussed and decided by the Planning
Board, following the Board's appellate standard of review, as set forth in Section 6(B) of the Board of Appeals
Ordinance. This means that it will be strictly an appellate proceeding and no new information will be considered.

The board discussed the upcoming hearing at length and what criteria we will consider based on the Planning
Board's decision. We will not consider the variance request in SSMH'’s appeal because the board has no power
to grant variances for proposed changes in uses of property.

Clif asked about the applicant’s failure to fill in “No. 7: What specific section(s) of the Ordinance applies to the
relief you are seeking?” Peter said we could go back to the appellants for more details. Whether or not we
should return the application to them for more detail was considered. Will noted that the appellant was given




two opportunities to clarify and did not. Peter said he was reluctant to hold up the hearing further. Applicant
Leah Hayes said she would provide such a statement in writing at least seven days before the hearing.

Henry asked if we needed to respond to the email from Leah asking board members who made a public
statement about their feelings on the Mill Stream project to recuse themselves. Peter said it’s up to the
applicant to object to anyone they feel has a conflict of interest. If they do, that request will be dealt with at the
hearing. Such a statement should be submitted in writing at least a week before the hearing. Leah said she
would do that.

Will noted that this kind of appeal is not necessarily difficult or complicated, but is straightforward, as the board
is bound by the limit of deciding whether what the Planning Board decided fits the applicable ordinance and
whether it was decided correctly. We will not consider any peripheral issues, such as whether or not we think
the project is a good one for the town. No de novo (new} information will be considered.

Peter said the hearing will be hybrid, and anyone who attends in person must be masked regardless of
vaccination status. Zoom attendance is permitted.

Holly asked if she will be taking the minutes. Eric said he would arrange for a town employee to do that so Holly
can focus on the issues.

Clif moved to adjourn; John seconded. Meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




Board of Appeals
Public Hearing
Meeting Minutes of February 3, 2022
(Meeting held in person at Readfield Town Hall & via ZOOM)

Board of Appeals Members: William (Will) Gagne-Holmes (Chair), Peter Bickerman (Vice
Chair), Clif Buuck, Holly Rahmlow, John Blouin, Fran Zambella, Henry Whittemore

Others Attending: Eric Dyer (Town Manager), Chip Stephens (CEQ), Kristin Parks (Town
Clerk), Kristin Collins (Planning Board Attorney), Matt Nazar, Bob Zeurker, Greg Durgin,
Jackie Drouin, Milton Wright, Robert Bittar, Leah Hayes, William Buck, Roland Cote, Phyllis
Cote, Jack Comart, Paula Clark, Karen Bickerman, Karen ?

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm by Will. Tonight’s meeting to consist of approval of January
13, 2022 meeting minutes and holding a public hearing with respect to the Administrative
Appeal of Safe Space Meeting House (SSMH) from the November 3, 2021 Decision of the
Planning Board denying the SSMH land use application concerning 26 Mill Stream Road.

Motion made by Henry to approve the minutes of January 13, 2022 as presented, second by CIif.
Vote unanimous

Will went over the order of the hearing and explained that because the Board of Appeals was
acting in an appellate capacity those speaking were limited to argument based on the law or the
evidence that was considered by the Planning Board. No new evidence could be presented at the
appeal hearing,

Robert Bittar stated he was speaking on behalf of Leah Hayes of SSMH (connection with
Bittar/Hayes was in and out so hard to understand all that was spoken at times). He feels there
are a lot of areas up for discussion and wants to consolidate them for discussion. His biggest
issue is with the Resource Protection Act; stated that it was already approved when the Town’s
Dam Project was done years ago and says there are documents to back this up. Robert also stated
that the parking has been approved; again stated there are documents to back this up, but if he
has to he will eliminate parking spaces if cutting down trees is an issue.

Leah Hayes of SSMH stated that there is a 10 page report from the Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP) that approves some use of the property but stated that it’s not included in the
hearing record. Will Gagne-Holmes stated that the Appeals Board is unable to accept this
document if not included in submitted documents. Peter Bickerman stated that they do have the
easement agreement in the record.

Mr. Bittar next spoke disputing the need for a sidewalk adjacent to Mill Stream Road. Concerns
on the way information was received regarding the sidewalk. He stated he received a statement

1|Page- Board of Appeals - February 03, 2022




regarding 26 Mill Stream Road from Fire Chief Lee Mank that said the sidewalk was not an
issue and then said that Lee Mank later submitted a revision that nullified the decision. Peter
Bickerman stated that the December 04, 2021 letter from Lee Mank was included in the packet
but not the revision that was mentioned.

Robert Bittar responded to issues of concern of the parking lot and stormwater runoff, wetland
protection criteria and water quality management. He now proposes 35 parking spaces instead of
65 in his statement. He argued that the Readfield Union Meeting House has spaces for 12 cars
with no issues.

Next Robert Bittar spoke regarding the proposed activities and the Land Use Ordinance (LUQ)
issues. He stated that there is a document in the record from Town Manager Dyer that identified
the many uses that were possible but never discussed the impossible. Robert feels Town
Manager Dyer is a representative/agent for the Planning Board and has delayed the process
(abuse of process) in various ways. Board Chair Gagne Holmes stated that this argument was not
relevant to the issues under consideration in this appeal.

Will Gagne-Holmes asked if anyone on the Board of Appeals feels they should be recused from
tonight’s discussion/progress — Unanimous response of no. SSMH party feels Clif Buuck should
recuse himself as he was the CEO at one point and feels that it is unfair; an argument was made
when filing the appeal. Peter Bickerman sees no conflict of interest between Clif's previous role
as Interim CEO and his ability to fulfill his current role on the Board of Appeals. Clif doesn’t
know the applicants; Leah Hayes involvement with 26 Mill Stream Road. Clif stated there was a
stop work order prior to 2010. As the Interim CEO from December 2020 to May 2021 he
reviewed most recent SSMH application for completeness with a copy of his findings placed in
the Planning Board records as an FYI. Clif doesn’t feel he is partial/personal in this process.
Henry Whittemore sees no conflict.

Motion made by Will Gagne-Holmes that the Board of Appeals vote down any recusal of Clif
Buuck, second by Fran Zambella. Vote: Unanimous, abstained by Clif Buuck.

No one else in attendance see’s any other recusals to be mentioned.

No more arguments/comments from Robert Bittar and Leah Hayes of SSMH.

No abutters or public arguments/comments.

Next: Questions for Planning Board on their views of the laws. Paula Clark (Planning Board

Chair), Jack Comart (Planning Board Vice-Chair) and Kristin Collins (Planning Board Attorney)
all present at meeting.

2|Page- Board of Appeals — February 03, 2022




In response to questions from Peter Bickerman, Planning Board Chair Paula Clark confirmed
that 26 Mill Stream Road contains a legal but non-conforming structure which has been
approved for use as a single-family dwelling. A portion of the structure is in the Resource
Protection Zone near the stream and for setback reasons, makes it non-conforming. A
Community Center/Club is not a permitted use in the Resource Protection Zone per the LUO. In
reference to Fact & Findings document; Paged, B.1; reviewed by Peter.

Paula Clark stated that the proposed change of use would have a greater impact and that each site
review criterion must be met for Planning Board approval. She stated that there are three (3)
broad categories for Planning Board Types of Standard; 1) Change of use of non-confirming
structure, 2) set of site review criteria and 3) standards of review and performance.

Robert Bittar asked Paula to clarify; spoke about the non-conforming barn from years ago and
that it was destroyed as it was too close to the stream. He feels that the house in not in any way
invasive to the Resource Protections Area.

Leah Hayes argued how the space was approved for the town’s use of a park but not approved
for SSMH for such use.

Oral argument closed at 7:20 pm by William Gagne-Holmes. No public comment input.

Board of Appeals Deliberations:

e #4: Section V(C)(4); Financial Burden on Town: Clif spoke that the Planning Board
stated the road/sidewalk would be a financial burden on the Town; they didn’t receive
any evidence of cost, any input from the Road Commissioner or Committee, or offer the
applicant an option to pay. In conclusion he feels it was assumed by the Planning Board
to be a financial burden without providing further evidence. Peter stated that the
sidewalk/pad information from Fire Chief lacked substantial evidence in the record to get
to this conclusion. Holly feels that the lack of specifically from SSMH; left things
hanging and not enough detail in planning. Henry spoke that the email exchange with the
Fire Chief made it very clear and provides evidence on emergency evacuation concerns
down the road during certain times of the year; make it hard for emergency
personal/vehicles to pass safely. William Gagne-Holmes stated that there was a lot of
email exchange from the Fire Chief and abutters/neighbors on the increase of foot/vehicle
traffic and being a big concern. Clif Buuck still feels it doesn’t prove financial burden to
the town although a reasonable person could probably reach that conclusion. Peter
Bickerman feels that the town traffic and life/fire issues show substantial evidence.

e #3: Section V(C)(2): Site Plan Review Criteria: Henry Whittemore feels there are issues
of vagueness and nuance. C.5 & C.6 he feels the applicant may have been able to fill in
more of the required information.

3|Page- Board of Appeals - February 03, 2022




#11: Section V(C)(11): Life and Fire Safety: Clif Buuck spoke that it “may be imposed”
— no discussion if it would be.

Peter Bickerman spoke that the plan as it exists is non-conforming and if changed would
make it more non-conforming.

#1: V(A): Requested Use: Consensus of the Board in conclusion that SSMH is unable to
use house as a community center as it is prohibited in the Rural Residential District.
Henry Whittemore and William Gagne-Holmes spoke on item A.5 and town mailers:
speculative and evidence persuasive.

#12: A(D)(15): Article 7 Applicable Criteria: Henry Whittemore spoke on issues of
lighting and safety concerns mentioned in this section and how they were not addressed.
#6: V(C)(7): Wetlands: Clif Buuck spoke that the applicant didn’t provide documents
from Cobbossee Watershed District or DEP Plans for storm water and that the Planning
Board didn’t ask for a Phosphorous Report from the applicant as they could have to better
prove the case.

William Gagne-Holmes asked the Appeals Board, if any member felt that the Planning Boards
decision was arbitrary, capricious or an abuse of discretions. Consensus of the Board was no.

Appeals Boards to vote on the 14 Findings of the Planning Board:

Four questions to be asked/to be voted on:
e s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue?
* Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue?
e Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion?

¢ Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue?

Deliberations closed at 7:51 pm by William Gagne-Holmes.

Voting on the 14 Findings of the Planning Board:

Holly Rahmlow responses asked by William Gagne Holmes:

Section V(A):

o [s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

¢ Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

e Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

* Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

4|ﬁage— Board of .Appeals - February 03, 2022




2. Section V(B):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

3. Section V(C)?2):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

4. Section V(C)(4):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

5. Section V(C)(5):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

6. Section V(C)(7):

SIPége— Boar_t-lnéf.Appe'aI'sr - Febr'u'ary“(')'a‘“,- 2022

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No




Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No
Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

7. Section V(C)(11):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

8. Section V(C)(13):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

9. Section V(C)(15):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

10. Section V(C)(17):

[s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No

Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

11. Section (V)(C)(20):

Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes

Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No

6]Parge- Board ofm;ﬂ;”p“peals - Feb”ruér'y 03,2022




e Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No
¢ Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes
12. Section (V)(D)(15):
¢ [s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes
* Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No
¢ Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No
* Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes
13. Section V(D)(17):
» Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s decision
on this particular issue? Yes
* Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No
* Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or an
abuse of discretion? No
¢ Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes
14. Section V(D)(19):
¢ [s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes
¢ Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No
®  Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No
¢ Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? Yes

I'ran Zambella, William Gagne-Holmes, John Blouin and Henry Whittemore vote exactly the
same as Holly Rahmlow.

Clif Buuck votes the same as Holly Rahmlow except for #7 (vote below):
Section V(C)(11):

¢ [s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? No

¢ Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? Error of Process

¢ Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? A bit arbitrary, not enough factual support/proof.

7|Pag.e— Boardof Appea.lsm—”F“ebruary 073,7”20'2'2




* Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? The particular
issue was not correctly decided.

Peter Bickerman votes the same as Holly Rahmlow except for #4 & #13 (votes below):
Section V(C)(4):
* [s there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? No, substantial evidence problem.
¢ Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? No
¢ Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? No
* Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? The particular
issue was not correctly decided.
Section (VY(D)(15):
» Is there substantial evidence in the record supporting the Planning Board’s
decision on this particular issue? Yes
¢ Do you think the Planning Board made an error of law in its decision on this
particular issue? Yes, error in law.
¢ Was the Planning Boards decision on this particular issue arbitrary, capricious or
an abuse of discretion? Yes
¢ Did the Planning Board correctly decide on the particular issue? The particular
issue was not correctly decided.

William Gagne-Holmes asked each Appeals Member for their overall decision from the Planning
Board findings Decision on page 7: “Based on the above findings of face and conclusions of law,
the Planning Board finds that the relevant approval standards have not each been satisfied, and
herby denies the application by motion and vote 7 to 0.

Motion made by John Blouin that each member votes on SSMH’s appeal from the Planning
Boards decision, second by William Gagne-Holmes. Discussion: Each member cither approving
or denying SSMH appeal. Vote: Approve: 0. Deny: 7 (All Appeals Board members); SSMH
appeal denied by unanimous vote,

Next steps: William Gagne-Holmes to draft a written decision and Appeals Board to meet on
February 17, 2022 for formal vote on the written decision and public notice to be posted.

Motion made by John Blouin that the Board of Appeals will meet as soon as possible to consider

to adopt a written decision which the chair will be authorized to sign, second by Fran Zambella.
Vote unanimous.

8-|Page: Board of A“pbealé V-'Fﬂe'bruary 03, 2022




Peter Bickerman mentioned that under state law if anyone has grounds and standing to appeal
they must do so to Superior Court within forty-five (45) days from tonight’s meeting regardless
of when the written decision is issued.

Motion made by Clif Buuck to adjourn the meeting at 8:12 pm, second by Holly. Vote:
Unanimous.

Minutes submitted by Kristin Parks, Town Clerk.

Minutes approved 02/17/2022

VQVIPage—.B”o”ard of Appééls - Febfu“é'r-y 03, 2022




TOWN OF READFIELD
BUDGET COMMITTEE

Meeting of February 3, 2022
Minutes

The Budget Committee of the Town of Readfield held a regularly scheduled meeting on
February 3, 2022. The meeting was conducted as a hybrid session with some participants
attending in person at Gile Hall, and others participating via Zoom. Committee members
attending included: Andrews Tolman, Chairperson; Rebecca Lambert; Ed Sims; Martin Hanish;
and Ellen Schneiter. Eric Dyer, Town Manager, and Teresa Shaw, Readfield’s Finance Director,
were also in attendance. Several members of the public were also present: Bruce Hunter, Matt
Lajoie, Jackie Druin, Hannah Flannery and Greg Durgin.

Tolman called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm ET. The first order of business was consideration
of the draft minutes for the group’s previous meeting.

Motion to approve draft minutes as presented offered by Sims; second provided by Tolman.
There being no objections, the minutes as presented are adopted as final.

Ms. Flannery was then invited to present an overview of the proposed FY23 budget for the
Recreation department, 30-10. She reported that the Recreation Committee recommends
keeping the budget for the department largely the same as it has been in years past, adding
that the pandemic has dampened the community’s use of recreational opportunities over the
past two years. The beach facilities are not self-supporting. The personnel budget proposed for
the coming year reflects a decline in wages and associated FICA expense of about 16%. This is
due to a reduction in staffing from 3 FTEs to 2 FTEs, reflecting anticipated lower volume of use
of the facilities.

The budget for this department’s utilities expense has been adjusted to align more closely with
actual experience. Although this generates an increase of more than 42%, the dollar value of
the increase is only $150. Dyer noted that we are expecting an increase in the cost of electricity
due to rate hikes, and also due to the fact that the outbuilding at the beach is now electrified.

The budget for fuel and maintenance in the recreation department reflect downward
adjustments totaling $250, to align the budget more closely to actual experience.

Building Operations and Maintenance for the department, however, is proposed to increase in
the coming fiscal year. This increase is related to the need for building maintenance including
repairs to the roofs for the picnic shelters {originally scheduled for the current year but not
accomplished) and needed repairs to the outbuilding (addressing rot and installing new doors).




The budget includes $4k to address building repairs to “hold things together” per Dyer, until the
building can be replaced in 1-2 years.

Department 30-20: Recreation, Parks and Activities — The proposed budget for this department
includes adjustments to better align the budget with historical experience. Dyer cautioned,
however, that many of these figures remain estimates.

30-55, Swim Instruction has a FY23 budget proposed at a level 30% higher than the current
year, $1500. The instruction expense is minimum wage labor; that labor force has been hit hard
by the pandemic. Dyer noted that it is likely that overall, swim instruction will run at a loss in
the coming fiscal year, as fees for classes will not bring in revenue sufficient to cover expenses.

30-60, Other Events, includes activities like the annual ice fishing derby, winter fun day, as well
as movie-permit fees for movie nights. This is proposed at a $300 budget, which is 150% higher
than the current year line item.

70-40, O/M Grounds, Recreation, Parks, Activities — The proposed FY23 budget remains fiat.
Dyer informed the group that the Town does need to invest in a new float system for the
beach, which is likely to cost approximately $2k; he feels the current system poses a liability for
the Town. The “goose fence” also needs to be replaced. He added that these improvements
were slated for the current year, but may not be addressed this year.

30-25, Heritage Days — The FY23 budget shows a 32% increase year over year, with a figure of
$6600. This reflects an increase in the planned entertainment budget, as well as an increase in
the budget for lavatories for the event.

30-30, Conservation Board — Bruce Hunter was invited to present the Board’s recommended
budget to the Committee. Hunter reported that the planned forest harvest was currently
underway, which will bring in revenue. He updated the group on the status of the mapping of
vernal pools, which has been a project that is on-going for several years. Hunter noted that the
Board hoped to complete the project next year; the FY23 budget retains a flat $700 for this
effort (10-40, Publications).

10-85, Volunteers, Conservation Board — The Board is recommending a 50% increases (which
amounts to $50} to this line item, used to fund a multi-town conservation volunteer BBQ. This
event is intended to thank the volunteers and to honor their value.

80-40, Materials, Conservation Board — The Board recommends this item be budgeted at a level
of $3500 in FY23. This is a 17% - or $500 — increase, year over year. The resulting $3500 budget
would be used to fund the purchase of crushed stone for the fairground trails and for the
production of additional trail signs.

55-60, Town Forest, Community Services, Conservation Board — The proposed budget reflects
no year over year change. Hunter noted that a priority for the coming year is the cleaning up of




invasive plants (honeysuckle and raspberries), as well as the conduct of a feasibility study
related to the elimination of blackthorn at the Torsey Pond Preserve.

30-50, Open Space Plan, Recreation, Parks and Activities — Dyer advised the Committee that this
budget issue is reflected in the capital budget, as it involves purchasing of land, as opposed to
operating costs.

40-70, Lavatory, Recreation, Parks, Activities — this budget is proposed by Dyer to be zeroed
out, as these lavatories were not used. This generates a savings of $750.

75-40, Materials, Town Property — The FY23 budget is proposed to be reduced by $2k, zeroing
out the line. Dyer noted that the Town does not anticipate any expenses in this category in the
coming year.

30-70, Trails, Recreation, Parks, Activities — Jackie Druin and Greg Durgin were invited to
present the Trails Committee’s proposed budget. They reported that the Carlton Pond Trail
needs a kiosk and sign. The Trails Committee also anticipates a need for additional bluestone
for trails, including the fairground trails (the Trails budget along with some assistance from the
Conservation Board supports these trails). Additional maps will need to be printed and geotek
fabric will need to be purchased for trail maintenance. The trails budget also includes an
expense provision (Misc) for Trails Day.

The most significant expense item for this budget division is expense related to a trails
contractor, $1950 — 80-10, Contract Services. This cost is shared with the Conservation Board
and has previously been offset by a grant awarded to Readfield’s Age Friendly Committee.
Durgin and Druin advised that it is challenging to project trail maintenance needs for the
coming year. Use of the trails has increased markedly during the pandemic.

There followed a brief discussion regarding the balance of funds available to the Trails
Committee for its work. Dyer informed Durgin and Druin that the Trails Committee has spent
down its carryover funds for gravel. He added that he supported the Trails Committee to
maintain a $5k-$10k reserve and invited the Trails Committee to request funding for such a
reserve.

The next budget item considered was 30-80, Town Parks. There is no year over year change
proposed for this item.

Overall, the Recreation, Parks and Activities departmental budget is proposed to increase by
almost 55400, or 10.7%.

The Budget Committee next considered 60-10, Roads and Drainage, Road Maintenance. Dyer
informed the members that there is a persistent need for engineering services (50-50,
Engineering) in this division. The current fiscal year budget for this line is $10k, that is intended
to meet the engineering and design expense for the Readfield Corners project, as well as a




project involving the intersection of P Ridge and Nickerson Hill Roads. To date, only $2k of the
$20k budget has been spent.

80-10, Contract Services, Public Ways Operation and Maintenance — This budget covers
ditching, culvert work, striping, brush clearing and tree cutting and is budgeted $2200 lower for
FY23 than it is for FY22. The total budget, however, for this item is $105k. Dyer believes this to
be a relatively solid estimate of costs, if the Town is able to quickly issue RFPs for these services
and if reasonable bids are received. He added that this work remains very important to attend
to, as it impacts road surfaces.

Dyer also told the members that there has been a dramatic increase in the cost of winter
services across the board. The current plow contractor recently raised the price of services by
25% with little justification provided. That contractor has also notified the Town that they will
not provider plow services next year, so this contract will have to be bid out again. The
challenge is that it will be bid out at a higher base price, given the current contractor’s recent
price hike.

80-20, Salt, Public Ways — Dyer noted that he is recommending the addition of $10k to this line
item, to reflect recent increases in actual costs. This is a 25% or $10k increase.

80-70, Patching, Public Ways Operation and Maintenance ~ The current year budget is $500;
current year expenses are almost double what was budgeted. This is attributable to a steep
increase in the prices for cold patching. The FY23 budget, as a result, is recommended to be
$1000, to align with actual cost experience.

Overall, the road maintenance budget proposal reflects a $77k increase — about 18% - year over
year.

The next department reviewed was 65-01, Capital Improvements, Technology. 65-10, Computer
Hardware, remains zeroed out. 65-30, Capital Equipment, Admin Tech, is proposed to increase
from S0 in the current year to $9k in FY23. Per Dyer, this budget is intended to meet the cost of
completing a conversion of the Town TV system to full digital service.

55-55, Broadband, Capital Improvements — This is a new budget line and is proposed for FY23 at
the level of $1.135 million. Dyer told members that of this total, $135k would be funded using
the Town’s ARPA allocation. The remaining $1m would be raised through a bond issue. Dyer
added that this was very much an estimate of potential cost, but that the Western Kennebec
Lakes Association working group was focused on narrowing down costs. The $1.135m is, as a
consequence, very much a placeholder. Dyer suggested that the Town would likely require
some type of BAN (bond anticipation note) or bridge financing due to timing differences
between anticipated project activities and the bond issuance cycle.




60-73, Fire Equipment, Capital Improvements — This line item is budgeted at $500k, which is the
expected cost of a new fire truck. Dyer would plan to include this item in an overall $2m bond
package that would be financed with a 20-year term.

50-26, 65-12, Fire Station Addition, Contract Services, Capital Improvements — Dyer reported
that the work on this project has been completed. Thus, the budget for this line — currently at
S200k - is zeroed out for FY23.

Dyer informed the group that the RFP for the installation of the sprinkler system for the station
has been issued; the current budgeted cost of $200k —the current year budget — is expected to
hold.

70-60, Maintenance, Building Operations and Maintenance — The budget for this line item is
proposed to increase S10k or 100%, bringing this item to $20k. This represents a step toward
building a reserve to fund projects needed for Gile Hall in the future, as needs arise.

65-25, Contract Services, Capital Improvements/Parks & Recreation — The FY23 budget
proposes to zero out 50-50, Engineering for the coming year, which is a reduction of $30k. The
money included in the current year budget is for engineering work at the ballfields; that project
will be completed in the current year.

80-10, Contract Services, Public Ways Operation and Maintenance — The current fiscal year
budget for this line is $45k. The proposed FY23 budget increases this line by more than 1000%
or $455k, to $500k. This is the high end of the cost projections provided by the engineers for
the cost of planned improvements to the ballfields at the fairgrounds. Dyer noted that this
would be part of the proposed $2m bond package.

Hanish expressed his concern the process used to guide the engineering estimates for this
project have not be carried out in an efficient manner, as not all stakeholders seem to have
been actively involved. He is concerned that once the estimates are “finalized” by the
engineers, others will want to chime in, conceivably leading to the specs needing to be
revamped, resulting in additional engineering costs.

50-26, Library Improvements, Capital Improvements, Library — The proposed FY23 budget
reflects a zeroing out of this line, which is a reduction of $50k. Dyer told the members that
while the work on installing/constructing the required second floor egress has not been done,
the funds to pay for that expense are in reserve. Dyer clarified that the cost of the project
($50k) includes the construction of a handicapped accessible ramp for the main library
entrance.

80-10/65-30, Contract Services, Public Ways Operation and Maintenance, Library — This line is
budgeted at $15k for the coming year, with a current year budget of $0. This budget value
reflects the anticipated cost of paving the library parking lot.




65-35, Capital Improvements, Open Space — In the current year, this budget is $10k. In FY23,
this budget line is proposed to be $50k, which represents an increase of 400%. Dyer explained
that the preservation of open space is a Town priority. As such, the Town needs to build a
reserve that may be used to purchase space to preserve its openness, lest it be developed. This
item led to some discussion with Committee members, with some members expressing concern
that in order to truly be meaningful, this Reserve fund would need to be much larger. At the
current rate — even adding $50k each year — it would take a very long time to accrue enough
monies to purchase land to put it into protection. Those members encouraged Dyer to consider
a substantially larger budget figure for this line item.

65-40, Cemetery, Capital Improvements — Line 50-50, Engineering, is zeroed out for FY23,
resulting in a reduction of $5k.

80-10, Contract Services, Cemetery — This line item is proposed to increase from $0 to $10k,
building a maintenance reserve. Tolman — who serves as a member of the Cemetery Committee
— noted that these reserves are needed to meet expenses that will be incurred when a current
wall that is in tenuous shape, needs repairs.

65-50, Sidewalks, Capital Improvements — The FY23 budget for 80-10, Contract Services, is
budgeted to be zeroed out, resulting in a reduction of $45k. The current budget of $45k is for
engineering services and will be spent in FY22,

65-55, Roads, Capital Improvements — 70-60, Sand Shed Maintenance — This has been an item
for consideration for several years. The current FY budget is $50k; no expenses have been
incurred year to date and, per Dyer, none are expected to be incurred. He has been working on
alternate plans to accommodate the Town’s need for a storage facility and believes he has
developed a sound approach. This plan involves the installation of a pad and landing area in a
plot in the Transfer Station property that is ready to accept such a facility, constructed primarily
using a tube housing on concrete. This unit could be ready to store sand when the current shed
fails. In the meantime, it could be used to store equipment for the new plow contractor. The
cost of implementing this plan, budgeted for FY23, is $150k.

80-10, Contract Services, Public Ways — This line item is currently budgeted at S0, but in FY23 is
budgeted at a cost of $50k. Dyer explained that $25k of this cost is for contracted services for
the improvements at Readfield Corner; the other $25k if for the project planned for the P Ridge
and Nickerson Hill Roads intersection.

80-90, Paving — Dyer told the Committee that there are no paving projects currently planned for
FY23. Still, it is important to maintain our contributions to the reserves for this purpose, albeit
at a lower rate. As a result, this line item is proposed to be budgeted at $200k in FY23, which is
a reduction of $172k or 46%, year over year.




65-70, Transfer Station, Capital Improvements — 10-50, Miscellaneous — This budget item shows
a slight increase {7.4% or $1827) year over year. This adjustment is needed to keep our current
reserve commitment at required levels.

70-60, Maintenance, Capital Improvements, Transfer Station — The budget document shared
with the Committee shows an increase in this line from $0 to $46.5k. Dyer indicated that this
line needs to be researched, as he thinks it may be an error.

85-40, Debt Service — The budget for this Department reflects several on-going borrowings. This
includes interest payments on a fire truck bond, which continues to decline slightly each year;
this bond will be retired in November 2023. Dyer expressed his preference that the purchase of
a new truck be delayed for one additional year until the current truck bond is retired, but
understands the need to get the purchase underway.

85-23, Debt Service 2023 Municipal Projects Band ~ This is the debt service budget for the
proposed $2m bond package referenced elsewhere in the budget document. The total amount
of the borrowing would be $2m over a 20 year term at an estimated interest rate of 2.5%. In
FY23, only the first interest payment would be due, as the bond — if approved by the voters —
would be issued in Spring 2023. That amount would be $14k, assuming the terms described
above.

Dyer reviewed the FY23 payments on other extant bond issuances, on which the Town
continues to make both principal and interest payments in the coming fiscal year.

The review of the debt service portion of the budget document having been completed, Dyer
quickly reviewed the graphic representations he is preparing to accompany the budget,
specifically as they relate to debt.

The group then considered 90-10, Unclassified. Dyer told the group that the budget request for
overlays is proposed to decline by $173k from $223k to $50k. Last year, the school district
returned monies to the Town, which have been placed in reserve and used to offset future mil
increases. Dyer reported the Town has not seen increasing needs for overlay/abatements
during the pandemic, contrary to what had been expected, thus the reduction in this line item.

10-50, Nonprofit Agencies — The FY23 budget includes $15k for this line item. Dyer noted,
however, that the various agencies ordinarily funded have not yet submitted their requests, so
this is a placeholder. He does not expect, however, that actual requests will materially differ
from this amount.

90-40, Contingency — The FY23 contingency budget is held flat at $25k.

90-50, Snowmobiling — This budget is being adjusted upwards slightly to better align with actual
revenue experience.




S0-60, Enterprise Fund — Dyer noted that while the budget document shared with the
Committee shows a budget of S1k, which is a $9k reduction, there is an error in the document.
The actual number should remain flat, at $10k for the coming year.

30-90, Revaluation — Dyer reported that the Town currently has more than $100k in reserve for
the revaluation effort. He indicated that there is no need to save additional funds to cover the
cost of a full valuation initiative. Dyer added that the Town has been conducting quarterly
assessments in an effort to stay on top of changes in valuation and to minimize the need for
marked corrections down the road.

95-10, General Assistance — Dyer reported that there has been very modest use of the General
Assistance budget. At the same time, there has been more use of the local heating assistance
program. The proposed budget reflects a $500 decrease in this line item, for a FY23 budget of
S5k.

With the review of the budget document concluded, Dyer cautioned members that the budget
itself still requires work. Next step in the budget process is a joint meeting with the Select

Board to discuss the Capital Investment plan, which will occur the evening of March 3, 2022.

The Committee expressed their sincere thanks to Dyer and Shaw for their patience and hard
work.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:50 pm

Respectfully submitted,
/ejs/




Date: January 26, 2022
Location: Town hall and Zoom
Attendees: Eric Falconer, Marco Graziano; Pat McCormick; Dan Wells, Eric Dyer, Kathryn Woodsum

At 1834 Wells called the meeting to order.
1836 On a motion by Woodsum, seconded by Tarbuck the minutes of the previous meeting were approved unanimously.

1837 Woodsum provided an update regarding the WKLCBA group. Efforts to create an interlocal agreement are being
abandoned as the group’s members are moving in their own directions. The group is waiting for a spreadsheet
comparison including the RedZone proposal. By the end of March WKLCBA will make a selection. The cost to Readfield
for the wireless RedZone option was $1.5M. If each town puts in $2,000 RedZone will conduct a radio path study to
figure out which locations wouldn’t be served. RedZone has to pay Tarana {the wireless provider) to do the path study.

Lippold (Casco Bay Advisors) is moving forward w/ RedZone w/ individual town pricing. He is also moving to push Axiom
to get Readfield and Wayne pricing. Axiom provided interesting proposals to some other towns so we’re eager to hear
from Axiom likely by the end of February.

WKLCBA - interlocal agreement process is on hold right now if the group dissolves before the agreement is complete,

In terms of timeline considerations, the end of March is the deadline for Readfield due to need to prepare secret ballot
language.

Vienna has a town meeting in two weeks. Vienna is putting a warrant article on their town meeting agenda as they will
need approval to negotiate and pursue broadband services. They are authorizing a special town meeting to specifically
mention broadband at their regular town meeting.

Readfield could similarly add a special town meeting to ensure that people know it is coming with the goal of increasing
participation in the process.

The group had a question regarding RedZonerop’s proposal. They are citing 500 mbps down / 100 mbps up for $99 per
month. This offer was deemed expensive though RedZone offered lifetime pricing to anyone who signs up. They said
when it is upgraded, you’ll not pay any additional fees when their software is updated.

RedZone has had conversations w/ Mt Vernan and Fayette. RedZone wouldn't provide a guaranteed time frame for
installation. RedZone is a good option if you don’t have any existing wired options.

Spectrum has not been very communicative regarding the bulk agreement option that was presented to the group at a
prior meeting.

The county is not planning to provide any ARPA funds for Broadband.
The committee reviewed proposals received from Spectrum, Matrix {had two models), RedZone and Axiom.
Looking to the future, the industry is improving a DOCSIS protocol that will allow for much higher speeds to end users

over existing cable infrastructure. As applications develop they will demand more bandwidth {envision higher quality
video or audio which will push more data).




If the town constructs a fiber network the fiber itself won't change over time. It's the other devices that move the data
that require frequent upgrades. Even coaxial cable will be able to move a lot of data with newer technologies that can
compress and route that data.

If the town builds its own fiber netwaork a lot of care needs to be placed into how we build out the hardware that backs

up the fiber itself. Forexample, it may cost $400 per customer to get the equipment at each house. It would be wise to
install the highest speed systems up front so the equipment will not have to be replaced as often. You can assume that

most home devices have a useful life of about 5 years.

The town needs to push Spectrum to renew the franchise agreement which has been expired for years. Ifit is not
renewed, it allows Spectrum to ‘coast’. Without a franchise agreement, Spectrum technically can’t use the town’s right

of way.

If the town were to construct its own fiber network it might allow the town to revoke the franchise agreement with
Spectrum.

For its part, Spectrum offered to install fiber to the few unserved customers now. 84 homes are unserved. Spectrum
said if the town pays $55k, they'd close the gap on these unserved homes.

The next two meetings will be on February 16 and March 16.

At 12:54 Woodsum moved to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Woodsum. The vote to approve the motion was

unanimous.




Date: February 16, 2022
Location: Town hall and Zoom
Attendees: Dan Wells, Eric Dyer, Kathryn Woodsum, Brian Tarbuck

At 1841 Wells called the meeting to order.
1845 There was no quorum so the minutes from the last meeting were not approved.

18:46 WKLCBA disbanded last week. The mission was to investigate forming a broadband coalition to a group of towns.
Upon receipt of the proposals it was determined that a multi town solution wouldn’t achieve the savings originally
anticipated. WKLCBA completed the pole study for four towns. The bids went out and were received.

18:49 Dyer explained the next steps for the committee. Despite the dissolution of WKLCBA, Readfield will continue to
work with neighboring towns if it is advantageous to do so. The timeline is to have the work done by mid April for solid
numbers. Folks on the committee need to dissect the available information and discuss options with Matrix and Axiom
and other vendors. Spectrum has become a more viable option than it was when we were considering a larger
consolidation w/ the other towns. RedZone is another player to consider. Need to split up this workload.

Readfield rec’d an email from Fayette stating they’ll work with Vienna as they are similarly sized and have no existing
internet service (unlike Readfield). They asked Readfield and Wayne if we could meet at 17:00 at Starling Hall on Friday,
February 18. The wisdom is that a larger regional group may be a better candidate for grants. Vienna is keen on fiber.

Fayette is more likely to consider RedZone and fiber and let the voters decide.

We still don’t have a franchise agreement from Spectrum. Town attorney Kristen Collins recommended that we get the
franchise agreement from one of the towns that has recently negotiated it.

The Matrix PPP is a public private partnership. Readfield contributes money, Matrix contributes money and the fiber to
the premise system gets built out.

Woodsum will attend the meeting on Friday, February 18. Dyer may also attend.

19:40 The committee will meet again on Monday, February 21, 6:30 PM to discuss findings from the Friday meeting and
any new information available.

1 I Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 02/16/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022



Date: February 21, 2022

Location: Town hall and Zoom

Attendees: Dan Wells,Brian Lippold, Patrick McCormick, Kathryn Woodsum, Brian Tarbuck, Stan Davis, Jim Anderberg,
Mike Carlson, Joe Young, Ed lawless, Aaron (Town of Wayne)

18:40 Tarbuck joined meeting
Meeting in progress (wrong Zoom links...)

Wayne RedZone option served by 3 towers; Fayette would be served by 4 towers
Readfield has lower take rate for any of the proposed options

Lippold described difference between Matrix and Axiom - Axiom sets the rates in their model and they hand us back a
forecasted revenue share to retire the debt; Matrix charges a flat fee, and a fee per subscriber - both models are tied to
take rate - if you build and operate, you carry the risk for take rate

Take rate is a very important variable -

The Matrix B&O uses tax and grant dollars to pay for construction.

RedZone would cover Fayette, Readfield, Vienne, Wayne, Leeds, Mt Vernon total is $5.2M

dield ¢ & oed O

$385,275 | $917,466 | $814,705 | $666,191 |$1,183,491 |$1,289,591 | $5,256,719

Capital Contribution if built only in the
Individual community

Capital Contribution if all towns select
Redrona

RedZone is saying that at 100% predicted coverage, they can hit their plotted speeds.

Pradictad Covarage Summary 100% Predictad Coverage <25% Predicted Conrage >23% Predicted Coverage
WKLBA  e911 Locations y % In Range ] X in Range () KinRonge
Fayette 894 m 86.4% 0 o Q.00% 894 100.00%
Lowds 1106 655 59.2% 67 6.05% 1,039 93.94%

Mount Vernon 1,295 922 71.2% 19 3.01% 1,256 96.99%
Readfiedd 1,322 971 73.4% 2 1.66% 1,300 98.34%
Vienna 362 312 86.2% 1 0.28% 361 99.72%
Wayne 904 2 78.8% 1

S [ DS | I T

RedZone offering 500 / 100.
Fiber is XGS PON 10 GB capable - RedZone doesn’t have a roadmap to get to 10 GB

1 l Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 02/21/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022



Capital Costs by Town ;

$70,523

n/a

n/a

: IOM B&0O : _______MAR
Potentlal Subscriber Locations | 472 905 : 5 | 4722
Pole licensing (CBA estimate) $77.206 $78,358 $46,500 $70,523 $77,206 $78,358 $46,600
Make-ready (C8A estimate) $646,272 | 5683640 | $374,220 | $586,872 | $646,272 | 5683640 | $374,220 | $586,872
Central Office n/a nfa n/a n/fa $120,000 | $120,000 | $120,000 | $120,000
Central Office & CO equipment $250,000 | $250,000 | $250,000 | $250,000 nfa n/a nfa n/a
f:m e AP SOvS, P Tor UK n/a na n/a nfa | $3,162,868 |$4,577,475 | $2,475.171 | 62,803,740
Backbone/Orop Materials & Labor (60%) | 52,629,778 | $3,170,558 | $1,501,375 $2,245,903 nfa nfa nfa n/a
CPE/Subscriber Installs 60% $195,300 | $320,950 | $97.300 | $159,250 nfa n/fa n/a n/a
Transport Vienna to Fayette n/a nfa $184,260 nfa n/a nfa nd. (n Backbone n/fa
Transport Fayette to Readfield $184,260 nfa n/a nfa ind. in Backbone nfa nfa nfa
Contingency 10% $262,977 | $301,856 | $150,137 | $219,490 nfa nfa nfa nfa
Project Management 5% ~ $130,000 | $150,927 $75,000 | $107,745 nfa nfa nfa n/a
Total Capital Cost 375,793 | $4,956,289 | $2,678,892 | $3,639,783 | $4,006,346 | $5,459,473 991 | $3,581,135
Sesorsy [l ~ Si6002985 -

n/a

. n!a

Total invested if purchased after S-years

Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 02/21/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022

Pole licensing (CBA estimate) $46,600

Make-ready (CBA estimate) $646,272 | $683,640 | $374,220 | $586,872 nfa n/a nfa n/a

Central Offlce $120,000 | $120,000 | $120,000 | $120,000 n/a n/a nfa n/a

Capital Contribution S0 51768065 | S0  |$1,138540 | $589.262 | $52,684 | $635730 | $374,319

Transport Vienna to Fayette nfa n/fa $121,550 nfa n/a n/a nfa nfa

Transport Fayette to Readfield $44,200 n/a nfa n/a nfa n/a nfa nfa
Total Capital Cost $662,370 | $1,915,935 $374,319




by hp : Axlom
100/10f g $74.99 $50.00
400/20 § $94.99
500/100 £ $99.00
1000/s00| & $199.99
50/50 $59.99
100/100 ] $64.99 $95.00 $75.00
200/200 E $135.00
250/250 £ $109.99
500/500 o $165.00
1g/1 $199.00
30/4 $17.99
Yes + 510
credit in
FCC EBB/ACP* Yes Yes addition to Yes Yes
the ACP $30
credit
* $30 manthlv credit for aualifvina lncations

3 | Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 02/21/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022



Date: March 2, 2022

Location: Town hall and Zoom
Attendees: Dan Wells, Kathryn Woodsum, Brian Tarbuck, Patrick McCormick, Eric Dyer

18:40 meeting called to order
Note that Keegan is no longer on the Broadband Committee

Tarbuck will get draft minutes to town clerk soon

Vienna, Fayette and Mount Vernon are leaning toward Axiom. Wayne will do RedZone.

Current cost estimates:

Axiom BRO (100/100) [Matrix B&O (1g/1g)  [Matrix PPP (100/100) |RedZone (100/100) Spactrum (400/20)

Gross Capital Expense s 4,956,289 | § 5,459,473 | § 2,650,063 | 5 917,466 167,354
Annualized Debt Service (20yr, 2.5%) 5 316,424 | § 348,548 | 5 169,188 | 5 58,574 | 5 10,685
Taxable Property Valuation (Fiscal Year 2023 Estimate) 3 325,558,556 | $ 325,558,556 | % 325,558,556 | $ 325,558,556 | § 325,558,556
Mil Rate to Cover Debt Service 0.000971942 0.001070615 0.000519685 0.000179918 3.28205E-05
Monthly Operating (Subscription Fee) 3499 [ $ §5.00 | § 95.00 | 75.00 | 5 94.99
Monthly Capital (Tax Impact for Select Property Values)

$ 50,000 | § 405 |35 446 |6 21718 075($ 0.14
$ 150,000 | § 12.15 | 5 13.38 | § 6.50 | 5 2253 0.41
$ 250,000 | § 20.25 | 2230 3 1083 | § 3753 0.68
$ 350,000 | $ 2835 [$ 31.23 | § 1516 | § 5255 0.96
$ 450,000 | $ 36.45 | 5 40.15 | $ 19.49 | § 6755 1.23
Monthly Cost (Sum of Tax Impact and Service Fees)

s 50,000 | § 39.04 [ $ 59.46 | 5 97.17 | S 75755 95.13
$ 150,000 | § 47.14 [ § 68.38 | $ 101.50 | § 77.25[$ 95.40
$ 250,000 | § 55.24 [ § 77.30 | % 105.83 | § 78.75 | § 95.67
$ 350,000 | § 6334 [$ 86.23 | $ 110.16 | § 80.25 | $ 95.95
$ 450,000 | § 7144 | § 95.15 | $ 11449 | S 81.75 | 5 96.22

A lowest sarvice level exceeding 100/100

Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 03/02/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022




Axiom B&O (100/100)

Gross Capital Expense S 4,956,289
Annualized Debt Service (20yr, 2.5%) $ 316,424
Taxable Property Valuation (Fiscal Year 2023 Estimate) ¥ $325,558,556
Mil Rate to Cover Debt Service 0.000971942
Monthly Operating (Subscription Fee) * ' $ - 39.99
Monthly Capital (Tax Impact for Select Property Values) A
$ 50,000 | $ 4.05
S 150,000 | $ 12.15
3 250,000 [ $ 20.25
S 350,000 | § 28.35
5 450,000 | $ 36.45
Monthly Cost (Sum of Tax Impact and Service Fees) )
$ 50,000 | $ 44.04
$ 150,000 | $ 52.14
S 250,000 | $ 60.24
S 350,000 | S 68.34
S 450,000 | S 76.44

* Includes $5 cost for insurance and reserve

Average tax valuation in Readfield: about $250k

Readfield now eligible for grants to some degree. Grant money can be received only for money you haven't already
spent.

The timing of the project was reviewed. The “make ready” portion of the project can take many months to complete.
Axiom claims a buildout to all residents in 12 months. Committee will ask Axiom how they’ve completed other projects

of similar size.

Tables presented regarding estimated costs are just that - estimates. More information is needed to ensure a
normalized cost comparison.

Questions remain regarding the cost of insurance. Insurance costs would be paid by subscribers, not all taxpayers.
75% of customers take the lowest rate offered.

PON = “passive optical network” - gets signal from point A to point B without electricity

2 Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 03/02/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022




Capacity is increased in a fiber network by changing the multiplexers.

32:1 multiplexing would handily support 32 customers at 1GB for a number of years. 8:1 is overkill.
Zoom uses about 1 MB in and 750k out.

Upload speed is much less an issue to customers than download.

Need to confirm take rates and insurance costs for each proposal.

Need to confirm depreciation rates for each technology proposed by each vendor. Equipment depreciates much faster
than the fiber on the poles. Customer premise, head end, CO and routers all have about a 5 year life span.

Suggest meeting again next week to determine whether the town pursues Axiom or Matrix proposals.
Does the town need to identify a vendor at this point?

Dyer suggests we need to have the fiber option presented to voters. If fiber to the premise option doesn’t pass at the
ballot box we’re left with working with improving the existing agreement with Spectrum.

Motion: Committee recommends a build and operate fiber to the premise network and further discovery and
negotiations with vendors. Moved by: McCormick Seconded by Tarbuck The motion was approved unanimously.

1957 motion to adjourn by Woodsum, 2nd by Wells. Motion was approved unanimously.

3 Broadband Committee Meeting Minutes 03/02/2022 - Approved 03/09/2022




Cemetery Committee Meeting Minutes
December 20th, 2021

Present: Andy Tolman, Grace Keene, Marianne Perry, Warren Norris, Ben Rodriguez, Tom
Molokie, Brenda Lake, Karen Peterson. Pam Osborn excused.

Meeting Minutes for Prior Meeting: Minutes for November were reviewed. Tom made
motion to accept minutes with approved changes, Brenda seconded, no further discussion
and there was unanimous approval of October minutes with prior changes. Approved
minutes will be submitted to Town Clerk.

Sexton’s Report by Ben Rodriguez

Ben reported that Eric and Eunice have been very helpful in helping the town in achieving the
town’s work goals for fall and winter clean up. The annual leaf clean up is ended with
completion of East Readfield and Dudley. Kents Hill and Readfield Corner are mostly
completed.

Ben remarked that he received a call from Tom Jacobs, the living relative of Marjorie Jacobs.
Mr. Jacobs noted some damage on Marjorie’s flat stone. Ben remarked it was likely he
damaged the stone during summer mowing season. Forthrightly, Ben accepted the
responsibility for the damage. After discussion the committee will support him with his
endeavor to repair the damage. He will contact Hugh to initiate repairs when weather allows.
It is estimated that the repair should be $450 for stone. Ben will perform the stone
replacement himself,

Eric Dyer, Town Manager, has hired a replacement maintenance position to replace Anna
who has accepted a new position elsewhere. The new manager is Matt Seems. Eric
envisions collaboration between the sexton and the new manager to achieve the town's
maintenance objectives.

Old Business
Ben will complete the ordering of new flags and markers for the coming seasons.

Ben is continuing to look at costs to install a tank for sourcing water near the Readfield
Corner cemetery. Earlier committee-persons reviewed the needs with a well driller who
recommended that a new well wouldn't make financial sense, A possible avenue would be
placement of a 250 to 500 gallon tank and fill it locally with the town’s firetruck pumping
equipment.

There has been little response from a solicitation from contractors to provide rock wall repair.
Ben will redouble efforts to get a positive response. Discussion followed about the funds for
the drainage. !t was agreed that there were sufficient funds in the current budget to support
the drainage repairs at Readfield Corner. Ben and Karen have noted the drainage must be
addressed prior to a wall repair. This is per the Limited Structural Evaluation prepared by
Helen C. Watts, P.E. in 2015 for the town. New observations by the sexton and the
committee reveal the wall is canting severely which will stress the rocks.

Discussion occurred re: the budget. Last meeting, we agreed that the budget fulfilled the
needs of the committee and the sexton and the committee was asked by Andy to review for
any further additions or subtractions. Tom moved that the committee accept the budget and
present it to the Town's budget committee. Grace seconded. Minor questions were posited
but no changes were made. The budget was approved and the motion passed. Andy will
submit the budget to the budget committee.




New Business

Ben recommended that chains be extended across cemetery road entries due to the potential
of damage after closing hours and when traffic should be discouraged during off season
months. In past there have been near misses that could have resulted in damage.

Grace made a motion that the chains be put up during these times by the Sexton. Tom
seconded the motion and discussion ensued:

* |t was noted that during the off season this will enhance enjoyment of our cemeteries
by encouraging walking

Liability issues would be avoided

Damage likelihood would be reduced

Stuck cars would he avoided

There would be adherence to the already established rules found on the Town's
website

+ Chains are used elsewhere and are available

*« & ¢ o

The committee agreed unanimously. Andy instructed Ben to immediately use the chains at
the appropriate times.

During the last meeting the Cemetery Committee recommended the removal of Sandra
O'Rourke from serving on the committee. This was submitted to the Select Board who
approved the dismissal. With the dismissal there is an opening on the committee. Andy
asked the committee members for recommendations for Sandra’s replacement. Tom came
forward with a name of an interested neighbor. Andy encouraged him to reach out to the
neighbor and to have him complete an application for the opening. Tom will do so.

Updates and Projects for Consideration

» Considering approaching Wreaths Across America for laying wreaths on our veterans'
gravesites.

« Getting more information about our veterans from their families.

» Collaborating with Readfield Historical Society to gather information for information
database

* Assisting sexton with planning additional plantings or replacing trees, plants and
flowers according to this plan.

» Dale Potter and Readfield Historical Society meeting next month to discuss Cemetery
Committee request for additional information

Warren made motion to skip January meeting. Next meeting will be February 14, 2022.
Marianne seconded. Motion passed unanimously with no discussion.

Chair moved for adjournment. Unanimously agreed. Merry Christmas and Happy Holidays
all.

Respectfully submitted,

Warren Norris
Cemetery Committee




Comprehensive Planning Committee Minutes
December 15, 2021

Present: Jeffrey Carlson, Chris Cheney, Eric Dyer, Jessica Gorton, Joel Greenwood (KVCOG), Greg Leimbach,
Matt Nazar, Dennis Price,

Absent: Alanna Bachelder, Paula Clark, Henry Clauson, David Trunnell

Jessica called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. in person at the Town Office and via Zoom.

MINUTES

Dennis moved to approve the September minutes; Jessica seconded. All approved with two abstentions.

Dennis moved to approve the November minutes, Greg seconded. All approved.

NEW BUSINESS

Eric reviewed the revised chapter schedule. He and Jess met to discuss it and decided that the schedule is
behind by about a month or a month and a half. Eric noted that some chapters (Capital Investment, Land Use
Maps, Public Facilities) have been worked on over the years and may only need one review. He put the
schedule through October 22 on the town website and SharePaint.

Greg has done some work on the Agriculture chapter, which will be presented with the Transportation chapter
in January. Jess asked committee members to review what Greg has done before the meeting.

Eric said he will update the document to reflect this change and add the responsible parties to the document
both on the town website and on the share drive.

NEW BUSINESS

Eric and Dennis reviewed the Public Facilities and Services chapter.

Changes since the 2009 plan include the fact that the town no longer owns the Readfield Elementary School,
which was merged with RSU 38.

Eric discussed the improvements to Gile Hall and to the library, two of the three buildings the town owns,
along with the fire station.

He reviewed the town-owned lands, including a couple that hold possibilities for conservation or a small park.

There was a discussion about the schools and the numbers of students from each town {Readfield and Wayne)
and how that should be reflected in the document. Eric asked Chris about whether Kents Hill Schoo! numbers




should be included as well. Chris said he’d be happy to provide the numbers for students enrolled now, in
2010 and 2000, including day, international, etc., and projections for the future.

The Fire and Rescue section needs quite a bit of updating and some additional information from the chief.
Mutual aid in particular has changed. The fire station building has been expanded and renovated and is fully
compliant if we ever need to go to a paid service. It also includes a warming center.

Chris suggested we might look at synergies with the camps, which have extensive medical facilities.
Ambulance service, which currently comes from Winthrop, should also be included.

Eric reviewed the trucks and other equipment at the fire station. He said we are in good shape for the next 10
to 20 years, other than periodic replacement of aging fire trucks.

Emergency management comes via a countywide service.

Chris noted that one of the biggest risks in town is the KHS hockey rink, due to the ammonia used to create
the ice. This should be noted in emergency services.

There have been major changes in handling solid waste, including adding Fayette, and adding compost.

Greg suggested the Age Friendly Committee might be consulted for the section on Public Health, as the town
population leans older.

Changes in utility services include town efforts to provide better broadband internet. Greg asked about solar,
which the town looked into previously but state regulations have made it unprofitable, so it has been
abandoned.

The committee discussed paring back the inclusion of discussion of valuations, which tend to become
outdated and irrelevant.

Readfield is a residential community and as such real estate taxes make up a big portion of town revenue.
While that has downsides, Eric said he’d like to own the fact that Readfield is a bedroom community.

Greg suggested turning the narrative about revenue numbers into tables.

The town has very little debt. Possible future borrowing might include funds to provide broadband internet,
and there was some discussion about how that might be done. A general statement on providing services was
agreed on. The committee also agreed on goals encouraging more community involvement and recreation,

OLD BUSINESS

Joel said he was able to get some housing data together, which he put in the shared folder, to help with the
Housing chapter since the 2020 Census data will not be available for some time.

He also put in a Maps folder.




NEXT MEETING ACTION ITEMS

The next meeting will be January 19, 2022, at 6 p.m.

Eric asked that the SharePoint link be included in every agenda and the minutes so everyone will have
constant access to them.

Transportation will be the next new chapter to be reviewed. Agriculture and Public Facilities will also be
reviewed.

Joel is to make sure the Transportation chapter is on the Share drive.

Greg is going to try and upload the farm stand map. He asked for help setting up his SharePoint account.
David and Chris can continue working on the Housing chapter now that they have some data.
Committee members are to review Greg’s updates to Agriculture chapter.

Greg moved for adjournment; Dennis seconded. Meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




Readfield Conservation Commission Meeting Minutes - Approved
Tuesday, December 14, 2021, Readfield

Present: Bruce Hunter, Jerry Bley, Greg Durgin, Marty Hanish, Stephanie Donaldson,
Andy Walsh

Guest: Tim Sniffen

Excused: Brent West

RCC Meeting Minutes - Greg D. motioned to approve the November 9, 2021 RCC
meeting minutes with revisions; seconded by Jerry B.; all approved with exception
of Andy W. (abstained).

0Old Business

Fairgrounds Ballfield Proposal ~ Bruce H. attended the Selectboard (SB) meeting on
December 13 and provided a brief summary of the Recreation Committee’s
presentation and follow-up discussion. RCC members also discussed the Joint
Committees meeting (Conservation, Recreation, and Trails Cmte’s) on December 7,
2021 regarding the Recreation Committee’s ballfield proposal. Discussion during
tonight’s meeting included some concerns regarding the process for reaching a
decision on the proposed ballfield. It was suggested that alternative uses of the
Fairgrounds be evaluated using the Fairgrounds Management Plan as a guide. It
was proposed that RCC submit a letter to the SB recommending the above, as well as
the development of a plan outlining how the property witl be managed and by
whom, the estimated construction and management costs, etc.

Grassland Management, School Property - Greg D. will check with the Maranacook
School superintendent (Jay Charette?) to confirm whether the school athletic fields,
built with federal funds, are available for recreational use by the community. Bruce
H. will research whether mowed fields can be managed for both pollinator habitat
and haying. Jerry B. indicated that Maranacook School engages Laura Lecker
(Technical Director, Somerset County Soil & Water Conservation District) to work
with the farmer who mows the fields (Brendan Fike) to help implement mowing
techniques to enhance their value for pollinators. Jerry B. also suggested that we
have Ms. Lecker assess grassland/pollinator management opportunities at the old
town landfill, the small field at the town forest, or any other fields where owners are
interested in protecting/creating habitat.

New Business

FY 2022-23 Budget - RCC members discussed the needs for town conservation
lands and their estimated costs for the 2022-2023 budget. A rough draft of the FY
2022-23 budget was completed.

Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m.
Submitted by Andy Walsh on January 4, 2022



Readfield Conservation Commission Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, January 11, 2022

Present: Bruce Hunter, Jerry Bley, Greg Durgin, Marty Hanish, Stephanie Donaldson,
Andy Walsh

Guest: Tim Sniffen

Excused: Brent West

RCC Meeting Minutes - Bruce H. motioned to approve the December 14, 2021 RCC
meeting minutes with revisions; seconded by Marty H.

New Business

Discussion regarding proposed recreational development at the Fairgrounds {Eric

D.'s 3 questions)

Marty H. recommended that an annual contribution be made to a conservation fund
to mitigate for the loss of habitat at the Fairgrounds property (FG) if the ballfield
proposal goes forward. Funds could be used for the management of existing town
land (e.g, field at the old town landfill). Jerry B. mentioned the existing Open Space
Fund (OSF) which is used for acquisitions/easements only, not for management of
land. The OSF is a restricted account used solely for a specific purpose. Marty H.
suggested that the OSF’s purpose be broadened to include management of
conservation land. A $10K allocation (tax dollars) was made to the account in 2021
and may be repeated in subsequent warrants. Jerry B. indicated that this allocation
amount is reasonable with additional funds secured as needed if a viable land
conservation project is identified.

Jerry B. also suggested that some of the Recreation Cmte’s budget for the project (if
tax dollars) could be used to mitigate the ballfield’s impact to habitat. The costs of
restoring lost pollinator habitat at the old landfill (or other location) needs to be
determined possibly through consultation with Laura Lecker (Technical Director,
Somerset County Soil & Water Conservation District). In the interim, RCC agreed to
see how the ballfield planning process proceeds. Marty H. will inquire about the
OSF at the next Budget meeting. Jerry B. will ask Eric D. if open space funding will
be included in this year’s town warrant.

Eric D. (Town Manager) asked the three committees participating in the December
7, 2021 meeting to discuss the ballfield proposal (Recreation, Trails, and
Conservation) to summarize their expectations/programs, preferences, and must
have’s regarding the proposed project. Marty H. recommended that the town follow
the process provided in the Fair Grounds Management Plan for evaluating
alternative uses of the FG. Marty H. also recommended that, other than planning
and evaluation, no work proceed until a long term, comprehensive plan is adopted,
which identifies all facilities to be developed over the next ten years with estimated
development, maintenance and management costs, etc. RCC preferences and must



have’s regarding any future development at the FG included preserving as much of
the field habitat for pollinators (functional habitat not to be disturbed by other uses
such as parking) as well as the scenic view and historic character of the fields from
Church Road. Maintaining the current trail system was also deemed important.
Jerry B. recommended contracting a landscape architect to assist in preparing a site
plan and that RCC take a balanced approach in assessing any future development of
the FG.

r

Jerry B. will summarize RCC’s responses to Eric D.’s questions and Marty H. will
draft up bullets points for a comprehensive plan.

Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m.
Submitted by Andy Walsh on January XX, 2022



Readfield Conservation Commission Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, February 8, 2022

Present: Bruce Hunter, Jerry Bley, Greg Durgin, Marty Hanish, Stephanie Donaldson,
Andy Walsh

RCC Meeting Minutes - Greg D. motioned to approve the January 11, 2022 RCC
meeting minutes with revisions; seconded by Bruce H.

New Business

On-site Megting with Landscape Architect re. Proposed Ballfield - Representatives
from the Trails, Recreation, Historical, and Conservation Committees met with

Regina Leonard (RS Leonard Landscape Architecture) at the Fairgrounds property
on Jan. 26 to introduce Regina the site and to discuss the ballfield proposal and
associated recreation development. Some rough ideas were preliminarily discussed,
including options for shifting the ballfield to conserve more of the grassland. During
RCC’s meeting, Marty H. suggested that the field be managed to appear like a
“pollinator park/garden.” Andy W. recommended that RCC take a stronger role in
managing the fields for pollinators and providing interpretive information at the
kiosk to educate visitors about the ecological value of the field and the pollinators it
supports. Siting of the proposed basketball court was discussed. Tentatively, Jerry
B. is recommending that it be located adjacent to the northwest corner of the
existing ballfield. The Select Board is estimating the cost for ballfield development
at $500,000. Funds for site evaluation and feasibility studies will likely be made
available this year.

Open Space Fund - The Open Space fund currently has a balance of $10,000. Eric D.
(town manager) is recommending that $50,000 be added this year and every year
going forward until the account has $500,000. Marty H. indicated that Eric D. is
aware of several undeveloped properties in town that could be purchased in fee or
easement for conservation.

Vernal Pool Project - Bruce H. spoke with Aram Calhoun (UMaine Professor of
Wetland Ecology) regarding RCC’s vernal pool data. Aram C. informed Bruce H. of
the Maine vernal pool Special Area Management Plan (SAMP), which is an
alternative mitigation tool approved by US Army Corps and ME DEP. SAMP
streamlines development in growth areas, compensates rural land owners for
vernal pool protection, provides increased predictability for developers, supports
municipal goals for growth and rural areas, and allows strategic conservation of
vernal pools at the landscape scale. Bruce H. will see if Aram C. can attend our next
meeting.

DEP Map of Sludge Spreading Sites - Bruce H. presented a preliminary DEP map
showing sites where leftover sludge (contaminated with PFAS chemicals) from
wastewater plants may have been spread in Readfield and elsewhere in Maine.




Nearby sites where PFAS contaminated sludge may be present include the Hewitt
property south of Rt. 17 and a field on the Jacobs Farm property on North Road.

Town Forest Harvest Update - Jerry B. indicated that tree harvesting was suspended
for a week while a skidder was repaired. There’s a couple more weeks of cutting to
be done before the operation is complete.

Open Space Plan - Bruce H. deferred discussion except to say that Aram Calhoun
(UMaine) suggested that the vernal pool map be included in the Comprehensive
Plan.

Long Range Plan -~ hold discussion

Grassland Management - Bruce H. will contact both Laura Lecker and Brendan Fike
regarding field mowing and frequency to enhance pollinator habitat.

Meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.
Submitted by Andy Walsh on February 20, 2022




READFIELD COMMUNITY LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
FEBRUARY 2, 2022

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Chair, Pam Mitchell. Meeting was held by Zoom.
Pam Mitchell, Jen Bonnefond, Brenda Lake, Deb Peale, Maureen Kinder, Pat Clark, Jackie
Drouin, Betty Peterson and Melissa Small, Librarian were present.

Excused was Sonya Clark.

Secretary’s Report: January minutes were approved.
Treasurer’s Report: Treasurer’s report was approved.

Old Business:

COVID Update: We will continue as we are doing. Masks required and no indoor
programs. Will assess the situation each month.

WiFi Update: Project Connect has been working on the WiFiissues. WiFiis working and
the project will be finished shortly.

Cake Pans: We will be having a cake decorating presentation on Zoom on March 21 at
6:30 pm. We will take pictures of the donated pans and do a little write up on each for a
binder for patrons to choose pans to check out. Due to space issues, pans will be stored
upstairs.

New Business:

*

State Park Pass and Botanical Park Pass: A patron has donated a park pass to the
Library. We will look into details for a Coastal Maine Botanical Gardens Pass and discuss
this at a later date.

Van Driver Appreciation Gift: The Board approved the purchase of a $15.00/$20.00 gift
from the Apple Shed for the van driver who delivers our Inter Library Loans books each
week.

Librarian’s Report;

We have two returning volunteers and a new volunteer who are helping out.

ALA: Melissa is participating in an American Library Association course called “Public
Library Director Crash Course: Getting the Skills you Need”.

Summer Reading: The theme for this year is “Oceans of Possibilities.” We will likely
participate through the Maine State Library Beanstack site, but also have a paper
version of logs.

AARP Community Grant: The lawn furniture for the library has arrived.

Story Walk Updates: Plan a date for Readfield Elementary site opening.

General Updates: Town emails continue to be an issue. The Town IT consultant is
working to address the issues for all town staff email accounts.

Upcoming Programming and Events:




1. Patrons can sign up at maine.beanstack.org to start a new account. The next
challenge will be “IditaREAD” with an Idatarod theme and will begin in March.

® O U M~ WM

Lo Ny R WM

[T T Y
N O

. Tuesday, February 1%, 9:30 am - Group Story Walk & Story Time.

. Saturday, February 5 3:00 pm - Group Story Walk & Story Time.

. Wednesday, February 16", 6:30 pm — Full Moon Snowshoe/Hike.

. Wednesday, February 23'%, 2:00 pm — Better Business Bureau Info Table.

. Monday, February 28" 6:30 pm— Library Book Group.
Programming/Event Statistics for February 2022:

Winter Reading Challenge: Online/Beanstack program — 13 participated.
January StoryWalk: Book: “Learning to Ski with Mr. Magee” 1 attended.
Writers Group Meeting: 2 attended.

Full Moon Snowshoe/Hike: Postponed due to weather.

Better Business Bureau Info Table: 1 attended.

Robert Burns Event:; 7 attended.

January Story Walk: 3 attended.

January Book Group: 14 attended.

New Library Cards for January: 4

Curbside Service: 4

. Home Deliveries: 2
. Facebook Followers: At the end of January, we had 499 followers.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm.
Next meeting will be held on March 2, 2022 at 6:30 pm by Zoom.

Respectfully submitted,
Betty Peterson, Secretary




Recreation Committee Meeting Notes
11-16-2021

Attendees

Hannah Flannery
Matt L

Amy C

Amy T

Kevin Kelliher

Jeff Carlson

Tom Labrie (via zoom)

Agenda
Covered outstanding soccer equipment

Trunk-r-treat
e Maine lakeside cabins responded too late, but suggested we contact business manage
Jen(JReese@maincabinmasters.com) Or fill out a donation request on their
website(https://kennebeccabincompany.com/contact/)
e The movie went well. Discussed options for next year, to move the movie potentially a
week earlier.
¢ Movie attendance was a topic. How do we drive more traffic?

Ice Rink
e \What should we do?

Meeting minutes approved.

e Discussed the outcome from the november 1st select board meeting regarding the
church road field project.

o Hannah read email from conservation committee.

o Need to discuss with: Trails committee(Rob Peale) and conservation
committee(Jerry Bly) meeting and proposed november 30 or dec 7th. Open to full
committees. 11/30 being the preferred choice.

o Basketball
o Met with Jay last week for formal use to use the gyms.
m  Gym access has been granted.
m Determine how many teams we have. Meaning the number of towns
being involved.
12/4 is skills and evals. Season ends on 2/12/22!
Will be start sign ups with a cut off for the 11/30.

o Starting the program, schedule below:
m Boys+Girls Pre-k:  8-9 am



m Boys+Girls 1st/2nd: 9-10 am

m Boys 3-4; 10-11 am
m  Boys 5- 6th: 11-12pm
mn  Girls 3-4: 2-3 pm

m  Girls 5- 6th: 3-4pm

o Coaches (all sports) have a pre-season meeting coaches meeting with
background check.
o Covid considerations: Follow high schoo! middle school rules
o T-shirt order, to be a generic order.
e Sponsors - discussed ideas around
o Advanced notifications to drive sponsorships
o Create a form to sign up sponsors to put on the facebook
e (Amy C) if small sponsorships. Below a certain level names on the back of the
tshirts over a certain point.
e Kevin K to setup andro pay for basketball, to hold to required field

lce Fishing Derby
e Date: 3/5/2022
¢ Need to get permitting for that date.

Rec Board Members
¢ How do we manage guests? Roles and responsibilities.
e Clear communication by the chair.
o Can we ask to attend Three meetings before signing up?
e Friends of rec - any non-member volunteers in any capacity
o Create a contact list
We are done




Recreation Committee Meeting Notes
12-21-2021

Attendees:
Amy Therrien
Hannah Flannery
Matt Lajoie
Jeff Carlson
Kevin Kelliher {(via zoom)

Discussed
¢ Rec committee positions
o Matt L is treasurer voted on and approved
o Secretary nominated Jeffrey Allan Carlson and approved
e Youth Ice Fishing Derby on 3/6/2021
o Early January 2022 start reaching out to vendors for sponsorships
o $24 for the permit

e Discussed choosing a consistent day of the week.
o First Thursday of the month, motioned and seconded.
e Soccer
o Wrap up discussion around outstanding equipment
o Recommended to have at least 2 people designated to organize per sport.
e Basketball
o Did andro pay provide the correct informatiocn? Tom to validate?
o What is a sustainable way to get a ball to the litilest kid?
o Grant we received, purchased reversibles.
Create a list of coaches by sport as to where they might.
Inviting and getting new people;
o Discuss ways to encourage more engagement? Create a friends of rec.
m Create aflyer
m  Looking for volunteers to be involved with rec committee
o Opening to the public and if they want to be on the committee



Recreation Committee Meeting Notes
01-06-2022

Attendees
Amy T
Amy C
Kevin K
Hannah F
Jeff C

Agenda:

e Basketball
o Issues with Jerseys. The last batch of 50 was different. Tom is resolving..
o We have aref. Paying 100 per day 3 or more games. (20 per game 2 or less.)
o Does have basketballs.

e Moving onto the project. Created a collaborative meeting, by using Google docs.
o We reviewed and worked on:

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1K8RpzifKDtQDuUmMOOh92ckRP6ZQToa-

Q8MaTUq0X9QO0E/edit?usp=sharing




Readfield Trails Committee Minutes
October 27, 2021

Present: Paul Bessette, Nancy Buker (via Zoom), Jackie Drouin, Greg Durgin, Steve Hayes, Rob Peale, Holly
Rahmlow, Henry Whittemore

Excused: Greg Leimbach

The meeting was called to order at 6:37 p.m.
Jackie agreed to be timekeeper.
Nancy moved the September minutes be approved, and Henry seconded. Minutes approved unanimously.

Jackie reported that we tookin $2 at the kiosk. We spent $41.59 on maps. Jackie forgot to bring the report
with our current total but emailed it later. Our current balance is $4,838.52, $752.46 of which is from
donations to date.

She also looked into whether the culvert for the Morrill Road trail has been purchased. Teresa and Eric didn’t
think so, but Eric said he’d look into it. She also asked about whether Trails would pay for it. Teresa said
normally the committee that orders the work pays, but Eric said some of it might come out of the town’s
general or road budget, as the expense is large and would make a big dent in Trails’ small budget.

The culvert is not the only cost; the work to install it and add landings on each side of Route 17 could be
costly. Eric informed her later via email that our project would be included in the next culvert order placed.

Jackie also asked about the “in-kind volunteer contributions” for those supplying a tractor. Greg had been
using $25. Teresa said the town used to assign the committees cost for tractor work, but they no longer do
that.

Paul praised the painting of the kiosks, which Jackie, Greg D. and Tim Sniffen did.
Henry said he would follow up on a sign for the chestnut tree.

Jackie passed around samples of possible signs for the kiosks. We decided to go with “Please support our
Readfield Trails. Thank you!” with the Readfield Trails logo. We discussed what style of paper, printing and
how we want to attach them to the boxes. One option is to go to a commercial printer and have them printed
on adhesive, like a bumper sticker, or print it and laminate at the town office.

The committee reviewed Henry’s changes to the strategic plan. The committee worked its way through the
document, adding and deleting text and editing wording. We agreed to limit as much as possible naming
specific people, groups or entities in the document. Henry said he would implement the suggestions, do some




more editing and come back at a future meeting with the improved document. Rob expressed a desire to
make the document as short and concise as reasonably possible.

A discussion on keys revealed that the only key we have is one for the Maranacook kiosk, for which Greg has
the only copy. He will make another copy. Nancy said she knew of no keys other than the one for the Trails
filing cabinet on the stage in the meeting room. That filing cabinet also contains all Trails books and papers.

Steve reported on his efforts to kill weeds with a solution of vinegar and salt. He said the effects were
noticeable, but it is unclear how thorough or permanent. There are areas where the weeds are going through
the geotech that may be difficult to attack. He has nothing new to report on his efforts to determine
maintenance/ownership of the trails behind Maranacook.

We discussed the plans for the work day tomorrow. Paul was kind enough to blow the leaves off the trails.

The stewards reported that their trails looked good. We discussed additional blazing for the Fogg Farm trail to
make the directions clearer in light of heavy leaf cover.

Rob reported that the inner gate at the Carlton Pond has been installed and that once the trail has been
completed Brian of GAUD will open the outer gate. Brian said he does not have time to build the kiosk,
although he will install a couple of posts, so we will need to take the lead on that. We discussed the size of the
kiosk and what might be included. Rob said he will be organizing some trail-building days in November. He has
already flagged the trail. Nancy noted that it’s the Winthrop snowmobile club that uses that area, not
Readfield, and that group might have some useful expertise in building the trail.

On November 1 there will be a forum on future use of the Fairgrounds. Several committees, including Trails,
will have ten minutes to offer its views. Rob asked if anyone has anything to offer. Discussions on the
Fairgrounds have so far revolved around a possible new ball field, basketball court and concessions stand.

Rob reviewed the revised policies the Selectboard is adopting for boards and committees. They require that
the agenda be sent to the town clerk at least three days before the meeting and draft minutes should be
submitted within a week after the meeting. Materials for meetings need to be available electronically to allow
the public to participate via Zoom.

Rob and Jackie will be working with Eric to discuss next year’s budget. Need to include money for blue stone,
maps, kiosk materials, signs.

Our next meeting would fall on Thanksgiving eve. We discussed how and when we might meet, as we usually
skip December. Rob said he will email potential dates.

At the next meeting we will follow up on Carlton Pond and the budget. We will save further discussion of the
strategic plan for January.

Meeting adjourned at 8:32 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




Readfield Trails Committee Minutes
December 7, 2021

Present: Nancy Buker, Greg Durgin, , Jackie Drouin, Greg Leimbach, Steve Hayes, Rob Peale, Holly Rahmlow,
Henry Whittemore

Excused: Paul Bessette

At 6:30 p.m. Rob opened a joint meeting with members of the Recreation Committee and the Conservation
Commission to discuss possible alterations to the Fairgrounds property. The Recreation Committee is
proposing a complex of ball fields to accommodate all the different ages of children who would like to play
softball and other sports. Their concept plan includes softball and soccer fields, a basketball court, additional
parking and a snack shack.

The topic was discussed at length. Some Trails members expressed concern about the cost and suggested
alternatives, such as the schools. Most members agreed about the need for a softball field, but the addition of
other facilities raised questions about where and the costs.

Henry asked whether the plans would affect the Ken Clark memorial bench and sugar maple. Bruce Hunter (?)
said he was told that that spot was only a placeholder. Henry said he wanted to be sure that its placement is
taken into consideration in future planning.

The portion of the meeting with the other two committees ended after 8 p.m. In view of the late hour, Henry
expressed concern about trying to continue with the planned Trails meeting, but Rob said we needed to
complete our proposed budget by the end of the month.

Greg D. made a motion to let Jackie and Rob complete the budget for 2022-23 along the lines of what has
been discussed so far. Henry seconded. All voted in favor.

Our next meeting will be January 26, 2022.

Meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




Solid Waste and Recycling Committee (SWRC) Minutes
Wednesday, October 13, 2021

5:30 to 7PM at the Readfield Town Office Eric Dyer is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

1. Roll call and determination of quorum
Present: Committee members: Jon Beekman, Amy Black, Aaron Chrostowsky, Eric Dyer, Kellie
Hess, Kim King, Karen Peterson, Mark Robinson, Nate Rudy, Kathryn Mills Woodsum
Public: Al Parks, Bunny Parks

2. Accept minutes from April 21, 2021; motion by Amy, Second by Kelli, Vote: Unanimous.

Accept minutes from August 11, 2021; motion by Kathryn, Second by Kim, Vote: Unanimous.

3. Oral and written communications.
a. Readfield Transfer Station Manager report: Eric and Karen
i. General operations

1.

8.

9.

We had a fire in the MSW Compactor. Not certain of the cause but may have
been hot ashes placed in the bin. We sent out a reminder to Readfield,
Fayette and Wayne about proper materials being placed in the bin. We
need new covers for the ash cans.

Replacing 2 entry doors on the buildings

Short staffed all quarter due to illness, vacation, injury. We really need a
fulltime seasonal position for our summer season. Labor shortage is hitting
home.

Summer hours are very popular but should stay only for summer season.
HHHW event was veery successful and efficient. Sunday was a much better
day for traffic flow.

Swap Shop is closed until the spring of 2022. We could do a DEP grant and
move to where the compost bin currently is.

Brush pile and clean wood pile changes remain in place and are working
well. Al Parks noted that Steve McGee will take stumps for a fee.

Demo bins: We have 2 now and that is working much better for drop off and
for bin change outs.

E-Waste fees have been eliminated for lamps and bulbs

ii. Recent changes: Covid-19 operation notes

1.

Senior hours remain in place on Thursdays from 10 until 2 with all stalls
open.

ifi. Quarterly financial review: July - September 2021

1.

2.

We are at 33% for recycling, 16% for metal, 24% overall expenses, 39%
overall revenue. This is for 25% of the year. We are in good shape
financially.

Wage update. The Town of Readfield is raising wages $2 /hour for hourly
employees effective through June 30, 2022. This is funded with town ARPA
funds. The Select Board is asking the Budget Committee to fund this
permanently in the next town budget.




4. Members of the public may address the SWRC on issues pertinent to the agenda.

a. The Parks asked that we remind employees to address the public appropriately and
respectfully. Also, they have been told that Blue Rhino will accept propane tanks at no
cost.

5. Unfinished business.
a. Electronic payments at the Transfer Station
.. We have all the equipment and need to install it and train staff. This will occur in
November. There will be a minimum payment amount.
b. Composting update
i. 200 plastic food scrap buckets given out with pledges
ii. 50 wire trap style home bins given out during informational presentations
iil. We need to schedule events in Fayette & Wayne. Could do Every Day Direct
Mailings. Looking for an increase in participation.
iv. Adjuncts needed are manure; we have a good supply of sawdust
v. Large collection bin was donated to Farmington (it was purchased with grant
funds and could not be sold). We will get a new bin soon.
vi. Partnerships: Good with DEP, Mark King is very helpful; not as good with the
Mitchell Institute; they had ideas but few products or assistance.

6. New business. (50 min.)
a. Elect Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary for fiscal year 2022
i. Chair: Kathryn; Vice-Chair: Jon; Secretary: Kim
b. Fayette and Wayne are not ready to host meetings for us yet.
¢ Consider funding a summer employee for the FY 2022 and beyond.
i. Discussed and agreed that we should do this for the 12 weeks from Memorial Day
through Labor Day. There could be funding or interns available through the MMA
Home Town careers program.
d. Consider funding dog treats
i. We agreed this will be in the budget. Employees should only hand to owners and
not directly to animals.
Consider the roll-back of Electronic Item fees: no charge to town for disposing of
f Planfor 2022 HHHW event:

. EPI'would like to tally units and not have the resident and/or town do that. That
way they can provide accurate unit totals and costs by town. They would do this
while unloading the materials from vehicles.

ii. Need better advertising for the type of materials to bring.

fii. Consider having a Business Service Day with set-up costs covered by the towns.
Businesses would pay the costs of disposal of their materials but would have a
local site to bring materials to and be cost effective for them, which would support
collection of materials from sites in towns.

®

7. Setnext agenda.
a. Reminder we meet on the second Wednesday of a month now.
i. Wednesday January 12, 2021 at Readfield Town Office
1. Composting update
2. Electronic Payments update




3. Carry over to a future date a discussion on holding composting events and
school visit arrangements with Liza Bitterman from ecomaine, due to
Covid-19 pandemic.
4. Other
ii. Wednesday April 13, 2021 at Readfield Town Office
1. Composting update
2. Other

8. Adjourned at 7PM.

Respectfully submitted by Kathryn Mills Woodsum.
Approved 1/12/2022




Solid Waste and Recycling Committee (SWRC) Minutes
Wednesday, January 12, 2022
5:30 to 6:50PM at the Readfield Town Office and via Zoom

Eric Dyer is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

https://us0Zweb.zoom.us/j/88197421195?pwd=bVF6UUFNWCt6MDFQeG5NR2xBZIhrQT09
Meeting ID: 881 9742 1195

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

Present: Committee members: Amy Black, Aaron Chrostowsky, Eric Dyer, Kellie Hess, Karen
Peterson, Nate Rudy, Kathryn Mills Woodsum, Al Parks

Public: No others present

Accept Minutes from October 13, 2021
e Motion by: Al Parks; Second by: Karen Peterson, Vote: Unanimous

Readfield Transfer Station Manager Report: Eric gave the following report:

Facility & Equipment

» There was an equipment failure on Dec 24t due to Troiano hitting the compactor.

* Two doors on storage and restroom were replaced.

* Investigating fabrication and installation of metal gates.

Personnel

¢ There have been struggles due to illness.

¢ Have recently hired for maintenance.

Operations

¢ Transitioned from large dump body for food waste container to a smaller mobile one.

* The swap shop remains closed. COVID prevalence will dictate reopening.

» New electronic payment system installed in Qtr 2. The rollout has been delayed due to bugs
identified that still need to be resolved.

» Tipping and Hauling - Troiano has been difficult to deal with; they can be unreliable at times and
communication challenges. Will be doing a tipping and hauling RFP in Q3.

e Three Hauler permits issued.

Quarterly financial review: October - December 2021

Operating revenues

* Recycling has rebounded and the transfer station is getting paid for recyclable materials rather
than paying tipping fees.

* Revenues are on track.

e Payments from partner towns are current.

* Metal is well above estimates. Over 100% halfway through the year.

Operating Expenses

e Expenses for the first 2 Qtrs are just under 50%.

¢ Wages were increased for all full-time hourly Readfield employees due to availability of ARPA
funds.

* Building O & M lines will be used more in second half of the year.

¢ Backhoe expenses are less than budgeted.




Members of the public may address the SWRC on issues pertinent to the agenda.

No members present.

Unfinished Business
Electronic payments at the Transfer Station

Still working out bugs with electronic payments.

Looking for a template where processing fees are absorbed by customers instead of the
municipality.

Fee schedule should be visible to folks coming to the transfer station as well as any transaction
minimums so folks can know about fees up front.

Composting update including meeting grant requirements

Food composting is going well.

Have gone to a smaller bin because it works better for the transfer station. It makes it better to
churn it.

Mark King from DEP did a seminar at the Readfield library, and folks have more composting bins
to take home.

Will deliver more household bins to Wayne and Fayette.

There is a requirement to do reporting to two different entities. The Mitchell Center and DEP.
Kellie volunteered to do some outreach for composting at the Wayne library. She will connect
with Aaron.

HHHW event 2022 update including possible collection event

Talked about Mt Vernon and Vienna to join HHHW event in 2022.

There has not been any correspondence with KVCOG about this event yet. Eric will make contact.
Having Belgrade last year went well; will include them for 2022..

Sunday was better for traffic flow.

Having time slots worked well; 6 per 15 minutes from each town.

Billing based on forms at collection site; tick sheet as stuff comes out of vehicles.

Future of Swap Shop

Right now the Swap Shop is closed.

Possible grant through DEP?

Hard to manage properly at the moment; needs some dedicated volunteers.

Girl Scouts or Boy Scouts for service badges or high school students to get community service.

It would be more cost effective to use space that we currently have.

Important for space to be well lite, organized, and have good signage.

Give staff the ability to say that the shop is full and/or can’t take an item. Can we get the shop up
and going by May 1st7

Kellie & Kathryn will work with Karen to look at May 1st.

New business
FY 2022 budget information

*

Administrative changes are expected.
Labor costs and insurance will show a sizable increase; will have some offsetting revenue.
Utilities increases expected.




Contract Services - tipping and hauling services expected to have increases. RFP will give better
idea of costs.

Equipment maintenance - small changes.

Building O & M, few changes, no big changes expected.

Hoping to finish spending project funds this year, and just have a maintenance budget for next
year. Overall, there is an expectation for about a 3% increase or approximately $10,260.

Aaron is interested in a bulky expense line item. Possibly an “at cost” and expense the individual
towns directly. Ex. Tires.

Capital projects update

There was reference to a document from January 2020 that had a schedule for replacement of
various capital items.
Capital needs include:

o roofreplacement, cover for backhoe, roof system over hopper.
Do we want to wait on these projects or do them sooner? Is there interest in doing a bond?
Must look carefully at interlocal agreements beforehand.
A 10-year bond would be better to smooth out expenses.

Next Meeting
February 9th 5:30 - 6:30 to discuss input on budget.

Reminders
Reminder that we meet on the second Wednesday of a month now.

Future Meetings
Next Agenda Items
Wednesday April 13, 2022 at Readfield Town Office

Composting update

Electronic Payments update

Carry over to a future date a discussion on holding composting events and school visit
arrangements with Liza Bitterman from ecomaine, due to Covid-19 pandemic.

Other

Wednesday July 13, 2022 at Readfield Town Office

Composting update
Other

Adjourned at 7PM.

Respectfully submitted by Amy Black.
Approved on 2-16-22.




APPOINTMENTS,
REAPPOINTMENTS, &
RESIGNATIONS




Readfield Select Board

March 14, 2022 ————
tem #22:106 TOWN OF READFIELD EGETVE
“eente:z APPOINTMENT APPLICATIO MR
a :
Item # 22-107 N 2y VTS Ay

The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodation cannot be made.

The Select Board shall have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appeint an applicant to a position for which the
applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

Please check one: @ 1* time appointment re-appointment

Which Board, Committee or Commission

are you applying for? A GE F/Q /E/\/DLL_/ ((\CJ/W/W- Term: La}'ao}aoaq
Name:__ Lldine [/ﬁ 7Z Q\Q\(H):

Street address: 2%/ 577,1‘/@ TEVANT K/ £ BPhone (Cii‘,Z_ZDj7 - 587 - [530
Mailing address: . 6(.?/?76/

e-Mail: __Cla e Ktz )3 @ _a)‘mﬁ'/ (L, L0770

Below please tell us of any experience and/or training that might be useful in this position.

. rf’éﬁ/“fnr A Member cf/ INEP [ monmad A L. ﬁz(/f@\ﬁmm/
FasT /”)/(’//)éf/ Z? 'fwc/c Bel? €1 Boary
/4/57 P,u 5/4’m7 m /1 /Mﬁfs%%/em Prep. |

Below please tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position.

/WL/ / ; e _AUDErenis. /)65 [ Gcte e aetely Quaid m[ Yo e £ Ol
104 2. Lttink 0 ve Wady 22
/um&/@né) / %ﬁf/?@ v T LooLeldl Likido b tulptiid in pLirsiung

If you are currently employed, what is your position? ﬁe \/f/l‘é /Df ff_( cC 7LS’

( ﬁ'//f:é’r; &ty




APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:

ame: (771702 Ltz Yvoswion:(fae Frzznally foma)em{oloolaca
J J

"By signing this application for this position the Applicant understands and agrees that the information contained in this
application is required by law to be available for public viewing and agrees to hold the Town of Readfield harmless from
any misuse of the application information by anyone viewing it. As a member of this board, committee or commission

Check one!

v/ [ approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on the Town’s public sites and publications.

I DO NOT approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on any of the Town’s public sites or publications.

Name: ’/K// uu/é&% Date: ;24? 47,/ 2 A

CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

Please check one: 1* time Appointment D Re-Appointment

Was this position advertised? @ Yes D No If no, please explain:

Confirmation from Applicant of attendance at Select Board Meeting if required.

Maoccin 14 IQO&&
SELECT BOARD APPOVAL

To C’lCum ¢ VX A+Z._- of Readfield, in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There

being a position on the DO? W‘\@(‘\Cj (4 (’W‘) we the Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance with the provisionsof the laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoint you to

said position within and for the Municipality of Readfield, such appointment to be effective:

[3 ]E:” 125); ! l thru g 2!\3£2!ggaq l Given under our hand this , day of 20

Dennis Price Ralph F. Eno, Jr. Sean Keegan

Carol Doorenbos Kathryn Mills Woodsum

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT

e

Chair has been notified of appointment? | JYes No If yes, what date:

Is an Oath appropriate: Yes D No if yes, what date l l




Readfield Select Board OFFICE UsE
March 14, 2022 TOWN OF READFIELD 2\ 803
Iltem # 22-108 . .
‘ 'APPOINTMENT APPLICATION Pl

The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodation cannot be made.

The Select Board shall have final authority #ver the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a position for which the
applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

¥

Please chéck one: v 1* time appointment re-appointment

Which Board, Committee or Commission

are you applying for? A(DE ?NED‘DJ_LJ COMM(H'?? Term: Ql%%él% ]
Name;: Ep 511«’\5 Phone {H):
Street address: 35S O\ lmv™s (}1'\[ Phone (C): 207-SS7-56(8

Mailing address: = QQ%ACQ W\A:VV\L

E-Mail: ?cQws‘lmS@_éYV\M‘, o,

Below please tell us of any experience and/or training that might be useful in this position.

Gz Iploglzad Stodhes/. Acdiencsl) quxrsa ‘Rocden) Ot\l\)wsnlq

Mtz Commi fb'z ON D?ﬂl\q LOP\»&;TéEW) Crws Ombu&wﬁah)

OnveF of St=df V\husts

Below please tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position.

Lk \mua p\)‘ErZS{’ "M N\Q&%w CN-Q QPQS/‘\W(-{// go )@ch

Cr}u\zoqiowé = oy /ammwh\
/ _/

If you are currently employed, what is your position?




APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:

Name: ED 5"@ Position: cqw\{\h‘it-bz (‘09“63/ Term: Z(.O]%O,S /

"By signing this application for this position the Applicant understands and agrees that the information contained in this
application is required by law to be available for public viewing and agrees to hold the Town of Readfield harmless from
any misuse of the application information by anyone viewing it. As a member of this board, committee or commission

Check one!

K | approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on the Town's public sites and publications.

| DO NOT approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on any of the Town’s public sites or publications.

Name: P—‘:ZQSI;WS Date: 3/('-5/ 2522

CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

Please check one: 1"'t time Appomtment o i Re Appomtment
Was this position advertised? | Yes D No If no, please explain:
Confirmation from Applicant of attendance at Select Board Meeting if required. amer

Y el A e
SELECT BOARD:APROVAL .-, . "

To \Ej %\ AR of Readfield, in the County, of !(je;i)nﬁebe'c. andState-of Maine: There
being a position on the an‘v ‘;‘ er ‘ (4 we the Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance With the provisions of thé laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoint you to

said p05|t|on W|th|n and for the Munlapallty of Readfleld such appomtment to be effectlve

e ] H PP el v

Lo 20|02y |- leen under our hand thlS 1, day of : 1,20
' RS TR e I B T U VI e ot
O RAT VI VLS N S A
Dennis Price Ralph F. Eno, Jr. Sean Keegan
) Carol Doorenbos _ L Kathryn Mllls Woodsum
FW. A F LY 8 oL P LS P O YL B
. l\?\“‘-,v'gk-‘.~|r' [ -‘,; .4,' 7.1 o E,- ‘v. _..f .G:..|

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT

Chair has been notified of appointment? DYes No If yes, what date:

Is an Oath appropriate: DYes D No If yes, what date




Readfield Select Board OFFICE USE

March 14, 2022 SjaHjacaa
ftem # 2-100 TOWN OF READFIELD _}mp

DATE RECEIVED
APPOINTMENT APPLICATION —

The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual oriéntation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodation cannot be made.

The Select Board shall have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government. The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a position for which the
applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest.

Which Board, Committee or Commission

Please check one: 1* time appointment )( re-appointment

are you applying for? :_ ACHON GWY‘) Term: AOIY

Name: m‘f'(\(\\ ’E)\f-\’ Phone (H): 6 85~3%72
Street address: 7—7 C9 ‘ts R(\ _ Phone (C):

Mailing address:__ 21 _(lvs Qc". Rqu\ﬁt C[ ME 0%3§§
E-Mail: \bley@ gl et
- - Jd

Below please tell us of any experience and/or training that might be useful in this position

{‘EL\JE .SCNtd on CDKQCVUC-S\'LD« Comwu%now -B( mqu qcﬂw'?

Owh/ooefoci a laud vee cvnfo\@vxa& ‘ousmgss.

Below please tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position.

Hawe cn\ourd seviima_on_ RCC D tany_ yeous amd

cooulcl f\}ze jo cov\grmue ‘Hws W\@«hw’r ubrk’

If you are currently employed, what is your position?

(ju)V\ C/‘ea‘"‘wt @Mcrgn’}w‘-’l', LL.C= &Q [q\aé V5C (on4vu ku; _-Qrm

d




APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:
Name: GCJ‘ LS| 5'6, Position: Cbﬂﬁcmq'}mw G,mm,%;w_Term: ,209“/
) !

"By signing this application for this position the Applicant understands and agrees that the information contained in this
application is required by law to be available for public viewing and agrees to hold the Town of Readfield harmless from
any misuse of the application information by anyone viewing it. As a member of this board, committee or commission

Check onel

@ | approve the use of my e-mail @n the Town’s public sites and publications.

D I DO NOT approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on any of the Town'’s public sites or publications.

Nalge: A‘"“\ %’\g Date; D/ujll_

llllllll!lllll!lllll.llllllllllllllll!lllIIIIllllllIlllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIlllllIIIIlllllIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIlllll!llll.l

- CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

B - .

Please check one: _ D 1* time Appointment 8 Re-Appointment

Was this position advertised? E Yes No If no, please explain:_(C (Y X5 L,H‘JLJ( .
e -oDoI et

Confirmation from Applicant of attendance at Select Board Meeting if required.

e —Qp;mihwm’r - NO reeded

SELECT BOARD APPOVAL

To S_efm Pﬂ £\ /f of Readfield, in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There

! —
being a position on the [~ - HOr™ we the Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance with the Provisions of the laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoint you to

said position within and for the Municipality of Readfield, such appointment to be effective:

I. : . El thru &‘5‘3 Al Givgn under our hand this D,day of D,zo_

e —— s e - ——

Pennis Price B Ralph F. Eno, Jr. Sean Keegan

Carol Doorenbos Kathryn Mills Woodsum

CLERK’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT

Chair has been notified of appointment? DYes DNO If yes, what date:

is an Oath appropriate: Des D& If yes, what date I l




OLD BUSINESS




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
item # 22-022

TOWN OF READFIELD - Town Manager

8 Owp KenTts HiLL Roap, READFIELD, MAINE 04355
Office (207) 685-4939 * Cell (207) 242-5437

Email: manager@readfieldmaine.org

Date: March 13, 2022

To: Town of Readfield Residents, Staff, Volunteers, and Select Board
From: Eric Dyer, Town Manager

Subject: Coronavirus / COVID-19 Response - Update 7

Our first COVID-19 update was issued on March 15, 2020, [ want to thank all of our staff and
residents for their support of each other over the past two years. Your collective diligence and
sacrifices helped to curtail the spread of the Coronavirus, kept important municipal services
functioning, and saved lives within our community. Vaceination remains the most effective way to
continue this support and 1 encourage everyone who is able to be vaccinated to do so. We have
come a long way and while the pandemic is not over and new variants may emerge, we are able to
return to some semblance of normalcy. Some of the changes we’ve made in response to the
pandemic will remain in place because they make sense, like enabling remote participation in
meetings, senior hours at the Transfer Station, and an expansion of online services and information.
This update summarizes many items that are already in place, and our action plan as we enter the
spring of 2022. I truly hope that no more updates or changes will be necessary.

Municipal Staffing / Town Office:
e Regular cleaning of surfaces and devices will continue, with responsibility of workstation
cleaning assigned to each employee.

* The Town Office will continue to be open to the public without an appointment during
regular business hours.

¢ Residents may still wish to utilize our many online services as a convenient alternative to
coming by the office.

¢ Face masks are not requested or required at the Town Office unless CDC protocol dictates
this for those with COVID-19 close contact or infection.

e Staff must continue to stay home if they are sick, practice recommended hygiene while at
the office, and clean their workstations regularly.

e There is no limit on the number of municipal employees or residents allowed in the Town
Office.

e There is no modified work schedule for employees at the Town Office.

Transfer Station:
¢ Face masks are not requested or required at the Transfer Station unless CDC protocol
dictates this for those with COVID-19 close contact or infection.
e “Senior Hours” for residents over the age of 65 or with special medical considerations will
continue on Thursdays from 10-2.
o Staff may assist residents with unloading of bagged household waste.




Public Meetings and Communication:

s We are actively encouraging a return to in-person board and committee meetings as a
primary mode, but virtual participation options will remain available.

e Those interested in attending, listening, or watching public meetings and proceedings
remotely should look for web conference and teleconference links and instructions on
meeting notices and agendas.

e Public rentals of the 2™ floor of Gile Hall is allowed, with the addition of a non-refundable
$50 use and cleaning fee for all users.

¢ The Readfield Beach is available for rentals for special events.

e The town website continues to be an excellent resource. It is located at
www readfieldmaine.org. Sign up for E-Alerts to get important news and updates.

Volunteers and Volunteering:

Thank you again to all of those individuals who stepped forward, and in some cases stepped aside,
to help their friends and neighbors stay healthy and safe during the last two years of this pandemic.
Volunteerism is alive and well in Readfield and I encourage anyone with an interest in giving back
to their community to contact the Town Office or visit the website to learn more!




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
item # 22-101

TOWN OF READFIELD - Town Manager

8 OLp KenTs HiLL Roap, READFIELD, MAINE 04355
Office (207) 685-4939 * Cell (207) 242-5437
Email: manager@readfieldmaine.or

Date: March 13, 2022

To: Town of Readfield Select Board
From: Eric Dyer, Town Manager
Subject: Tax Acquired Property

Automatic Foreclosure:

The Town of Readfield automatically foreclosed one uninhabited property containing a few modest
structures, This property was not a primary residence and the owner is not a resident of the Town.
The property owner now has until April 1 to pay all past due taxes and fees in order to reclaim their

property.

Policy Discussion:

The 30 day grace period following foreclosure is a vulnerable time for the former owners of the
property and for the Town. Before and during grace periods we receive many inquiries about at-
risk or tax acquired properties by prospective buyers / speculators. As a result of these inquiries
property the Town may or has foreclosed upon has been purchased for little more than the taxes
owed under questionable circumstances. These sales essentially allowed a third party buyer to
deprive the former owner of fair market value and deprive taxpayers of a similar benefit by taking
advantage of a person with “nothing to lose”. This is a bad situation the Town has little control
over and one that could be repeated over and over under our current policy. I recommend that the
Select Board consider taking action to address this kind of activity, both in the long-term through a
policy change and with respect to the most recently acquired property (a redacted version of my
letter to the former owner is attached).

One option would be to prohibit the sale of the property during the grace period and a period of time
after (perhaps a year). This might keep the property of the tax rolls for longer and the town may
lose some tax revenue, but it gives more time for a thoughtful sale. Another option would be to
eliminate the grace period outright. A third option, and the one I am recommending for the most
recently acquired property, would allow the Town to return all or part of the net proceeds of a sale
to the former owner. This action is currently allowed under Maine law.

These options could protect the interests of the taxpayer and former owners and prevent third party
buyers from taking advantage of the Town and its residents, Other options may exist. A change to

our policy may be required.

Respectfully submltted

Eric Dyer, Tax Coﬂéf/—\




TOWN OF READFIELD - Town Manager

8 OLp KenTs HILL RoaDp, READFIELD, MAINE 04355
Office (207) 685-1818* Cell (207) 931-7680
Email: manager@readfieldmaine.org

March 7, 2022

Dear N

This letter is to inform you that the Town of Readfield has now acquired your property located on

, Map -, Lot -, for non- payment of real estate taxes. If you wish to regain
ownership of this property, pursuant to our Disposition of Tax Acquired Property Policy, you need
to pay all past-due taxes, interest, and costs totaling $3, ] as outlined below. Payment must be
received no later than 3:30pm on April 1, 2022. Attached you will find a copy of the referenced
policy.

Please contact me. There are several viable options available to you and the Town wants to help
you regain your property, or if that isn’t possible to get the most value you can for it. Please do not
rush to sell your property for less than fair market value as determined by an appraiser. The Town
assessment does not reflect the value of your property and it 1s almost certainly worth more than the
stated S| 1 will work with the Select Board to help you however we can.

Year Tax Interest Lien Cost Total

. HE B BN B

If you have any questions about this procedure or your options, please contact me at the above
address, email, or phone numbers. We met a few years ago and I look forward to hearing from you
soon so we can figure this out.

Sincerely,

Y.

Eric Dyer, Town of Readfield
Town Manager and Treasurer




Readfield Select Board

o~ Yusg ==
N o
m % DU{ —
7
o eaie UmeT
o=
syue|d snoadeqiaH
S E &
T = sqniys @
= us348i9n] a
93213 apeys @

uogesojudis 1@

A STOTNAS

XIW pass

Ajpualiy-lojeuljjod SALBU U)IM Seale paginisip
[|B P33S 341|P|IMm Joy JaA0D / 1ejigey apiaod 03
PUe Sp|ay||eq Joyng 03 SgNJys pue s3] aAlEU
40 s8ujdnold ppy ‘eale MOpPESLW PaAIasald

PI2Y ||EqUOS MBU 10} UOLBEI0| pasodold
9OUBUSIUIBW JOJ SP|SY 0 Yied ssaday
54018103ds Joy yied o} Jusdelpe sease Bugeas

SI9MO|JP|IM PUB SI5SBIS
SALEU UYIM “JEJIWIS JO ‘PaQ J3J|Y pajue|d

S52008 P|3Y PUR DUBLISJUIBW JOJ 3PIM
1934 +8 'Uied / 2ALIP S$3028 SP|aY|[eq MaN

uoyI3UU0D |Ieg} Buysix3

SSIDVE SBLIBAIBP / I1AIBS Ased apinoid
0) paudi|y pesay |1eJ} Je E2J. UOISSIUOD)

sa1e8
SS302E OMJ UM 20UDJ G 28| UM Padus4
‘1IN0 asn-yinul |[egapiaid / |[egisseq maN

eaJe Sugeas
U2USq UM 1Un02 |[eglaxseq 0] adueljug

SS303B SDUBUSIUIBL PUE 3DIASS 104 yjed uapim
puE UOYEDO| SIY} 03 YSOB HIYS Peay jie) ey
pesy

|leJ3 Ulew ypim Usie 0} pue Jaxnge o1 syoedw
[BNSIA SZIWIUIW 0] SIUBIJUS |I21} P2JEI0|SY

‘SINIWITI NV1d OLA3IA

4
1T
o1

SANNOADNIYA AT13IHAVIY
V HOL3XS 1dIDONOD

123rodd di3ld11va

SJUB]INSUOD)
4
T20Z/vZ/Tea Juawdojeaqg @

PueT-ule
EEED. A P3PEs aunaaiyauy adesspue TR
PH IIIH siu PIC 7
PI3YPESY JO UMoL @ QdVNOITSH M
0} paivdag 13| 10300k

- hE L
ONIMEVd

CHURCH ROAD




- . i SjuElINSUCD)
= JOIOHON IS 13140V 7z02/b2/TRa juswdojanag @
pueT-ulen

21n10311 2y adzospuen) “ﬂ

SSERD AW PIRYPERY

SOLIBUDS UOLIEIDY 3SN-LINIA

pjauUpEaY JO UMO] | QyvNQC31 sy YhAi
Spl=i4 8-9N (€) 9 OTN (T) Yum |legaseg 9 ||eqyos plRl4 ZTN YIM [[EQasEg 9 ||[EGHOS
g IN0AeT Spjald 213|Y1Y 35N BINA V In0AeT Spjald 291y a5 BN
. l\l.\.‘\ll..h ..w.wn\wwtzll-ln . - - " (p— . =

SHNoD
[lBGaPRId 73 [1eqie¥sed
noAeq

HNo) 3SN-BINA




0¥ 0T 01 0 0T

L i ! | ! I L |

i3 1d3DNOD SA13id T1vd SANNOYDYIVL

SNOILD3S SSOYUD

g NOILVA3T3 NOLLD3S

AYVYNO31SY M1

TZ0Z ‘T Yalew 21eg

Z-¥ NOILVAZT3 NOILD3S
e Be— e el
= —_— += =
I“Olwl.rlll ‘nl.. i ..Ipllo.F = = .-...
1-¥ NOILVAI13 NOILD3S




sngo.js snuld ,uoisnjold, “ds smps ponpjb padid pIgnJ snasand)
auld 91y uiaisey ajddeqe.) buliamopy aocnuds ayypn 3eo pay

A

(S3TdNVX3) S33¥ 1L

31137Vd LNV1d d3SOdO¥d — SANNOUONIVA




DIDII2ILIBA X3 DINDWOID Snyy DdIDIOUDIAW DIUOIY
Kisaguayuipy Jewns jueibeiy Kuagadjoyd yoelg

| -

WMpIUap WnuInNgiA D3IIS SNUIOD) SISUBPDUDD 43YIUD)BUY
winuwingi, POOMMOLIY poomboq Jai1sopay K119g3diniag

._.Ammh_i_zmwm,v w.m Dm_ s

31137Vd LNV1d d3SOdO¥d — SANNOYOYIVA




wmjofinual wnwayiupduld SMINSAY UOWIdISU3d snplowau O%GU:OW DY DD2gpPny
JUIA] Uurejunoy anbuojpieag AieH poauspjog Aeun uesns pak3 soej

N %

wnnoisnbup wmyosuLAsIS DIDLIAS sp1dajasy apnbup-abaou 133sy DSOJNISY DPIDUOI
wiaysanjg api pPaaMjJIAl UowIWOD) 1915y puejbuz map jowebiag piIM

Fs0d L \

I‘.“» y i - \ 1 g » . -
4 .

m»._ozm__mm-mo?z_jo& mJOmU<m~_mI uw mm.mmd&.@

(XN @33

31137Vd LNV1d A3SOdO¥dd — SANNOYDHIVA




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
ltem # 21-068

TOWN OF READFIELD

8 OLb KenTs HiLL Roap, READFIELD, MAINE 04355
Office (207) 685-4939 * Fax (207) 685-43420

Website: www.readfieldmaine.org

SELECT BOARD RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, broadband internet services in Readfield are poor and many areas of town do not
have access to the FCC recommended minimum speeds of 25 megabits download and 3 megabits
upload capacity, and;

WHEREAS, it is increasing likely that our residents will need to work from home and require
broadband internet service speeds greater than the FCC minimum speeds, and;

WHEREAS, not having reliable high-speed access in our community will negatively affect our
property values, and;

WHEREAS, we have completed an inventory and mapped locations of unserved, underserved and
claimed to be served by existing service providers, and;

WHEREAS, our town is part of a six-town partnership called the Western Kennebec Lakes
Community Broadband Association seeking to improve broadband internet services which
includes the towns of Fayette, Vienna, Readfield, Wayne, Leeds and Mount Vernon, and;

WHEREAS, there are numerous opportunities for grants to help pay for increasing the reliability
and connectivity speeds to broadband services, and;

WHEREAS, there are many companies interested in providing those services,

NOW THEREFORE, the Readfield Board of Selectmen resolve to participate in a joint effort led
by the Western Kennebec Lakes Community Broadband Association to provide uniform reliable
high speed broadband internet services to all of our commercial and residential property owners.
The goals of this effort is:

1. If the solution is hybrid fiber/coax infrastructure, it must deliver minimum speeds of 100
Mbps download and 10 Mbps upload, with optional speeds of up to 940 Mbps download and
35 Mbps upload.

2. If the solution is Fiber-to-the-Home (FTTH) infrastructure, it must deliver minimum
symmetrical speeds of 100 Mbps, with options to increase to 1 Gbps symmetrical.

3. Reliability of service provided must meet a standard of 99% availability during any 24-
hour period.

4. Availability of service provided must be provided to 100% of the potential subscribers
within each community.

5. Discounted service must be available for low-income households with demonstrated need.

Adopted by Vote of the Readfield Select Board on August 17,2020



November 2, 2021 Special Town Meeting/Secret Ballot Vote Warrant Articles and Notes

Article 1: Elect a moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting.

Articles 2-4 relate to Broadband Internet. They help to establish a set of administrative options and tools to pursue an
economic development and quality of life investment that the voters have expressed an interest in and may be willing to

pay for.

Article 2: Shall the Select Board of the Town be authorized to negotiate one or more agreements for the provision of
high-speed internet service to all Readfield residents through one or more third party service providers, with any final
agreement(s) and funding requiring voter approval?

While a municipally owned and privately operated fiber optic network is the current preferred service option for many
reasons, pursuing a privately owned commercial network with the possibility of town investment and/or incentives
should be looked at. Article 2 authorizes the Select Board to actively consider this option and helps to gauge public
interest in this alternative.

Article 3: Shall the Select Board of the Town be authorized to enter into one or more agreements, at one time or from
time to time, and apply for, accept and expend revenues from Federal, State, and private grant sources, either on behalf of
the Town of Readfield or the Western Kennebec Lakes Community Broadband Association to offset the cost design,
acquisition, construction and equipping of a broadband fiber optic network to be owned by the Town of Readfield and
operated by a third party to serve all of the residents of the Town of Readfield?

We are currently estimating that 5-10% of potential project costs could be covered by grant funding. That number
could be higher or lower. Partnering with other municipalities in applying for grant funds will likely improve our
chances and the amount of funds we receive.

Article 4: Shall the Select Board of the Town be authorized to (a) enter into, at one time or from time to time, one or
more agreements providing for the design, acquisition, construction and equipping of a broadband fiber optic network to
be owned by the Town of Readfield and operated by a third party to serve all of the residents of the Town of Readfield,
(b) appropriate a sum not to exceed $5,000,000 for the foregoing, and (c) fund the foregoing appropriation by borrowing,
on behalf of the Town, a sum not to exceed $5,000,000 on such terms as the Select Board determines are necessary and
proper pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §5772 and other applicable Maine law, including the issuance, at one time or from time
to time, of general obligation bonds (and notes in anticipation thereof) of the Town of Readfield in a sum not to exceed
$5,000,000, including fixing the dates, maturities, denominations, interest rates, places of payment, premiums, calls for
redemption with or without premium, forms and other details of said bonds and notes, and to provide for the sale thereof,
for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the costs of the foregoing broadband fiber optic network?

Select Board recommends: Yes Budget Committee recommends: Yes

While Article 4 necessarily authorizes borrowing it does not commit the Board to taking that action. The Select Board
is planning on either a second Special Town Meeting this coming spring or putting forward articles at the upcoming
June meeting to approve any final broadband infrastructure program. The Budget Committee and public will have
additional opportunity to consider future costs and a final proposal. Here are a few other reasons this article is being
proposed now:
o The Select Board and Broadband Committee want to know if residents are truly interested in fiber optic
Broadband Internet for all residents and are willing to support the project financially. The advisory vote in
June received about 75% support but had no associated cost.
o Wedon’t have all the details but we do have a reliable cost estimate developed by a reputable consultant that
we have been working with for two years. The estimated monthly cost to the average homeowner of building a
municipally owned fiber optic network would be about 820 paid through taxes. Depending on the number of
subscribers the total cost of the network and monthly service fees could be comparable to the current cost of
internet for our residents and would be faster and more reliable while maintaining local ownership, equity, and
control over service which also have significant value.
* Having a vote on potential financing demonstrates to prospective vendors and grant making agencies that
there is public support for the project, which is critically important.



(U%)

The lead time on borrowing is several months and town meeting authorization is needed in order to even be
considered for borrowing.

If approved and pursued Article 4 will have no impact on this year’s budget or mil rate as the borrowing would
result in a Fall of 2022 bond payment.

No grant funds were considered in the 85,000,000 borrowing estimate and our current actual cost estimate is
$4,400,000 including a 10% contingency. The amount borrowed and true tax impact will likely be less than
shown, but we are taking a conservative approach and planning for the worst case scenario.

The infrastructure would be owned by the Town and we would contract with a service provider for
maintenance and repair of the infrastructure and with an Internet Service Provider (ISP) for the internet. The
Town will not manage the system directly but through oversight of contractors.

MUNICIPAL TREASURER’S FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Town Indebtedness

A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $826,728.19

B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $395,000.00

C. Bonds to be issued if Article 4 is approved: $5.,000,000.00
Total: $6,221,728.19

Costs- Warrant Article 4 Municipal Fiber Network
At an estimated interest rate of two point one nine five percent (2.195%) for a term of twenty (20) years, the
estimated cost of this bond issue will be:

A. Total Bond Principal: $5,000,000.00
B. Total Estimated Interest: $1,203,913.41
C. Total Estimated Debt Service: $6,203,913.41

Validity- The validity of the bonds and of the voters’ ratification of the bonds may not be affected by any errors
in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate,
the ratification by the electors is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not affected by
reason of the variance.

Debt Limit— In accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. §5701 & §5702, a municipality may not borrow funds if the
borrowing would cause the municipality to exceed its debt limit.

A. 2021 State Valuation: $301,400,000
B. Limit Factor: x7.5%
C. Debt Limit: $22.,605,000.00

Articles 6-10 relate to changes to the Land Use Ordinance. These changes were originally proposed in June as a
single article but are being presented again as six separate articles, and without any clarification or changes relating to
community center/clubs. That issue will likely be addressed at a later date. Where referenced below “A copy of the
said Ordinance” can be found at www.readfieldmaine.org or by contacting the Readfield Town office.

Article 5: Shall an ordinance entitled 2021 Non-Conforming Structure Amendments to the Town of Readfield Land
Use Ordinance, be enacted? (A copy of said Ordinance is attached to this Warrant.)

Non-Conforming Structures (structures that do not meet current setbacks and other requirements). Current rules
allow for some expansion, reconstruction or relocation. Proposed Changes to Non-Conforming Structures: Article 3,
Section 4 of Land Use Ordinance

A number of grammatical and reorganizing changes are proposed to current rules regarding expansions,
relocations or reconstruction of non-conforming structures, in order to improve readability and clarity.
Clarifies that if any portion of a non-conforming structure is located within the 100 foot setback, or less, than
the entire structure may not be expanded beyond the limits allowed in the most restrictive set back area.

o For example, if the structure straddles both the 25-75 foot waterbody/wetland set back, where total
[floor area of the structure may not be expanded beyond 1,000 square feet and the structure is also
within the 75-100 foot set back zone where the total floor area limit is 1,500 square feet, then the entire
structure is limited to the 1,000 square foot limit.

Allows for up to a 50% reduction in side and rear setbacks for non-conforming structures and expansions if
this reduction would increase the distance that the structure is from the waterbody. This can only be done if
the abutter does not object and if otherwise consistent with the LUO.

For Example: Required setbacks are: 100 feet from water, 20 feet from side property lines, and 50 feet from roads.



z of | S| epT S| zsTr $|ezstr $ | 000'0sw S
= S = Slerr S| 968 S| 968 s | ooo'ose S
= 3 | s |ogo s | ot slove $ | ooo'osz g
E OB | s [ sro S| vee S| v8'e $ | 000'0ST S
z S s s [ato S| stt S| szt $ | 000°08 S
¥ (sanjep Auadoad 199195 104) anjea YIoMIaN AJYIUOA |eNpISaY
0 O TT6/9L000:0 88ZEHT900°0 88ZEFTI00°0 anjeA anJddYy 03 3ley 1IN
955'855'STE S| 955'855STE S | 955'855°GZ€ §'| 955°855°5Z¢ S | 9ss'8ss's2E S (a38W1353 £207 434 |EISI]) uolienjep Ayiadoad ajqexel
e Shje S | 000052 s [ ooo‘ooo'z $ | 0o0*000°Z s 93BLNST AN|eA YIOMIIN |SENPISAY
s||1q 49q1asqns 03 paljdde uiag umol 03, punyad, QES 5323|4ad udiud Woixy .
peojumoq S/qNOQT Bulpaadxa |[9A3] JIAIAS }SAIMOT
SOI1BJ UOIINGIIIUOI pUB 51502 d4Y uodn paseq x3de) wnJdads
708 S | 648 s | evser S| ST'60T S| 88 S | oo0‘0sy S
S6'6L S| a8 s [ oTver S| €zo0tT S| veve s | ooo‘0sE S
L96L S| a8 S | es6TT S| osTe S | 79799 S | ooo‘0sz S
ot'6L S| STI8 $ | 09°STT S| 8eZ8 S | ¥9'8S $ | ooo‘osT S
ET'6L S | SL6L S| LTTTT S| orEL S | vvos $ | ooo‘os S
Jamnoy yum 1s0) Ajyuop 1v.L0L
7208 s | sLeg S | 617°8TT S| s166 S| vesL s | ooo'osy S
S6'6L ) s | 9TvIT S| gCoe S| vTLs s | ooo'ose S
L9'6L 5| el S | €8'60T S | og18 S| pr6s $ | 000'052 S
0t'6L - 5 |stIg s | 0g:50T S| seze s | vo1s S | 000°0ST S
EL'6L S | sLeL s zrTor S| ar'g9 S| veTy $ | 00005 S
: (22ueInsu| + $394 321A195 pue Pedw| Xe] Jo wns) 3500 Ajyuow
€TT s |sLo s | ev6T S| sTOY s | st9g S | 000’0SY S
96'0 S| sTs S | 9T'ST S| €ETTE S | SE°82 S | ooo‘ose S
89°0 S| SLE S | €8°0T S | ogzT s | szoz S | 000°0ST S
) S|see S | 0s9 S| 8E'ET s|ster $ | ooo‘ost S
¥T0 S| SL0 S| LITT S| ory s|sov s | ooo‘os S
(sanjen Auadouad 10995 J0) edw) xe]) jende) Ajyiuowy
00’y S |00y S| o0% S| ooy S - 5 ("212 ‘e1835 ‘|RIaPa4) S934 puk saxe] AJyluo
= S < $'| 00°0T S| 0001 S| 05¢L S 234 4210y / I
66°67 s|eé 00°00% = S s 3 224 uolle||elsu| Swil-3uQ
o S - S - S - S| 06'€ S (2384 33E1 8 JA/000 STS UO paseq) saa4 adueansu] Ajyjuow
66'17L s | oosL S [ ootse S| 00'ss $ | 66'VE $ v (934 uondunsqgns) Bunesado Ajyiuow
S0-350Z8Z'E |8T66£T000°0 S896T5000°0 ST90£0T00°0 TY6TL6000°0 921AI3S 3G3Q JIA0D 03 d1eY |IIN
955/895'SCE S | 955895/STE S [ 955'855°SZE S | 955'855°STE S | 956'855°SZE S (93eWnls3 €707 Je9A [BI514) uonen|ep Aadold ajqexel
S89°0T S| #La'ss S | 881°69T S | srs'are S | vZP'oTE S (%5°Z “4A0Z) @21M135 1qaQ pazijenuuy
$SELIT S | 99t'LTA S | ser'8ie'y s | ge6'T1TS s | 682'956't $ asuadx3 |eyde) sso0up
R ST6 vES 7€S s13aquIsqng
V/IN WIN %09 %SE %GE ajey ayeL T-1edA
0T/00T 0T/00T 00T/00T 000T/000T 00T/001T (s/qu ut) ad1n435 jo [9na]
» Wn1adsg auozpay ddd Xuien 07249 X11eW ~ 0189 Wolxy

S31eWIYST 31500 A|YIUOA ,3I1AIS JO [IAIT,, 3DUIDIU]




Readfield Select Board

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT & CONTRACT March 14, 2022
TOWN OF READFIELD AND ERIC W. DYER ltem # 22-103

This Employment Agreement & Contract outlines the terms and conditions of employment for the
position of Town Manager by and through the Select Board of the Town of Readfield, Maine and Eric W,
Dyer. The effective date of this agreement is March 1, 2022,

Duties and Appointments

Mr. Eric W. Dyer agrees to perform faithfully and diligently the duties of Town Manager, fulfilling
all statutory obligations for Town Manager as described in Maine law, together with obligations as described
in Town Manager’s Roles and Responsibilities as approved on February 10, 2014 and as modified by the
Select Board from time to time, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

It is expected that the Town Manager will also serve the following annual administrative
appointments: Tax Collector, Treasurer, Road Commissioner, Freedom of Access Act (FOAA) Information
Officer, and Welfare Administrator as prescribed by the Town of Readfield’s ordinances and procedures,
including any other municipal positions to which appointed by the Select Board.

Salary

Annual salary shall be payable in accordance with the payroll procedures in place for all Town
employees. Base salary as of July 1, 2022 shall be $82,000. Annually at the anniversary of this contract,
beginning on July 1, 2023, a minimum salary change of the Northeast Regional Consumer Price Index for all
goods and services for the 12-month period ending in April of the current year will be implemented. The
Select Board reserves the right to supplement the CPI adjustment with additional merit pay, as deemed
appropriate at the sole discretion of the Select Board. The Town Manager shall receive a $3,000 merit pay
bonus in Fiscal Year 2022, paid in March of 2022.

Performance Evaluations

A Performance Evaluation will be conducted annually by the anniversary of employment, which may
include a full 360 degree review component, including comments developed in advance by the Town
Manager. Results, including any plans for improvement, will be jointly developed and signed by the Select
Board and by the Town Manager and included in the Town Manager’s personnel file. Less formal semi-
annual reviews may be held to determine progress and any resources or support necessary to help achieve or
adjust to evolving priorities. The evaluation tools and documents to be used in the annual and semi-annual
evaluations are attached to and incorporated as part of this contract. These documents may be amended by
mutual agreement.

Personal Time Off

PTO will be granted at 23 days per year. PTO will be cumulative and any unused balance may be
carried forward to subsequent years. Total PTO accrual, at the end of the Fiscal Year, will not exceed 120
hours. Upon separation, the Town will compensate the Town Manager for 100% of all accrued PTO-based
upon the Town Manager’s salary as of the date of separation.

Health and Dental and Vision Insurance

The Town shall pay 100% of the cost of the health insurance through the MMEHT POS 200 plan for
the Town Manager, and 100% of the dental and vision insurance premium for the Town Manager. If the
Town Manager elects any additional dependent insurance premiums, the Town Manager shall pay for such

1




cost. Any consideration of a plan change during the contract period will be negotiated jointly by the Select
Board and Town Manager. Town will establish an employee account in the amount equal to the maximum
out of pocket requirements for the POS 200 plan to be paid towards the out of pocket maximum associated
with the POS 200 plan.

Retirement

The Town participates in the Social Security System. Both the Town and the Town Manager shall
make the required respective contribution to the System, the amounts of the contributions to be determined in
accordance with federal law. The Town shall also contribute to the Town Manager’s retirement plan.

Contributions and payment shall be made in accordance with the plan in place for the Town of Readfield.

Travel Allowance

At his discretion, the Town Manager shall use private transportation on Town business. He will be
paid for all actual and necessary use of private transportation on Town business at the current IRS mileage
reimbursement rate for private vehicles or the actual cost of the transportation for mass transit. Incidental
vehicle expenses (tolls and parking) will be reimbursed when documented with any other travel expenses on
an expense report along with receipts.

Professional Development

The Town agrees to budget for and pay for the professional dues, subscriptions, travel and seminar
registrations and related expenses of the Town Manager for professional participation, meetings, workshops
and training adequate to continue his professional development. Said participation on Town time may
include the international City Manager’s Association, Maine Town and City Manager’s Association, and
other national, regional, state and local groups that the Town Manager and Select Board agree are desirable.
The Town Manager may attend the Maine Municipal Association convention and the Maine Town and City
Management annual meeting. Subject to annual budget constraints, the Town Manager may attend either the
International City Manager’s Association or National League of Cities annual meeting on a biennial basis.

Term and Termination

The initial Term of this contract shall be three years extending from July 1, 2022 through June 30,
2025. The Select Board shall notify the Town Manager on or prior to June 30, 2023 as to whether it wishes
to negotiate a one-year extension of this contract through 2026, and again prior to June 30, 2024 as to
whether it wishes to negotiate a one-year extension of this contract through 2027. A one-year extension will
occur automatically if no notice received prior to June 30.

The Select Board may terminate the Town Manager’s contract for cause or malfeasance at any time.
No severance payment or continuation of health or dental insurance will be required of the Town in the event
of termination for cause or malfeasance.

The Select Board may choose, for any reason, without the requirement to prove cause or
malfeasance, to terminate or decline to renew the Town Manager’s contract at any time. In this case, the
Town will pay the Town Manager a severance amount equal to three months (25%) of the current annual
salary and continue the Town Manager’s health and dental insurance for three months from the date of
termination, or end of the contract period in the event of non-renewal.

The Town Manager will give three months prior notice in the event he intends to resign his
employment with the Town, without any severance pay or additional benefits beyond the date of resignation,
unless otherwise negotiated with the Select Board.




Indemnification

The Town will defend and indemnify the Town Manager against any tort, professional liability claim
or demand or other legal action, whether or not it appears to have merit, arising out of an alleged act or
omission occurring in the performance of the Town Manager’s duties, except if the claim alleges fraud or
other intentional torts or a criminal act, and as prohibited by law. The Town will either litigate or
compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any judgment or settlement rendered
thereon, whether levied against the Town of Readfield or the Town Manager personally. Indemnification
will extend beyond termination of employment, to provide full and complete protection to the Town
Manager, by the Town of Readfield, as described herein, for any acts lawfully undertaken or committed as
Town Manager, regardless of whether the notice or filing of such a claim or lawsuit occurs during or after
the Town Manager’s employment with the Town.

Other Benefits and Obligations

Some other benetits and obligations shall be provided in accordance with the management and
Personnel Policies of the Town of Readfield. The provisions in the Personnel Policies on Work
Performance Evaluation, Grievances, Discipline and Appeals do not apply to the employment of the Town
Manager. In lieu of these procedures, this contract will refer to MMA’s guidelines on these items.

Signatures

Town Manager:

Read and agreed to: Date:
Eric W. Dyer, Town Manager

Select Board for the Town of Readfield:

Read and agreed to:

Dennis Price, Chair Kathryn Mills Woodsum, Vice Chair
Carol Doorenbos Ralph Eno
Sean Keegan Date




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
Item # 22-089

FY 23 BUDGET - DRAFT

Last Updated March 10, 2022

Draft 3

3/10/2022




TToz/ot/e

%L£9°9T 98€'8 S L0L'BS S LIV'ET $ TZEOS $ 190°4Z $ £20'vT $ 2SL'89 $ S3IUAIDY B ‘Syded ‘UOIIEDIIBY - 0F
%09'EES 8997 $ 89Tt S v8LT $ 00S $ 91€'E S 1997 $ 889 $ SIEIL g
%606 0st $ 000 $ BLT $ 0SLT $ 0EST S 08t $ 66T'E s saiuadold UmoL og
%08°0 0s S 00£9 S €68T $ 00'0SZ'9 016 S - $ glE'9t $ UQISSIWIWIOD UONBAJISUOD Qg
%00°2E 009t S 0099 $ 0TT's S 000's $ 000°€ $ v06'L S - $ sheg afeliaq ¢z
%09'vT PTLT $ 00€7TT S S8LY $ 985'8T $ 8I0'% S T89S S Ltv'e S pJeog uoneslddy oz
%1v'9 v0T'T $ 6EEQT $ 9796 $ SETLT $ 98Tt S 1628 S 6€0'6 S yseag or

S21JIAIIDY B ‘Siled ‘UOIIR3IdY - OE

% £202-2202 $ £202-220T 139ang €207 "22d <= Q1A 2202 13sana zzoz IVNLIY T20T IVYNLIV 0202 1YNLIV 6T0T NOISIAIQ 1NJNLYYdIa

%Y9°L- (g9z’s) $ £0.'69 S £88°98 S 99t'sL $ 0SZ'v9 $ TEE'EY $ I6T'9L S $331A195 AjuNWWo) - 5§
i 08 $ 00§ $ SET s ozy $ 0IT'T e s - 3 WeQq 2)e7 J00BURIBIN (g
i (000s) S 5 S vIZ'8Y $ 000'S s - s - s - g pueqpeolg gy
%ST'T8- (0sz°e) $ osL 5 80z $ 000'Y $ Eepe $ 5L0%9 $ 0209 $ sw3n122as o9
%9T'¢C 091 S SvZ'L S T96°C $ S80°L S w19 S SLEE S 0Iv'y S AL $$920Y 21|gnd P|3Ypedy pg
%8T 6T 79Tt S BIEWY $ vz8'oz $ 999'L€ $ 0069 S vIvLE S 8IST S Aeign oy
%9L'v- (oot) $ 000 § EELS $ 0012 $ 0ST $ 76T $ S9g'g $ Ajpusug a8y gg
%000 - S 005t S 9zT'Y $ 00§t $ STED $ TOEt $ STETV $ 900 A3j|eA 29g2uudy g7
%000 - $ 0sz $ - $ 0S¢ $ 0sT $ 0sZ $ - S 1SNJL pue 23gaUUd) gz
%E0'VE- (s16'v) S 0£5'6 S L8PV S SEPpT $ 0I6'TT S STLTI S EPSTT S |043U0] [BWIUY QT

S32IAIRS ANUNWWOD) - §7

% €207-220T $ £20Z-2202 139aN8 €207 924 <= QLA 7202 139an8 220z TVNLOY TZ0T 1YNLIV 0202 IYNLOY 6T0Z NOISIAIG LIN3WLY¥Yd3a

%Z9°0T S8E'ST $ _00€'09T $ 106'6S S SIGE'BPI $  v9Z'TZI $ 697°0ZT $  8ET'60T S 3jueudjulelp - ZT
%00'0 = S 000SZ'8 630t S 0528 S 60ETT S 6779 S tvov's [3 23ueudiuiely dinb3 /apiysp g
%0t - (0st'T) S 00°0S¥'bE LTLTT S 006'SE S gIv'es S 9ST'SY $ Tse'sE 3 @aueuqutely Sulpiing gz
%TL9T SE8'9T $ 00'009'LTT 989°Er $ S9L'00T $ LES'SL S 8889 $ 8r'v9 $ SJUBURIUIEN |eI3USD) g

DIUBUIUIBA - ZT

% £202-2202 $ €£202-27202 139an4d €207 224 <= A1A TT0T 13oang zzot IVNLOY 1202 1YNLOV 0202 1YNLIY 6102 NOISIAIQ IN3I1HYdaa

%59'6 2E8'65 S 0£6'6L9 $ LLL'v6T S 860'079 S 12Z'08F S LTTThY $  SOT'06t $ uoneJISIuIWPY - 0T
%00°00T 000°st $ 000°0S S LT6'8 $ 000'sZ $ /P36 $ 8p86T ¢ 06T'ST ¢ sadInes [eFa7 gy
%00’ - S 00ST S LE6 S 005°T S IwL S 96S'T $ - $ douelsissy Buleaq oy
%L9TH- (000°s) $ 0002 $ §e7'9 $ 000t $ - § - $ 058 $ duluueld 1B BULA URID o9
%00'0S- (0s) $ 0S $ . $ 001 o $ 5 ¢ . $ pieog sjeaddy gg
%EL L~ (s8) $ ST0'T $ TIf€T $ 00T'T S 66% $ . $ SCT S pieog Suluueld of
%L6°9 StE'S $ 09078 $ 08g'ce S STL'9¢ S 88C'sS S LST6T $ 00179 S JUIWRI0UT 3IPOD ¢
%VE'ST 0009 S SL9'6T S L96°TI $ SL9'ee S TEUTT S TESLT S TLI'ST S 3uIssassy gz
%89°C 08T S 0069 $ S9T'E S 0zZL9 S ETL'S $ S0z S VIG6'S S wswdinb3 32140 o7
%19t 796'9 S S/8LST S 6¥6'LL $ €I6'0ST $ 8er'9zT S TT66IT S E6LTIT S Qaueinsul 77
%899 087’1 S §S8'TPE $ 986'TST $ SLETTE $ BE9'09T S 6ST9VE S 796'65T S uonensiuwpy gt

UOIJBJISIUIWPY - 0T

% €20T-220Z $ €£207-220T 1390N4 €207 930 <= ALA TZ0T 13nang zzoz IYNLIV 120 IYNLOV 0202 IYNLOY 6T0Z NOISIAIQ LINaWLYYd3a

sasuadx3 €707 Ad




zzoz/ot/e

%00°8 650112 S  bvez'ovL'E $ BI9TELT S SET'EIV'E S B06'FEY’E S VEE'OTLE S 096°'955’E $ uonesnp3l - G/
%00°8 650212 $ veT'ovL'E $ S8I9TELT $ SET'EIPE $ 806'FESE $ PREDTLE $ 096'95S'E S REH# NSY 0T

uoleanp3 - 6/

% €202-220T $ €202-2202 1390N49 €202 220 <= QLA 2T0T 139an9 zzoz 1VNLOV 1202 VN1V 0202 1VN1DY 6T0Z NOISIAIG ANIWLYVYd3a

%b8°S 0I6'8T $  SLS'TVE $ S8E'09T $ s99'sze $ 198'80¢ S TLB'T8T $ 9vz'zee S 2158\ PI|OS - 0L
%000 2 $ 005 $ 959 $ 005 $ LOL'T $ T6ET $ 0198 $ Q0deg pg
%68°S 0T6'8T S SL0'0pE $ 6ZL°65T $ S9T'TZE $ bST'L0E $ T8t°08¢ $ 9EL'€8T S uonels f9sued) g1

S1SEM PIOS - 0/

% €202-220T $ €£202-7202 139an9 €202 '92d <= 1A ZZ0Z 1390an8 zzoz VNIV TZ0Z 1YNLIV 0202 YNV 6102 NOISIAIQ ININIYYdIa

%L0°89S LTB'BTT'S $ S89TE0’9 $  S9v'ZE $ 858706 $ ££0'SL0'T $ vIZ'62S S E£L5961 $ sjuawanosdwi jeyde) - g9
- - g o= ghes, = b s S - S LEBT6T S TPS'9E S WweQ 93e7 Jo0eURIEIN g
- - $ = $ - $ . $ 0zeT $ e $ - $ sjuawanoldwi Suip|ing umoL ¢g
%t {Z8'T $ 8059t S SLY'T S T89'vY $ v08'6T $ 9LTLT $ TIT'Z9 $ uonels J3ysuell gz
%0 - $ L1 $ 419 $ LL19 § - $ $ 8ET9T $ sasea [ended gg
%0 § $ 000°ST S = $ 000'sT S LLT'9 s - $ Sov'sT 3 wawdinbl gg
%LT- (000z2) $ 000°0s€ s - $ 0007z S TrO'TEY S EPTL6 $ 8069 $ SPeoY gg
: (000s?) S - S - $ 000'Sw 5 5 = S - $ SY|eM3IPIS (g
%00T 000's S 00001 $ . $ Q00's $ - $ - $ 0608 g Aisrawa) gp
= 000°0% S 00009 S = $ 00001 $ - g - $ - g aseds uado c¢
" (o00’sg) $ 000ST S - $ 000°0s § LLT'T9 S TL809 S 686'T S uipying Aleaqn pg
= 000°STY $ 000°00S S €789 $ 000's8 S S9LT $ - $ SS0T $ uoneasddy B ied ¢z
= 00001 $ 00002 S S9E'TT $ 00001 $ - $ 048 $ 6549 S IIEH 211D oz
- (o00‘002) s - g $ 000002 $ T8E'pES $ 9E6'FST $ SLEULT $ UOIIPPY UONeIS Al 7T
. . S S S S = S = 5 0 S uoneis ald pr
3 5 $ 000°0T S 6799 $ 00001 $ 0019 $ 0899 $ - $ uawiedag aig g
2 000°000°'S S 000000'S S - S - S - < - $ - $ 12uJa1u| pueqpeolq 7z
- 0006 $ 0006 $ = S - S [9T'ET S - $ 0009 $ A3ojouyoal "ulwpy

syuswsnoldwi jeyded - g9

% £202-7202 $ €2T0T-ZT0T 139ang €207 '230 <= Q1A TZ0T 139an8 zzoz IVNLDY TZ0Z 1YNLIY 0202 YNLOV 6102 NOISIAIQ INIW1YYd3a

%8E'ST 008'9L S 0S9'v6v S E86'EVT $ 0S8'LTv $ SLT'OTE $ E6T'LZE $ TLS'V6E S ageulelq g speoy - 09
%5992 000'8L $ 0s9'0L¢ $ 0Z00gT $ 059'26T $ LTT'v9e $ Lg6'09¢ $ T€9'19¢ S SQUBUSIUIBIN IRWUIM  of
%96~ (0o0z'T) $ 000vZT $ €96°ET $ 007'SZT $ 8ve'sy $ 957'99 $ Ov6ZET $ SJUBUSUIRIN PROY QT

a8euledq @ SpeOY - 09

% £202-220T $ €£20Z-2207 1390N8 €20Z '93q <= Q1A TZ0T 1390an49 2202 TYNLIY 1202 1YNL1DY 0202 IYNLOY 6T0T NOISIAIG LININLY¥Yd3a

%0T v1- (00Z’€) $ 00S'6T S €££8°9 $ 00422 $ 80091 $ zov's $ 99901 S S9141913WaD - 0§
%bT- (o0z’c) $ 00561 $ ££89 $ 00LTT $ 800°9T S Tov'8 $ 999°0T S SalgIaWa) UMOL o1

S311313Wa) - 0S

% €20T-720T $ £202-220T 139an49 €202 *73d <= A1A 2202 13Inans zzoz IYNLIY 1202 IVNLIY 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ IN3WLHVYdIa

%Z0'PT 0r9’'1Z $ SL6'sLt $ 208°t9 $ SEE'PST $  6L8'6II $  6ZS'SIT $ v68'6YT S uo13103310.d - O
- 00S < 0001 $ E $ 005 $ = $ T 5 z ¢ suonesadQ Aduadlawl gy
%¥8'8 05T'E $  000°0v $ s0L'€T $ 0SL'9e $ £95'sE $ 9/8'EE $ 6197 s Juiynedsig oy
%000 g $ 055'Y S vi6'Y $ 0ss'y S 69T'T $ S69'L S veeEL S $OMS IIMOL gg
%ZT 0t 0627'ST $ 00t'es $ SS0'6T $ OTT'8€ S T9T'ZE S 0vZ'9z $ 09%'sT $ adueNqUY oz
%6Y°E 009°C $ ST0'LL $ 8er'oz S STY'pL S 786'0S S 8TLlv $ T6t't6 $ wawuedsgald

Uu0I1323104d - OF

% £20Z-220T $ £202-2202 1390N4 €202 220 <= ALA TZ0Z 139an9g 7702 1VNLIY TZ0Z 1YNLIY 0202 1YNLIY 6102 NOISIAIG AINIWLY¥Yd3a

sasuadx3 €207 Ad




T70z/01/

%6'8L £06'205'S $ B9E9LP'ZTT S TSE'EOT'E S 99v'El6’9 $  820°0£9°9 $  [SS'IY0°9 $ 89£'STO'9 $ 1IVIOL

%00°0S- (000’s) $ 000's $ 196 S 000°0T S TIIZ $ 88T $ 89 S 9JURISISSY |BIBUID - 56
%00'05" (000°s) $ 000'S $ 196 $ 00001 $ TIT $ 88T S 789 S SIUBISISSY [BIOUDD T

2IUR)SISSY [RIDBUID - G6

% €20T-720T $ €202-2202 139aN8 €202 '92Q <= A1A ZZ0Z 1390an8 zzoz VALY TZ0Z 1YNLIV 0202 VLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ AINIWLYYd3a

%1 69- (80£'€02) S 806 S LL8'6T $ 950'v6Z S geg'op $ L9f'9T $ 9S£ZE $ payissejpun - 06
%00'09- (0009) S 000t S 2 $ 00001 3 - < - g 2 & UoNen[ersd gg
%000 e $ 00001 $ . $ 000'0T $ 000'sT S % S - S puny asudialul playpesy g
%IV'1T 6.1 S 8pL'T $ 69ST $ 6951 S 9P S pPET § LLET $ Fuiigowmous g
%00°0 - $ 000'sZ S - $ 000'sZ $ 6vE9 $ G871 S 6v0'E S AousBunuo) oy
%0T'€ Sot $ 000°sT S GLE'ET S SESYT $ S8TYI S 8PI'ET $ 9E0tT S sanuady youd-uoN gz
%000 = $ 00001 S 5 < 000'0T $ - $ €8¢ 5 2 ¢ Ja19y xe] Auadold [e07 1
%6L°88" (zse'L6T) $ 000'sZ $ EE6'PT $ 7s6'tee $ €70t S wv'e $ S68ET ¢ (WeapianQ /1uswaleqy) Aesang gt

pa1jIsse|aun - 06

% £202-220T $ €£202-7202 139an9 €207 '23d <= A1A ZZ0T 13nang zzoz IYNLOY 1202 1YNLIVY 0202 1YNLIVY 6T0Z NOISIAIO AININLYVdIa

%TT'68 ZTLTIT $ 9v6‘9gz S tr9'TIT $_wvze'set $ EP6'ES $ 9s5s'ss $  T9T'vIE $ 321A435 1q9Q - 58
= zzr'st $ DES0E S = $ 8ov's $ - $ - 3 - g puog ‘Iun\ TZ0Z S8
. (rat) S 8L6'SY S 8991t S Trr'oy S 9rr'6 S = S ¢ \ed pEQZ) puog "pling IUNIN 0Z0Z 0g
. i 5w 5 Tz s - s - s - S €£8'95T ¢ (i4oded 6T0z) puod peoY 800 o
%00 - (s8€) S 1S8'8T $ STLUT $ 6T $ vI96T $ EL6'6T $ vL0T ¢ 1) Weq 19)InQ e joodeuIEN pp
= = S 2 S J $ z S - S s $ LTT'60T ¢ (yohed 1Z0z) puog peoy €T0Z sz
: s S £57'88 S = g - S - SR § = $ puog |edRIUNIAI €202 £z
%6Y'T - (808) $ pIe'es $ T9T'ES S TET'WS $ €88'%S $ €85'SsS $ 8egz'9s $ (4yohed gzoz) NIl 3 g

2JIAJ3S 1937 - 58

% €20T-720T $ €207-220T 1390aN8 €202 '22d <= ALA 2Z0T 139an8 zzoz IVN1DY TZ0Z 1YNLDY 0202 1YNLOV 6T0Z NOISIAIG INJNLYYd3a

%00° 5 S EvL'6IE S EVL'6IE $ EWLGTE $ 9v8‘00E $  66E'SST $  ¥69'99Z s xe] Auno) - 18
%00°0 5 $ EVL6TE $ €rL'6IE $ €pL6IE $ 9¥8°00€ $ 66E'SST $  ¥69'99¢ S XeL AlUN0) 23G3UUBY gz

xe] AJunod - T8

% €202-2202 $ €202-220¢ 139aN8 €20T '223d <= Q1A 2Z0T 1394n8 7202 TYNLIY TZ0T 1YNLOV 0202 IYNLIV 6102 NOISIAIG LNIWLYYd3a

%67’ E £19'T S £190S $ S65°TE $ 000'6% S vEQ'LY $ E6S'LY $ 9lT'of s suoljezjuesiQ jeuoiday - 08
%00°0 2 S 000'st S LE99T $ 000'sC $ LET'WC S 96L'%T S L60'vT S Hed sl gp
%TL'9 ET9'T $ E€19'sT S 8SE'ST S 000t S L6L'TT S L6L'TT $ 64022 §  12MISIQ pPRysdsie/ 99550QQ0D o1

suoljeziuediQ |euoiday - 0]

% €£202-220Z $ €202-2720C 1390N4 €202 '23d <= A1A 2202 139ans zzoz IVNLIV TZ0T IVNLIV 0202 1VNLOV 6102 NOISIAIQ INJINLHVdIa

sasuadx3 €707 Ad




zeoz/ot/e

%6°8L €06'205'S § 69E9LPTT S TISG'SOT'E S 99b'EL6'9 $ 8Z0'0£9'9 $ LSS'LY0'9 S 89g£'ST09 $ 1vlolL

%0°0S- (000's) $ 000s S 196 $ 00001 $ TIZ $ 881 $ 789 $ 3JUe)S|SSY [B4BUID - 56
%169~ (80€'€02) S 8pL'06 S LL8'6T $ 950'v6T S EEEor S L9E°9T $ 9GEZE $ paiissepun - 06
%68 TTLTIT S 9¥6'9ET $ vr9TTT S tee'sel S EV6'ES S 955'SL $ 79T'vIe S 92IAJIBS 1q9Q - 58
%00 = S EvL6TE $ EFL'6IE S €vLBLE S 9¥8'00E S BBESST S ¥69°992 S xe] Ajuno) - 18
%E'E €191 $ €19°0§ $ S65TE $ 00061 $ PEQ'LY $ E€6S'LY $ 9/T'9% $ suoneziuediQ |euol3ay - 08
%0°8 6S0°LLT S veT'opL's $ BI9TELT S GET'EIV'E $ 806'VEY‘E S PBE0TL'E $ 096955'¢ S uoneonpy - g7
%8°S 016'8T S GLS'TPE S S8E09T S S99'€re $ T198'80¢ S T/8T8T S 9vZT6T S 31SeM PIOS - 0L
%1895 LT8'8TT'S $ S89'TE09 $ SOv'ZE $ 858706 $ EE0°S/0'T $ $1Z'627S $ £4596T $ syuawanosdwy jeyide) - 59
% 8T 008°9¢ S 0S9'v6Y S E86'EPT S 0S8LIV $ SLT01E S E6T'LZE S TLS'V6E S adeure.q '3 speoy - 09
%I 'vI- (00Z'€) S 00S'6T $ €£8°9 S 00LCe $ 800791 S Zov'g $ 99901 S S3IIBW) - 0S5
%01 0r9'1e S SL6'SLT S T08'L9 $ SEEVST S G6L8'6TT $ 6TSSTT S Pv68'6YT $ uo13930.4d - Ot
%L'9T 98€'8 S £0L8S S LLV'ET S TZE'0S $ 19012 S EC0've S TSL'89 $ SAIUAIDY 7B ‘SHed ‘UOIIERIIBY - OF
%9°L- (€9£°S) S £0.°69 $ 18898 $ 99%'sL $ 0ST'v9 S TEE'E9 $ T6T'9¢ $ 533145 Ajlunwwo) - 57
%9°0T S8E'ST $  00€'09T $ T06'6S S SI6WHT S v9z'TCT $ 69z7'0ZT S 8€T'60T S 3lueuajuleA - ZT
%9'6 TEB'6S S 0£6'649 S LLL'F6T $ 860029 S 17208t S LTT'Tod $  SOT'06¥ S uoljeJISIuIWpY - 0T
% £202-T202 $ €£20Z-220C 139aN9 €202 '22Q <= Q1A ZZ0T 135ang7zoz IVNLDV TZ0Z IVNLOV 0202 1VNLIV 6102 INJNLYVdIa

ASNIdX3 - AHVINIANS INIINIHYdId

sasuadx3 €707 A4




zzoz/ot/e

9IUBISISSY |elauaD - g6

PaISSEUN - 06 ™

IS IqeQ - 58 =

xe] Aljunoc) - 18®m

suoneziuesiQ |euoigay - g =

uoneonp3- g/ m

IISEM PIOS - 0L =

sjuawanosdw [eudey -som

a5eulelsq ' speoy - oo |

sals1aWa) - 05 W

uolllalold - O m

SUAIIIY 7R ‘S)Jed ‘UCIIEIIIY - DE M

S32IAJI3S AJUNWILIOD) - 67 |

IJUBUIIUIBIA - ZT H

UORBASIUIWPY - 0T W

%S0 m ke T

%90 ® %i0m

. /. %t'0 m
%00 m |%6'T =

%9'C W

uswiiedaq Ag sasuadx3 183png £z0¢

ERITSELS
1qeQ - Sgm

xe] Ajuno? - 18 =

suoieziuesiQ

jeuoiday - pgm

uoneINpPI-S/m

S1SEM PlOS-0L ™

sjuawancidw| %9t m
|eyded -som

%6'CT W
a8euieug

BSpeoy-Q9om

S914919Wa) - 05 W

, %0
%6'8 / %9 m
uolloalold - O m d
sanny 00 %81 =
7 ‘Spied Fo =

‘uoiestday - OE M %y m

5321AI35
Ajunwwo) -gzm %T'c |

aoueUIUIRIA %'l =
-am %L0m

uonensiuIwpy %' W
-0Tm
%EO =

juawedaq Aq
sasuadx3 193png zz0T

sasuadx3 €707 A4




zzoz/ot/e

&
>
@
N )
S > & A"
& o O ) & 4
o s & AU
94&0 & & @® O/@ o & SN %@o & & .nwao & o 0&\
28 & &° o & \ & S “ H Y A W o ¥
e &0 i &° a & F o 2o° o~ oy 50 A A &
& N & «Jv ¥ 3 %47 %ov & R & o A & &
2 g P # By N P o 2 R & 2" @ 3 &
%40°05- i: 59 PARTE %oL & m.ﬁ.
L — 1 1 1 1 L L L 1 i 1 L 1 &
5,00 GEE %0 8 %8S T TEL i p— %96 m
e B WM
%1'89S &
wawedaqg Aq a3ueyd % €202-720¢
]
N o
o N 5 N A
[ o & & ; J
ol % Sl & 5 & Sl & &
e@o & & <@ O,m\ o Qv SO %&o & R & & & o&\
S S & & & & %& o o? & o> N m@o »%My o
o5 & & N o & ) P 23 P 2 2 2 o2
@& g ¥ A & & N N S &> 5 N o & &>
& ooxv so/._; &> nwvo/. o%., &.,n.ue mJ/w..& o 2 000. ® ,...00/ & 001../
139ang szozm —— —— ; : , | , Ce — |
135ang ¢zoz m 000°000°TS
000°000TS
000°000°€S
000°000tS
000°000°SS
000°000°9%
000°000°LS

awuedaq Aq sjelol €20Z-2202

sasuadxy €707 Ad




zzoz/ot/e

& QP
&sav <0 $
00/ .wv 2>
& \ g N & &
& & ¢%v énm 3
%& ¥ & & sovs
& w > s P
& & 3 td ¥
N 3 & g £ ¥

— ]

mn
s}
Ex
Y

D
H
(e
a0
un

:

0080LS
>

"

[ W AN

.78 X\_....<

juswnedaq Aq adueyd $ £20Z-2202

sasuadx3 £207 Ad




7zZ0z/0T/€

%9'€ 80€‘T $ SLE'LE $ 8ITTE $ £99'9¢ S LTL'TT S 868'TC $ T0S0L S S3DIAYAS ALINNIWINOD ST
%0°0 . S 000°0€ S LSEVT $ 0000€ $ SS0'ST S SS6'PT S 8¢80t S $334 3SIHONVY4 AL 319vD 0T0S
%0°0 = $ SZt $ 00T S STI $ 001 S 001 S STt S suoiled say UON AJeiqiT 0ZOv
%t°0- (2) S 0sv $ TST S st $ ST $ 91¢ $ 8Ev S suonINQUIU0D ¥sa@ o4 Aleiqrr STOR
- (o6T1) $ 00T'T $ TOT'T $ 0621 $ 8sI S TLOT S LIT'T S $033004d 31vS Advdan 010t
%S'8€ Qos $ 008'T S 0799 $ 00ET S wP8T S LE5'T S TL0'LT S SNOILYNOQ AdYdan SO0t
& 0007 S 0007 $ 955 S . S 6IPT S = S 0008 S A1AN3I¥4 39V 000€
- 2 $ ‘ $ 0T $ - $ €€ $ 0F $ SIT $ AaNNd NOILYNIDDYA 90a TTOT
2 7 $ 00§ $ 09¢ $ 0001 S 09¢ S S6L S 04§ S JwD saiqey  TTOT
%002~ (00s) S 000C $ 298 $ 00SC S PeP'T S P60T S LET'C S 334 3SN3211 90A 10YLNOD TYWINY 0TOT

$3DIAYIS ALINNIWINGD ST

% £20T-T20T $ €£20T-TT0T 139an8 €20T '93d <= LA T20T 139an8 zz02 IYNLDV TZ0Z IYNLOV 0202 TYNLIV 6102 NOISIAIG AIN3IW1YYdaq

- (00z) $ = S = $ 00T $ = S 8L1 $ 8IT $ FINVNILNIVIN - 2T
5 (00z) TR S & $ 00z S = $ 8LT S 8IT S XYL113Nd 010w

IDNVYNILNIVIAL - ZT

% €202-2202 $ €202-TT0T 1390N49 £€20Z '92Q <= LA TZ0T 139an8 7z0Z IVYN1DY TZ0Z WYNLIV 0202 IVNLIY 6T0T NOISIAIQ AININIHY4IQ

%8'L 6vT 8Ly $ B¥T'0T9°9 $ Sv0'p6s‘s $ 666'TET9 $ 995'€709 S €56'7E8'S $ TEETLIS $ NOILYHLSININGY -0T
- » $ 0009 3 > $ 0009 3 = S E S . S Spund 1sndj jo asn €€0S
% €8 £86'60T S ESCTVT $ = $ 0LZTET S E S C $ - $ plemiod Adied Jo asn TO0S
%0°0¢ 000°0S S 00000€ $ : $ 000°0S2 S e S g S g S Spund pajeudisapun jo asn 0005
%L S99°7 $ 008'8€ $ ¥99°81 S SEI9E S BOETT 5 1 O S 03D WVOOTHILNI 0r0E
%00 - $ 0009 S Pov'E S 0009 $ +vIZ0T $ 6079 $ 996°S $ $334 35N ANY1 QZOE
%00 - S 000's S ETv'y $ 000°s S £86°9 $ 008% $ 0TF's $ $334 ONIGINNTd OTOE
%00 ) $ 00S'C $ €€£7T $ 00ST S tpZ'e S V6LT S LLTT S 2ouelsissy JuneaH S60T
%00 - $ 000's S EP8'E $ 000's $ BEGTT S LLE9 $ TL0SZ S JNODINI YIHLO 0601
%00 7 $ 00S'T $ TS0T $ 00ST S €051 S THST $ 8ES'T S $334 AJ0D Q31411430 S90T
%00 2 $ 0S $ 09T $ 0S s 0S $ 0F $ 0t S $334 3SNIDI $S3NISNE 0901
- y $ 00S S - $ 00S S 2 S = S = S $334 IDILON 9S0T
%0°00T- (oot) S = szt $ 001 S 0ot $ 0ot $ oot S SAV Y31131SMIN  ¥SOT
%9'SS 000's S 000tT $ S8TL $ 0006 s ZIT9tT $ 10T $ TL50T S 334 INIOV €501
%0°ET 000°SL $ 000°0S9 $ 606TZE S 000'SLS $ TL6'T0L S 0ST'009 S PBI'ELS S $3XV1 ITIIHIA HOLOW ZS0T
%EET 000'T $ 0058 $ 9g6 S 00S'L S 9gZ'6 S vL6'L $ S0S'L $ S3IXVL 3SIDXI LvOd 1S0T
7 - § = S B9L'SET S F s - s - s - S 6T-AINOD T#OT
%69~ (98%) $ 0959 $ 9v0L S 9v0'L S 8LLL $ T99°CT $ TI9ST S LNINISYNGNITY 3138 YEOT
%T'TT 000'T $ 00001 S 9/.0T S 0006 $ ToE® $ €558 $ €606 S LIN3INISYNGINIFY HLMOYD 3341 EE0T
%6'9- (8rE'PT) S 68LE6T S 0l0'0zT S LET'S0T $ E€6v0vZ S 09¢'08T S 896'SLT S NOILdW3X3 Av3LSINOH ZEOT
%S°LE- (00s'T) $ 005C S SKZ'T $ 000t $ 98T $ T08T S 068°C $ NOILdINIX3 SNYH¥3ILIA TEOT
%00 = S 000'9 S 659t $ 0009 S 8856 $ G8R'ET $ 8BETI S JNOINI ININLSIANI TZO0T
%L9T- (000s) $ 000'sT $ #0001 $ 000°DE $ 06E'EE $ Ts8CE $ 9LE0E $ SIXVL NO 1S3¥3LNI $TOT
%EEE 000°SL $ 000'00€ $ BLE'TIT $ 000'sZ2 $ OpS'pIE $ 969°0€C $ LPEWST $ ONIYYHS INNIATY ILVLS £T0T
%6°9- (rLET) S 955'8T S 0E£6°6T S 0E6°6T S T96'TT $ vIsTe $ 86LtE S XVL ALYId0Y¥d TYNOSH3d TIOT
%0t 80€'T8T S TE9L9LY S EPL'96S'Y S TEE98S'Y $ 620665t S PPE9L9Y S L8L'v09'% S XV1ALY43dO¥Yd 3LV1S3I 1vIy TT0T

NOILVYLSININGY -0T

% €20T-T20T $ £20T-7207 1390aN49 €202 '93Q <= 1A TZ0T 139ang 7202 TVNLIVY 1202 1VNLOV 0202 1YNLOV 6T0T NOISIAIG INIWNLYVYd3a

SINUBARY €Z0C Ad




Tz0z/0T/€

%EvT0T 9./5v20's $ 60T'SIS‘S S T0L'vIr $ E££5°067 $ v8p'0T S 681°v6S $ T#8'89L $ SINIWINOYLINI TV LIAYD S9
= - 3 - $ - $ - 5 - S - $ 000091 $ weqg 33e7 Jo0deUBIBIA E59
%0t 9.5 $ 60T'ST S €08 S EESYI S B8YOr $ G8T'9T S 188 S (2uhepn 13 2119AR4) UONIEIS J3jsURI] 0LSO
- (0009€) S = & o $ 000°9€ s - g = g S SH|EMIPIS 0559
- (000'st) S - $ 5 $ 000'st $ - $ - $ - $ splaylieg §zs9
= - S : $ 67912 S ) S - $ 00085 $ - S uoneuop + puog ('q +@4d) Suip|ing Z159
B 0LL'SET S OLL'SET g = S s - SiF S $ (43430 + vdyv) s1uBlD pueqpeolg Z0s9
%0'85CT 0£2'696'Y $ 0£Z'v9t's $ 000°S6E $ 000'S6€ $ - $ = S E $ spaadold puog [ediDIUNAL 0059

SLN3IWIAOYdNI TVLIdYD 59

% €202-2202 $ £202-7202 139an4g €207 "22Q <= Q1A ZZ0T 139an4d zzoz WNLOV 1202 IVNLIV 0202 TVYNLOY 6T0Z NOISIAIG ININLYYd3a

%SZL 000y $ 000'9€ $ zi9'es $ _000°zE $ PIE'PE $ 09s'9t $ 90'LE $ Pceuleld 3 speoy 09
‘ ™ S = S > S = $ 0ST S = S ¥6L'T 3 JNOINIAVMHOIH 0Z0T
%S'TT 000t $ 0009 $ 7499 $ 000ZE $ P9IPE $ 0959¢ $ TI9'sE S JINVLSISSY AVOYH W01 010Z

a8euieaq 1y speoy 09

% €20T-720T $ €207-220T 139an8 €202 '934 <= A1A ZZ0T 1390n9 2202 1VNLDV TZ0T TYNLOV 0202 IYNLOV 6102 NOISIAIG AININLYVdIa

i = $ - $ 2 $ = S : $ 001 s 00g S S31YILIWID 05
¥ = S G S 5. $ 00T S 00g $ suolleuod pzos

$3143L3W3D 0%

% €202-770Z $ £202-7202 1390N9 €202 "22Q <= ALA ZZ0T 139an4 zzoz IVNLIV T20Z 1VNLIV 0202 IVN1DY 6T0Z NOISIAIQ AINJWLHYd3A

%L (0s2) $ 002t $ 08T'TI $ 0SP'E S 00E'E S 0LZ's $ SL6'E $ NOILDILOYd O
2 o S £ S = S = S E S = S 988 S juesn Axzjes g4 QSOv
%00 = S 00zt ) - $ 00T’ $ 00T S TE6'Y $ 009 S S9US JamoL Q0SE
%0°00T- (osz) $ & S 06C $ 0St $ 00g $ 8Eg $ 99z S duljuo SlIWIa4 uing a4 SE0T
= = S = $ 06801 $ = $ 008 $ P S Ete S SNOILVNOQ LNIN1Y¥Vd3a 3414 OTOT

NOILD310¥d OF

% €207-2202 $ €202-T202 1390aN8 €202 '22a <= 1A TZ0T 139an4 zZ02Z VALV TZ0Z TYNLOY 0202 IYNLIV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ AINJNLYVd3a

%0°LT- (016) $ O00E'ET $ 6EE6 $ 01’8t $ S0TT S 09¢'6T $ 005'6E $ SIILIAILDY B'SHYVd ‘NOILY3IHI3Y OF
T ? S = $ SST S = $ 009 $ 0£8'C $ 00T $ sjiedl 1oL
= = S = S = S = S - S - S 791'se S SJUeJD / SUONBUOQ UOIBAIBSUOD) STOE
= = $ > $ §ST S . S - $ 89€ $ 99 S $31VS ISIANVYHIHIAW - AH €202
- (00s) s - g - S 005 § = s - s - S |eJ0JI31u| - paeOg 23y LZOT
%6'E 09 S 0091 S a S 0ps'T S G8S S 8.1 S T8ET S [1equos - pieog 29y 970Z
i 005 $ 00§ $ 008'T S . $ 0T0T S - $ or $ NOILY3IH¥DIH HIHLO - @¥vV08 234 STOT
%T'TT 0S€ $ 00S't S SIv'E $ 0ST'E S - SS90 $ 060°€ ) lleqiayseq - a4¥yvog 34 ¥T0T
- (00se) S 0007 $ 585 $ 00S't S 0St $ - S - s ONININIMS - 3¥V08 238 €20C
%8t 00T S 002'T S 06L'T $ 00T'C S . $ SS6'T $ SEI'C S H3200S - a¥v09 I3y ZT0T
%L'T 08 $ 000t s - $ 06T $ ISH'T $ oy S 6IST S TIvg3Sve - a¥4v0d 234 10T
%L LS- (000°2) S 00S'T $ 6EET $ 00S‘E $ 85969 S w96 $ 8004 S JWODNI HOV3Ig 0T0T

SAILIALLDY 8'SHYVd ‘NOILY3IYIIY OF

% €202-2202 $ £202-720T 139aN8 €20Z '22d <= 1A 2Z0Z 139ang 7202 IVYNLDV TZ0Z 1YNLOV 0202 IYNLOV 6102 NOISIAIQ ININ1Y¥Yd3a

SINUB3N3Y €707 Ad




720z/0T/¢€

%T 6L €06'T1S'S $ G9EUPTIT ¢ 99529 $ 991'£96'9 $ 9TI'PZE9 S 968'8TL9 $ LES'TLT'9 $ 1V10L
%005~ (00sZ) $ 00SC S - S 000's S . $ Tt S 8Ly $ JDNVISISSY TYHINID S6
%T'¥ 6LT'T S 8vL'6T $ €0ST $ 695'8T S GELT S 9Y'T S PYET S Q3adISSY1INN 06
%E'S TSS'TT S 68E'87C $ S96'LYT S BER9TT S PE6'STT $ 089907 S TRLLLT S JLSYM aIos oL
%E'vT0T 9L5'vT0'S $ 60T'S1S'S S ToL'vev S EES'06F S v8roT S 68T'v6S $ T¥8'89T S SINIWINOYdWI TVLIdYD 59
%STT 000t S 000'9¢ S TL99¢ $ 000°zE $ PIEVE $ 0959¢ S 90v'LE $ a3eulesq 3 speoy 09
i : S - S > 5 g S - $ 00T $ 00E S $3149313W3D 05
%L L- (0sz) $ 00Z‘€ $ 08T'TT $ 0Sb'e S 00g't $ 0LT's $ SL6'E S NOILD310Yd OF
%0'LZ- (0T6Y) S 00g'€tT S 6EE6 $ 01Z'stT S $S0°ZT $ 09t'6T $ 00s'6E $ SAILIALLIY '2'SHUVd ‘NOILYIYIIY 0F
%9°E 80€T S SL6LE $ 8TT'IE S £999¢ S LTL'te $ 868'TT $ T0SOL S S3DIAY3IS ALINNWINOD S2
g (002) S - s . S 00T $ v S 8LT S 81T S IDINVYNILNIYIN - 2T
%8'L 6vL'8LY S 8PT'0T99 $ SPO'v6S'S $ 666'TET9 S 995'€20'9 $ ES6'CER'S S TEE'TLYS S NOILVHLISININGY -0T
% £207-2202 $ €207-7202 1390N9 €20Z 220 <= ALA ZZ0Z 139an9 20T VLDV TZ0Z IVYNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6T0Z AINIWNLHV43a
INNIATY - AHVIWINNS INJNIHYHIA
% 6L £06°2TS’S $ B9EUYTT § SE9'9SZ9 $ 99tv'€96'9 $ O9TI'VZE9 $ 968'8TL'9 S LESTLT'Y $ 1V10L
%0°05- nOQm.Nw % 005'T $ = $  000'S $ 2 $ Zf£1 w 7472 m JINVISISSY TYHINID S6
%0°05- (0052) S 00SC $ - < 000'Ss 3 - ¢ 7€t S 8Ly S INNIATY ILVLS-1SISSY IWHINID 0TOT
JONVLSISSY 1vHINID G6
% €202-2202 $ £202-T202 1390N4g €20Z '22Q <= ALA TZ0T 139an4d zzoz IYNLIV TZ0Z WNLIV 0Z0Z IVNLIV 6T0T NOISIAIG AINIW1YVY43a
%1Y 6LTT S 8bL'62 § £0S'T $_695'82 $ 6ELT S 9Lb'T S BYE'T $ IISSYIING 06
= 000T $ 000t $ E€0ST $ 0002 S o1 S - S - $ punj asudiajul pjaypeay grov
%' TT 64T S 8WLT $ - $ 6959°T $ 69S°T S 9v'T S e N s394 3jIqowmous  QT0E
%0°0 - $ 000°sZ $ - $ 000°ST S 2 $ x 8 = $ anuanay yied Isd4 0SZT
d314I1SSYIINN 06
% £202-220T $ €207-7202 139aN48 €207 234 <= ALA 70T 139an8a zzoz IVYNLIVY TZ0Z TYNLOY 0202 1YNLOVY 6102 NOISIAIQ INJWLIHVYd3a
%ES 1SS $_68e'8CC $_ S96LYT $ 8EB'9TZ S vEE'SIZ $ 089'907 $_Twe'ut s SeivanoR
%8S L19'F $ T110v8 S TISO'EP S 6E6L S 89v°0L S PET'TL S bvLT'SL $ JYVHS SINAVAM - SINNIATY SL 060L
%L'T PET'T S 8.0'L9 S 8v69t S vr6'S9 $ vS6'S9 S EETV9 S TET'6S S JYVHS 3LL3AVS - SANNIATY S 680L
g 2 S 5 $ 00£0Z $ = S 2 S = S = S SINVYD S1L 050
%00t~ (002) $ 00g $ - $ 00S $ - $ 00§ $ 0sv S SHWIad SI9NEH [B12J3WWO) Ov0L
- - S - S 7 g . F s s - $ - S JOHNDVE SL 0£0L
= 00s°T $ 00ST S pegT S > S 7 $ 00§ S = S BuppArey wos 98w SL 9T0L
& : S 00S S 9g€ $ 00§ $ 7SS S L9% S TE9 S Y3IHLO - $318VIDADIY SL STOL
%00t 000t $ 000¢T $ SKE'TT $ 00001 $ SIT'ET S LS6'6 $ L1901 S VLI - SI19VIDAIIY SL £20L
- (00S) s - S brI $ 005 $ 8 $ te $ 9% $ 1SOdINOD/31DAD3Y SL TZOL
%00 = $ 00009 $ 900'tE $ 00009 S LE8'99 $ 906'6S $ T8S'TE S $334 NOILVLS ¥34SNVHL 0TO0L
31SVYM A0S 0L
% €202-2202 $ £207-7202 139aN4g €202 ‘224 <= ALA 2202 139an8a zzoe VNIV TZ0T 1YNLOY 0202 TYNLOV 6T0T NOISIAIG LNIWNLYYd3a

SaNUaAay €707 Ad




Tzoz/0t/€

JONVLSISSY
JONVLSISSY TVY3INID S6 ™ TVYINID S6™
d313ISSYIINN 06 = Q3ISSYIONN 06 =

3LSYm dnos oL = 3LSYM QNOos 0L =

SLININIAOHdINI

SINIWIAOYLINI TVLIdYD S9= IVLidYD S9 =
ageuieig

a8euielq g speoy Q9 m B Speoy Q9 m

S3IY3L3W3D oS m S3I4313N3D oS m

NOILD3104d ov = NOILD3104Yd ov m

S3ILINILOY B'SHYVd

SAILIAILDY '8°SHYVd ‘NOILV3IYDIY oc m ‘NOILY3dD3y oem

FERINY-EN

S3DIAY3S ALINNWINOD ST m ALINNWINOD ST H

FONVNILNIVIN -ZT 3DNVNILNIVIN -CT ®

(uonpaysiutwpo buipn(axa)
(uonnaysiuiwpn buipnjaxa) juswiedaqg
wawledag Aq anuanay 193png £20¢ Aq anuanay 198png zz0T

SINUIARY £707 A



TT0T/0T/¢

<
B %.J .vonc Oowc
JONVISISSY TVHINID 6=
y/yya 5 & &o& ow%o ,,%.o L &\o».
Q3HISSYIINN 06 & < N & & & & 2 S & &
P & )Onv O&v R o < A/a/ 4V¢Av S =
3LSYM aos oL = & =2 & & Foy /v,% > b & %V«A,. &
Qd g ) < o < @) N % )
S ) & > N & N S e
SLNIWINOYdINI TYLIdYD S9 = e ) owv %.W & o O 4 & Pe) )
adeules speo o -
e %005 %TL %OLZ e
S31Y3LINID oS W e . f e : : . ! %0
NOILD3104d or = %'t [V ol od %S CT ° [ oR %00 %8 L %002
SIILIAILDY B'SHY¥Vd ‘NOILYI¥DIY 0E m e %00%
SIDIAY3S ALINNAINGD ST %009
IONVNILNIVIA - ZT B %008
NOILVYISININQY -0T W %0001
%EvT0T
%0021
juswiiedaq Aq aduey) 9 aNUINY £202-2202
SIILIALLDY
R'OIYvd S3DIAY3S
IDNVISISSY  Q3HISSYIONN 3LSYM  SINIWIAQYWJWI  dBeuresg ‘NOILYI¥D3Y  ALINOWINOD  IDNVNILNIVIA
TvY¥INID 56 06 anos oz TYLIdVD §9  '2SPEOY 09  SIIWILIWID 0S NOILDILOYHd OF og 14 T
— 1 I i 1 1 L I L |m
000'000'TS
139an8 €20z = o
000°000'7$
13nang zzozm
000°000'€$
000°000't$
000'000'5$
000°000°9%

(uonpazsiuiwpo buipniaxa) yuawpedaq Aq s|e10l aNUANY £70Z-2202

S3NUIAIY £Z70T Ad




Tz0z/0t/e

JONVISISSY TVHINID
Q314ISSYIONN

J1LSVM aInos

SLINIWNINOYdNI TV LIdVD
aseuleiq g speoy

SAYILINGD

NOILD3104d

SIILIAILIY B°SHdVd ‘NOILY3IYIIY
S3DIAY3IS ALINNWINOD

FONVNILNIVIA -
NOILVYLSININGY -

sem
o6 =
oL®
Som
09=
osm
orm
ocm
szm
am
orm

000°000°TS-

(0sz)s (016'7)S

L ! L 1 L

ISSTIS 000'%S S
> >

S0ETS
»

i

000°000°TS

6VT'8LYS

000°000°TS

000'000°€$
000°000'7$

9/5°v20°5$

000°000°sS
000°000°9%

jJuawuedaq Aq asuey) § anuanay £20Z-220T

SINUIABY £707 A4




zzoz/ot/e

plemiod ALied Jo asn TO0S
spun{ pajeusisapun 40 asn 000S =
032 IVDOTY3LN| Ov0E ™
$334 3SN ANV1 0Z0E =
S$334 ONIFINNTd 0TOE =
aouelsIssy Bulleay SE0T @
JWOINI ¥3IHLO 060T =
$334 Ad0D Q31411430 590T =
§334 3SN3IDIT SSINISNG 090T =
§334 3DILON 9S0T =
SAV Y3ILLITSMIN SOT
334 IN3OV ESOT
S3IXVL ITIIHIA HOLOW ZS0T ™
SIXVL ISIDX3 LVOd TSO0T =
6T-dINOD TrOT B
INIW3ISYNTINITY 3139 vEOT m
ANIWISYNIGINITY HLMOYD FF¥L ECOT W
NOILdN3X3 dV3LSIWOH ZEOT ®
NOILdIN3X3 SNYYILIA TEOT B
JNOINI LINJINLSIANI TCoT m
SIXVL NO LSIYILINI vTOT B
ONIYVHS INNIAIY ILYIS ETOT ®
XVL1 ALY3dOYd T¥YNOSY3Id ZTOT W
XVLALY3IdOHd ILVISITIVIH TIOT W

L 1 L 1 1 i

%00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00
%t L

%0'0¢

%0 ET%EET

T00S|0005 |Ov0t |0Z0€E |0TOE|S60T [060T [S90T |090T |9SOT | ¥SOT |€SOT | ZSOT | TSOT | THOT |PEOT |€E0T | ZEOT | TEOT | TZOT [PTOT|ETOT|ZTOT|TIOT
-
=
m
m
e 2 - - m
£ @ 818 5|5 ~
o]
S n | & m Rl1E12|5]z2 =185
b < m L = ® P T m = < = o 2 =
o =] a = = o 3 n m ] = = z >
o & z i = m = = =z = = i = m > ]
= o = o -] o) T wu m > m m m b 3 m < = m
P [l = = = = = = [ = < = =z = =z z 2 = m o o
% @ m c = m — & m m o w ~ m = = )
S = = = = M L o 5 = ~ =) b3 = o m m = = = o o
3 o = o = 5o o o o m > = el C c > > m =l =
=~ Ey (@] c =) & = o = — H_ o .._IJ & o =~ = m m - o w m m
3 o (] el Z b, = 9 n o = m m m =] a a Z 2 = =z I = =
3 - P m 9] a Q < m m = = = = < z = T ] o — > = 3
s c il ) o e} n n ) = > > S = = o b =
s 12 lBlalelzlz=slE8lelelelsinlnlalB2lE|lBlelzs|lglzls]E
a & o & w ] m & a a ) m o a e = — = = m a [0 > =<
%0°00T-
%6°9- %6°9- %6°9-

%CEB

%9°5S

uoisinlg Aq uonlesisiuiwpy - aSueyd % aNUIN3Y ZZ0Z-120Z

%0ST-

%00T-

%05~

%0

%09

%00T

SaNUSAlY €707 A4




tz0z/0T/€

piemuod Alie) jo 3sn TOOS
spuny4 pajeusisapun 4o asn 000S =
032 71vI0TYILNI OF0E =
5334 35N ANV 0C0E =
S$334 ODNIGINNTd 0TOE ™
aoueISISSY BuljeaH s6OT ™
3WOINI ¥3IHLO 060T =
5334 Ad0D 431411430 S90T =
$334 3SN32I1 SSANISNE 090T =
$334 301LON 9501 =
SAV Y3LLITSMIN pSOT W
334 INJOV ESOT
S3XV13I1DIHIA HOLOW ZSOT =
SIXVL3SIDX3 L1vod IS0T =
6T-QINQD THOT @
LN3WW3ISYNEINIIY 31349 pEOT =
INIWISYNENIIY HLMOYD J34L e€0T |
NOILdINIX3 QVILSIWOH ZeoT =
NOILdINIX3 SNVY3IL3ATEOT B
JWODNI LNJWLSIANI TZOT ®
SIXVLNO 1S343LNI ¢TOT B
ONIYVHS INNIAIY JLVLS ETOT =
XV1 ALld3d0dd TYNOSH3d ZT0T W
XVL AL¥3d0Odd 3LVLISI TvV3Y TT0TH

T00S |0005|0F0€ {0Z0E|0T0E|S60T |060T |S90T|090T |9S0T |¥SOT|ESOT (ZSOT|TSOT|THOT | PEOT|EE0T|TE0T | TEOT|TCOT |PTOT |ETOT|ZTOT|TTOT
=
=
m
e =
= o m
g . 5 o |23 218|2
(=] < =
c |'2 o |G s} DI3|E|9|2|=|7|8 %
® | 3 T = | = o | 8 i Blols|2|l=|2]|Z>
o = = ] o, m £ = b M =2 m > Y - = = =
g |3 =l lol=la Z < | = s 2|zlz|lz2|28|2 |33
e IS |E|2|E|&|2|B |z 3 g s 55|12 |5|8 2|33
E] z @ |F|9]|5|8|82 | x slEiminl2|H|s0]8
el 2 iz |=laglel8lgiBlgl8lnlS|lSs|EslalalolB |l
3 3 2 & P 2. = m G O M m m m o ] o < = = = T o =
3 o = m 2 a o =< m m o 2 = = < = =z 3 o o = > 2 =
= c mn n w (&) n n il — = = o =i = o = =
o S o m m 3 = m m m W - =< > et m M o) o Z > = ulv_ mu
2 | F|lo|R|G|B | &R |R|B||R|B|R|G|S | S|z|lz|m|0d|bd | %|x
00005%-
(8¥E'PT)S
; (000's5)$ ;
$ (00T)$ (981)$ -aom 8 (peeT)$
L L TR L L L 1 1 L L 1 1 i L L i m— 1 L Oﬂ
59978 T BT A 000'ss [ 000T$ & 000'T$ 5
E B
— - 000'05$
000°05$
000'SL$ 000'sL$
- 000°00TS
£86°60TS
- 000°0STS
80E'T8TS
000'00Z%

uoisinig Aq uonensiulwpy - 3guey) $ aNUANY ZZ0Z-TZ0T

Sanuanay £20Z Ad




FY 2023

Pre Commitment - ESTIMATE

o R o S L

D O o

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

19,

20.

2.

22,

23.

Town of Readfield
FY 2022 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM
. Local Taxable Real Estate Valuation.................ocevvvennn... $324,296,395
. Local Taxable Personal Property Valuation........................ $1,262,161
. Total Taxable Valuation (Line 1 plus line 2)...........oooiiiiiiiii e, $325,558,556
. a) Total of Homestead Exemption Valuation.......................... $18,830,800
. b) Homestead exemption reimbursement value.......................... $13,181,560
. a) Total of BETE Exempt Property.........cccoveviiiiinivneniiniaiins $892,401
. b) BETE exemption reimbursement value............................... $446,201
. Valuation Base (Line 3 plus lines 4band 5b)..........oooiiiininii i, $339,186,317
APPROPRIATIONS ESTHM ATE @NE
o
County TaxX..oooovvviivvv BT $319 743
. Municipal Appropriation.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiin $8,391,332
. TIF Financing Plan Amounts..............coooviiiiiiii $0
. School/Educational Appropriations..........cccoveiiiiiiiiinininnnn.., $3,740,294
(Adjusted to Municipal Fiscal Year)
Total Appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10).........c.coiiiiiiiiii e, $12,451,369
ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS
State Municipal Revenue Sharing..............................c... $300,000
Other Revenues:  (Revenues not accounted for in $7,189,824
Municipal Appropriation which are to be used to reduce the
commitment such as Tree Growth and Veterans reimbursement, $901,508
trust fund income, etc.)
Total Deductions (Line 12 plus line 13)....................cooee $7,489,824
Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) $4,961,545

£4,961,544.80 X 1.05 = $5,209,622.04

(Amount from Tine 13)

Maximum Allowable Tax

$4,961,544.80 = $339,186,317 = 0.01463 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from Tine T3) (Amount from Tine 6)

$5,209,622.04 . $339,186,317 = 0.01536 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount from Iine 16} (Amount from Tine 6)

MIL RATE

$325,558,556 x 14.70 = $4,786,196.39 TO BE DETERMINED
(Amount from line 3) (MILL RATE)

$4,961,544.80 X 0.05 = $248,077.24 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from Tine T5)

$13,181,560 X 0.01470 = §193,788.59 Homestead Reimbursement
TAmount from line 4b) T (Selected Raiey (Enter on line 8, Assessment Warrant)
$446,201 X 0.01470 = §6,559.81 BETE Reimbursement

(Amount [rom Iine 3b) T (Selected Ratey (Enter on Iine 9, Assessment Warrant)

$4,986,544.80 $4,961,544.80

4 £ m
3 2 L 3 2 '
(Line T9 plus Tine 2T & 22) (Amount Trom Tine T3) (Enter on line 5, Assessment Warrant)

(If Line 22 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

3/10/2022

Overlay




FY 2023

Taxable Real Estate Valuation and Mil Rate Over Time

Fiscal Year Mil Rate Taxable RE Valuation General Tax Information

FY Mil Rate % Change * |Valuation % Change * |Interest Commit. Date  Notes
1982 1983 14.80 -18.2% 41,411,207 19.0% Revaluation
1983 1984 15.30 3.3% 41,847,108 1.0%
1984 1985 15.80 3.2% 42,237,514 0.9%
1985 1986 15.30 -3.3% 42,801,844 1.3%
1986 1987 17.30 11.6% 45,425,772 5.8% 13.50%
1987 1988 16.80 -3.0% 50,623,696 10.3% 11%
1988 1989 16.20 -3.7% 59,762,345 15.3% 11%
1989 1990 9.90 -63.6% 101,779,380 41.3% 12% Revaluation
1990 1991 13.00 23.8% 103,218,225 14% 12%
1991 1992 13.30 2.3% 107,159,315 3.7% 12%
1992 1993 14.00 5.0% 108,440,600 1.2% 12%
1993 1994 15.50 9.7% 109,711,840 1.2% 10% 9/20/1993
1994 1995 17.30 10.4% 111,963,640 2.0% 10% 9/6/1994
1995 1996 19.50 11.3% 114,804,040 2.5% 10.75% 9/7/1995
1996 1997 19.30 -1.0% 116,831,218 1.7% 10.75% 9/3/1996
1997 1998 18.60 -3.8% 118,260,542 1.2% 10.50% 9/8/1997
1998 1999 18.60 0.0% 119,793,570 1.3% 10.75% 9/8/1998
1999 2000 18.60 0.0% 123,049,000 2.6% 10% 9/7/1999
2000 2001 18.60 0.0% 123,652,330 0.5% 10.75% 9/18/2000
2001 2002 19.90 6.5% 126,062,740 1.9% 11.50% 8/20/2001
2002 2003 21.50 7.4% 126,102,370 0.0% 8.75% 8/21/2002
2003 2004 23.50 8.5% 128,931,635 2.2% 7% 8/19/2003
2004 2005 23.80 1.3% 127,886,052 -0.8% 6.50% 9/15/2004
2005 2006 14.50 -64.1% 215,140,662 40.6% 7% 9/8/2005 Revaluation
2006 2007 15.50 6.5% 218,471,667 1.5% 7% 8/24/2006
2007 2008 15.40 -0.6% 222,832,062 2.0% 10% 7/23/2007
2008 2009 15.40 0.0% 225,088,075 1.0% 8% 7/17/2008
2009 2010 15.40 0.0% 228,590,495 1.5% 6% 8/11/2009
2010 2011 15.85 2.8% 234,687,157 2.6% 4% 8/19/2010
2011 2012 15.80 0.3% 235,984,354 0.5% 4% 9/30/2011
2012 2013 16.20 2.5% 237,595,654 0.7% 4% 7/17/2012
2013 2014 18.20 11.0% 238,389,551 0.3% 4% 7/30/2013
2014 2015 18.50 1.6% 238,928,998 0.2% 4% 7/28/2014
2015 2016~ 18.08 -2.3% 237,490,554 -0.6% 4% 9/2/2015
2016 2017~ 18.93 4.5% 235,540,554 -0.8% 7% 8/2/2016
2017 2018~ 19.29 19% 233,406,854 -0.9% 7% 8/25/2017
2018 2019 19.44 0.8% 236,460,554 1.3% 8% 8/16/2018
2019 2020 19.55 0.6% 239,131,154 1.1% 9% 7/31/2019
2020 2021 17.57 -11.3% 261,478,034 8.5% 9% 8/17/2020 10% Adjust.
2021 2022 15.79 -11.3% 290,458,034 10.0% 6% 7/29/2021 10% Adjust.
2022 2023 14,70 -7.4% 324,296,395 10.4% TBD TBD 10% Adjust.

AVERAGE 17.19 3.4% 2.1% 8.6%

Average Excludes Revaluation Years
Decrease in valuation in these years is the result of changes to the State Homestead Exemption Formula

{ 150,000,000

10(] ,000,000

300,000,000

250,000,000

200,000,000

50,000,000

Valuation

350,000,000

Mil Rate and Taxable Valuation Over Time

fh\

/ - 23.00

r 21.00

r 15.00

™

/

r 17.00

/\J

a—

NI 1500

AT

r 13.00

F 11.00

:
Zo.
CRRC)
%

-V

Loy

&:P)

o, do, Yo, <
%y %, %,

T T

(4

=TT

Y Y Y Y T D D S
o o, By, O, , Uy, U, g, G, G, G,

lo, ‘o, Y
A (2

=—\/aluation === Mil Rate

T

2

% %
0, 0
% 0, %

9.00

<
0. ‘Ju"

3/10/2022




7z0z/01/¢

»90UBEgpPUIJN® L 3DURlEGPUI D W «2JUBEgpUIIN®  , doUREgPUI D=
€707 TTOT TZOT 0TOT 6TOT BTOT LTOZ 9TOZ STOT vI0Z €T0Z ZI0Z TI0Z 0T0Z €707 TZOZ 1ZOTZ 0Z0T 6107 8I0Z LI0Z 9702 STOZ ¥I0Z ETI0Z ZIOT T110T 0T10T
- 0% 0%
- 000°00S$ 000005$
000°000°T$
- 000'000°TS
000°005°TS
'00S°T gy
000°005°TS 000°000'ZS
] s el - 000'000°2$ 000°005°Z$
—— 000°005°TS 000°000'€$
JeaA |easid >n_ sajuejeg puj pun4 Aeo) |edslq >m Sajue|eg pu3j pun4

UO0[3BAIASUOD 0SH'SS ‘000°0T 40 43119y XBL ‘000°L 40 pung as1udialu3 ‘€0g’'6TS 4O SOAIDSAL §1 “"JUIBW PBOJ 1350 0} 000°05$ SunessdQ peoy 'Sp|q 1/es/pues 10} 000 0STS [eade) peoy

:Spung paniwwo) Jo asn A4 Jualin)

%9'T9 (65 £gg'008)  $ snjding /3193420

SaN|DA PIOWIIST 9TZ'e8T'T S aoue|eg Buipu3 4n pa3aspng

6TAS r._m_.._OL_E pPasn 21am sa2UD[bg pu3 palipny * ._wmmﬁwc.N w Qouejeg >u__on_ Wnwiulin 4N

108'T08'T S 9TVLLT'T $  660°t0T S POL'TLI S 6686ZT'T S T/1'849 $  9s5£'s6e S ERS'9SE S $S9°90L $ JOVYIAY

9ZT'0E6°T S| otz'esz'T S | ooo‘ooz $ | 000‘00€ S | 9Tz’e8ET s | ote'9v9 $ | 000’00t s | eszere S | €91'68L $ |ezoz  zTeoz
6LETLTT S| 9TZ'e8E’T S | ooo‘oog $ | 000°0ST S| otz'eeet S | €91°68L S | ooo‘oot S | ocz'zeT S | egv'1z8 $|zeor  1e0T
6Y9'VST'T s |otz'eesT $ | ooo‘osz S | LTIT'T0E s | ege'sge’T s | esv'Te8 $ | ooo‘ooT $ | TS6'9s9 S | ¥8e'8LE'T s |tzor  ocoe
LIL'E9LT ¢ | ege'sgeT s | ogr'692 $ | 88v°Z8¢ S | T6E'86E'T $ | vse'see’t s | Lvz'oss s | 099°20T S| L6L'5€E6 $ Jozoz  6T0T
83T'PEE'T s | 16E86ET S| etLTIZ $ | ooo'ger S| zeovist s | L6L'sg6 s | 962'89¢ S | €0€LTT s | vo8'ves S |etoz  810T
9.¥'607°T s | zeoviet $ | 668'09¢ S| 1eL'ete S| pOSTLIT s | v08'v68 S | ovszie $ | 818'V8T s | zae'o0L s |stoz /10T
987'8/8'T $ | vosTLTT s | zoz'se $ | ooo‘oge $ | zog'seg't $ | z8s'o0L $ | evg'ese s | ozo'Lze s | 656'669 s |etoz 910z
19£°S€0°T s | zog'segT S | eze'sst $ | €81'00€ S| zro'zor't s | 656669 S| L98'LTT $ | s98'te $ | 456959 s lotoz  sTOT
695'650°T $ | zrozov't s | sseter S| TEv'ETT S | svTveET s | 456959 S| Zst'set $ | #¥8°09T s | 619729 s |stoz  vTOT
£98'910'C $ | 8vT'v6ET S | 8L0°€6S S = S| 0L1°T08 S| 619779 $ | €g0'z8 S | LEV'VET S | €20'sL9 $ |pTOZ €102
€6T9LVT s |os1'T08 S| eev'zot $ | ooo‘ose s | €69'882 s | €zo'sLo $ | 905982 $ | Lso's6E $ | pesess $ |etoz  zIOT
£9T°TLST $ | €69'88¢ S |(€9£'29) $ | ooo‘o9z S| oS ITIT'T $ | vesese s | tzs'Lse s | v69'9s S| LvvTes $|ztoz  tTOT
£06'€89°T S| 9sv'ITIT'T $ | €oT'0TT s | zze'sst $ | sL9'9LT'T S| Lvvess s | vv'Tes S| TLE'TEY S| TLET6Y $ |ttoz  o10T
9v0'894'T S |5499/2'T S | ggT'TrT S 2 S| LEV'PET'T S| 18168 s | £99'605 $ | 08827911 S| v8SPrI'T s [oT0Z 6002

mucm_mmﬂ.cju__umc_ﬂrcou *wucmgmmvcm_mj spund map m_ucjn_.._owmj QJuejeg |elliu] *wocm_mmﬁcmuu spung mapn mUr_:u_u_OmmD wu:m_mm_m_t:_ me;_NUm._u_ _

mmucm_mm ﬁczu_ Umcmqmmmcj mwur_m_mm puny ﬂmH_._.EEOU

Je3) [e3514 Ag Spund Jo 3sn pue sajuejeg pun4 pausisseun pue pajlwwoer)

€20C A4



ZT0z/01/€

Te0z 0e0e 6¢0¢ 8¢0¢ LT0T 9zot

szoe

jrderd

£¢0¢

[440r

Teoz

TR

1eap |easi4 Ag 1gag wual-8uoq Juadan)

00000T$

000°002$

000°00€$

000°00¥S

000°005%

000'009%

JJohed
TTA4 - pUOg PEOY ET0C =

yohed vzAd
- puog 3anJL il 9TO7 =

Hohed 6ZAd
- Wweq yoodeueleA 8TOT B

Hohed 9gAd - puog
duiping |edpiuniA 0ZoZ =

Hohed zpAd - puog
[ediduniy INZS €207 |

Hohed £EAd - puog
[edpiuniy YS6ES TZOZ ®

EIPPIP S PSO'STP $ BIGTEF S 986°C&F S 970'vEr $ 0T0'SEP $ S/6'SEy S 9veE'ssy S| sve9tz S| 9z6TTT ¢ TY0'EST S TWLIOL
89vZVE S 89VTVE S 8IYTHE S 8IWTVE $ 8IPTYE S 8oFTvE $ sovtve S s9v'tke s |isz'ss ¢ Jjohed zrAd - puog [edIUNIN INZS £20T
6ZE0E ¢ vrE'DE $ [9E0E ¢ [BE0E S LIv0E S 8sv'0E & /s¥os S s9v'oe  $)ezsoe  s]otre S Jjohed LEAL - puog |edidiuniy 4SEES TZOTZ
919'Ty  $ TwTIy S Ep8TF S 6IV'Er § 696°€Y S i6F'Pr S poO'Sy  $ sev'st  S|sie'st S| Tvbor S lbvs S Johed 9gAd - puog Bulpjing [edpiuniy 0zZ0Z
ovT'9T  $ TIL'9T S TTLT S L19°4T S 9v0'sT  $ est'sT s |issser  s|eveer ¢ vI96T ¢ }ohed 67A4 - Weq JoodeuelelN 810
gsr'zs  s|vze'ss  s|eervs S weePS  § Hohed $ZA4 - puog yonuL 2114 9T0¢
LIT'60T S }JoABd TZA4 - puog peOY €107
T£02 0£02 6202 8202 £70T 970z $Z0T vZ0T £20T [44)4 1202 193Q

€T0T A4




FY 2023

Budget Sheet Summary Revision History
Changed all header information, rows, columns, etc. on all sheets to reflect F¥Y23
Input FY22 YTD (6mo) and FY21 Actual values
Input draft FY23 budget numbers for available departments
A8 Input all remaining draft revenue and expense numbers
3 B8 Revised numbers based on sepaertmental requests and internal staff review
I Reconciled with TRIO, adjusted variances, set mil rate
788 Removed 517,500 in Janitorial expenses
Adjusted Overlay to $25,000 {expense reduction)
Removed $500,000 Fire Truck from budget - to be considered next year
Increased Broadband Internet Expense to $5,000,000
Modified Bond Proceed Revenue to $5,364,230 ($5,500,000 - $135,770)
Increased Debt Service expenses to account forinterest on $5,364,230 in borrowing ($74,257)
Added BAN expense of $14,000 {for $2,000,000 in up front broadband costs)
iﬂ% Adjusted mil rate to 14.67
24 Increased Ambulance service costs to reflect actual
61 Adjusted mil rate to 14.7

3/10/2022

18-lan
20-Jan
25-lan
3-Feb
8-Feb
11-Feb
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
9-Mar
10-Mar
10-Mar



FY 2023

3/10/2022




What's it gonna cost me if I'm a resident?

FY22 HOME VALUE

FY 2023

i’f : 26§:§BQ§ =$242,000 in 2022, $220,000 in 2021 and $200,000 in 2020
TAX YEAR |TAX RATE HOMESTEAD TAX ANNUAL DIFFERENCE?
2023 14.70( 5 25,000 S 3,546 | S 151.15
2022 1579 & 25,000 | § 3,395 | S {31.30)
2021 17.57| s 25,000 | § 3,426 | S {92.85)
2020 19.55| $ 20,000 | S 3,519 (5 19.80
2019 19.44| § 20,000 | § 3,499 | S 27.00
2018 19.29| S 20,000 | S 3,472 15 {29.85)
2017 18.93{ 5 15,000 | S 3,502 | S 66.85
2016 18.08] S 10,000 | S 3,435 (% (79.80)
2015 18.5| § 10,000 | S 3,515 | S 57.00
2014 18.2| § 10,000 | S 3,458
What's it gonna cost me if I'm not?
FY22 HOME VALUE
YEAR TAX RATE HOMESTEAD TAX ANNUAL DIFFERENCE?
2023 14.70| S - S 3,914 | S 92.36
2022 15.79] 5 - S 3,821 (5% (44.22)
2021 17.57| S - S 3,865 | S {44.60)
2020 19.55] - S 3,910 [ S 22.00
2019 19.441 § - S 3,888 | S 30.00
2018 19.29( & - 5 3,858 {5 72.00
What's the value of the Homestead Exemption
YEAR TAX RATE HOMESTEAD VALUE
2023 1470 | § 25,000 | S 367.54
2022 1579 $ 25,000 [ § 394.75
2021 1757 | & 25000 | S 439.25
2020 1955 | § 20,000 |$ 391.00
2019 19.44 | § 20,000 | § 388.80
2018 19.29 | § 20,000 | $ 385.80
2017 1893 | & 15,000 | & 283.95
2016 18.08 | & 10,000 [ $ 180.80

What's the Value of a Mil?

YEAR

AMT TO RAISE

VALUE OF 1 MIL

TAX IMPACT OF $100,000

2023

S 4,786,196

) 325,558.56

0.31 Mils

3/10/2022




NEW BUSINESS




Readfield Select Board
March 14, 2022
[tem # 22-1010

Annual Town Meeting Warrant/Secret Ballot
Tuesday, June 14, 2022 Polls Open 8am ~ 8pm

To: Lee Mank, resident of the Town of Readfield, in the County of Kennebec, State of Maine
GREETINGS:

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of the Town of
Readfield in said county and state, qualified by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at the Kents Hill School -
Alfond Athletic Center, 1617 Main St in said Town on Tuesday, the 14" day of June, A.D. 2022, at eight o’clock
in the forenoon, then and there to act upon Article | and by secret batlot on Articles 2 through XX as set out below,
the polling hours therefor to be from 8 o’clock in the forenoon until 8 o’clock in the afternoon, said articles being
the following:

Article 1: Elect a moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting.

Article 2: Elect two Select Board members for a three-year term:

]
(I

1
(] write in:

1 Write in:

Elect one RSU #38 School Board members for a three-year term:

1]
]
L1 Write in:

L] Write in:

Elect one Local School Committee member for a one-year term;
L Write in:

Elect one Local School Committee member for a two-year tern:
3 Write in:

Elect one Local School Committee member for a three-year term:
1 Write in:

Article 3: Shail the Town of Readfield vote to allow the Select Board to establish Salaries and or Wages of town
officers and employees, not elsewhere established, for the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 20237

Article 4: Shall the Town vote to fix September 30, 2022 or thirty days after the taxes are committed, whichever is
later, and February 24, 2024 as the dates upon each of which one-half of the property taxes are due and payable,
and as the dates from which interest will be charged on any unpaid taxes at a rate of 4% per year, which is the State
rate pursuant to Title 36 MRSA, 505.47

Article 5: Shall the Town vote to authorize the Tax Collector to Pay Interest at a rate of 4%, which is the same as
the State Rate of 4% , from the date of overpayment, on any taxes paid and later abated pursuant to Title 36 MRSA,
§ 506 & 506A7

Article 6: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the municipat officers, If an Article Fails, to spend an amount
not to exceed 3/12 of the budgeted amount in each operational budget category that the town is legally obligated to
pay, of the last year’s approved budgeted amount during the period July 1, 2022 to October 1, 20227




Article 7: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $ 679,930 for the Administration budget category for the
following budget lines with Grant Writing, Heating Assistance and Attorney Fees unexpended balances to be
carried forward?

Municipal Administration $342,855
Insurance $157,875
Office Equipment $ 6,900
Assessing $ 29,675
CEQ/LPI/BI $ 82,060

Planning Board £ 1,015
Appeals Board b 50
Grants/Planning Ser. $ 7,000
Heating Assistance § 2,500
Attorney Fees $ 50,000

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 8: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $160,300 for the Municipal Maintenance budget category?

General Maintenance $117,600

Building Maintenance 3 34,450

Vehicles Maintenance $ 8,250
Select Board recomnmends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 9: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $69,703 for the Community Services budget category for
the following budget lines, with the unexpended balance of the Age Friendly and Library budget line carried
forward?

Animal Control $ 9,530
Kennebec Land Trust $ 250
Kennebec Valley Council of Governments $ 4,500
Age Friendly Initiatives $ 2,000
Library Services $ 44,928
Readfield TV $ 7,245
Street Lights £ 750
Maranacook Lake Dam 3 500
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 10: Shall the Town vote to confract with Axiom Technologies, LLC. to construct and operate a municipally
owned fiber to the premises (FTTP) network to provide every household and business in Readfield with access to
uniform, affordable, reliable, high-speed broadband internet (A copy of proposed service terms is attached to
this Warrant), and to act upon the previously approved $5,000,000 in municipal borrowing to complete the project?

Select Board recomntends: Budget Commitiee reconmends:

Atrticle 11: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $58,707 for the Recreation, Parks & Activities budget
category for the following budget lines with any unexpended balances to be carried forward?

Beach $ 18,339
Recreation $ 21,300
Heritage Days 3 6,600
Conservation 3 6,300
Town Properties $ 3000
Trails § 3,168
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 12: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $500,000 for the Fairgrounds Multi-use Enhancement
Project to include the construction of a softball field, basketball court, pollinator garden, trails, and associated
facilities at the town Fairgrounds Property (a copy of the draft plan is attached to this Warrant) and to pursue
wetland and habitat impact mitigation on that and other town properties?

2




Sefect Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 13: Shall the Select Board of the Town be authorized to enter into one or more agreements providing for {(a)
capital improvements to the Fairgrounds property and other town propertties (b} borrowing on behalf of the Town, a
sum not to exceed $500,000 on such terms as it determines are necessary and proper pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A.
§5772 and other applicable Maine law, including the interest rate and the principal payment dates, for the purpose of
appropriating funds to pay all or a portion of the costs of capital improvements to the Fairgrounds other town
properties?

Select Board recommends: Budget Commitiee reconmends.

MUNICIPAL TREASURER’S FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1. Town Indebtedness

A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $1,274,697.16
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $5,000,00 0.00
C. Bonds to be issued if Article 13 is approved: $500,000.00

Total: $6,774,697.16

Costs- Warrant Article {3 Fairgrounds Improvements
At an estimated interest rate of two and one-half percent (2.5%) for a term of fifteen (20) years, the
estimated cost of this bond issue will be:

A. Total Bond Principal: $500,000.00
B. Total Estimated Interest: $138,428.28
C. Total Estimated Debt Service: $638,428.28

2. Validity- The validity of the bonds and of the voters’ ratification of the bonds may not be affected by any
errors in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from
the estimate, the ratification by the electors is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is
not affected by reason of the variance.

3. Debt Limit— In accordance with 30-A M.R.5.A. §5701 & §5702, a municipality may not borrow funds if
the borrowing would cause the municipality to exceed its debt limit.

A. 2022 State Valuation: $325,050,000.00
B. Limit Factor: X 7.5%
C. Debt Limit: $24,378,750.00

Prepared by: Eric W, Dyer, Treasurer

Article t4: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $164,575 for the Protection Department budget category
for the following budget lines with the any unexpended balances to carry forward from Fire Department Operations
and Tower Sites into capital reserve account?

Fire Department Operating $ 77,025
Ambulance Service $ 42,000
Tower Sites $ 4,550
Dispalching $ 40,000
Emergency Operations $ 1,000
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee reconmends:

Article 15: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $19,500 for the Cemetery Materials & Services budget
category, with any unexpended balances to carry forward?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 16: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $494,650 for the Roads & Drainage budget category for
the following budget lines with any unexpended balance to be carried forward for the Summer Roads budget?

Summer Road Maintenance $ 124,000
Winter Road Maintenance $ 370,650
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 17: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $6,031,685 for the Capital Improvements budget category
for the following budget lines with all accounts to be carried forward?

3 _




Technology Equipment $ 9.000
Broadband $5,000,000
Fire Dept. $ 10,0600
Gile Hall $ 20,000
Parks & Recreation $ 500,600
Library Building $ 15,000
Open Space § 50,000
Cemetery $ 10,000
Roads $ 350,000
Equipment $ 15,000
Equipment Leases 6,177
Transfer Station $ 46,508
Select Board recommends: Budget Commiitee recommends:

Article 18: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $342,575 for the Solid Waste budget category with all
accounts to be carried forward?

Select Board recommends: Budget Commitiee recommends:

Article 19: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $50,613 for the Regional Assessments budget category for
the following budget lines which the town is legally bound to pay?

Cobbossee Watershed $ 25613
First Park $ 25,000
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 20: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $319,743 for the Kennebec County Tax budget category
which the town is legally bound to pay?

Select Board recommends. Budget Commitiee recommends:

Article 21: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $236,946 for the Debt Service budget category for the
following budget lines which the town are legally bound to pay?

2016 Fire Truck Bond $ 53,324
2018 Maranacook Lake Dam Bond $ 18,857
2020 Municipal Building Bond % 45978
2021 Municipal Building and Paving ¥ 30,530
2023 Municipal Bonds % 88,257
Select Board recommends. Budget Committee recommends:

Article 22: Shall the Town vote to appropriate $10,000 for Local Tax Relief budget category, with any
unexpended balances to be carried forward?

Select Board recommends: Budget Commiitee recommends:

Article 23: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $£,000 for the Kennebee
Behavioral Health?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recomniends.

Article 24; Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $1,513 for the Central Maine
Agency on Aging/Cohen Center/Senior Spectrum?

Select Board recommends: Budget Commitice recommends:

Article 25: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $1,250 for the Family Violence
Agency?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

4




Article 26: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $2,362 for the Courtesy Boat
Inspection Program, with $1,575 for the Maranacook Lake Association and $787 for the Torsey Pond
Association?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recontmends:

Article 27: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $910 for the Sexual Assault
Agency?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 28: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $2,500 for the 30 Mile River
Association?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 29: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the requested amount of $5,000 for continued restoration of
the Readfield Union Meeting House?

Select Board recommends: Budget Comniittee recommends:

Article 30: Shall the Town vote to appropriate $1,748 paid to the Town by the State (based on snowmobile
registrations) for the Readfield Blizzard Busters Snowmobile Club to be used for trail creation and maintenance?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 31; Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $64,000 for the Unclassified budget category for the
following budget lines with Readfield Enterprise Fund and Revaluation unexpended balance to carry forward?

Readfield Enterprise Fund $10,000
Real Estate Property Revaluation $ 4,000
Overdraft $ 5,000
Abatements $20,000
Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 32: Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $5,000 for the General Assistance budget category?
Select Board recommends. Budget Committee recommends.

Article 33: Shall the Town vote to authorize Expenditure of Revenues from Federal, State, and private grant
sources for those purposes for which the grant is intended?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 34: Shall the Town vote to accept the following Estimated Revenues to reduce the 2022 Tax Commitment?

State Revenue Sharing £ 300,000
Interest on Property Taxes $ 25,000
Interest on Investments 5 6,000
Veterans Exemption b 2,500
Homestead Exempt. Reimbursement $ 192,088
Tree Growth Reimbursement $ 10,000
BETE Reimbursement $ 6,502
Boat Excise Taxes $ 3,500
Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes $ 650,000
Agent Fees $ 14,000
Public Notice Fees b 500
Business License Fees b 50
Certified Copy Fees $ 1,500
QOther [ncome $ 5,000

3 _




Heating 3 2,500
Plumbing Fees 5 5,000
Land Use Permit Fees b 6,000
Interiocal CEQ/LPI $ 38,800
Dog License Fees 5 2,000
Rabies Clinic $ 500
Age Friendly $ 2,000
Library Revenue § 3.475
Cable Television Fees $ 30,000
Beach Income $ 1,500
Recreation Income $ 11,800
Protection $ 3,200
Local Roads $ 36,000
Bond Proceeds $ 5,364,230
Grants $ 135770
Transfer Station Capital $ 15109
Transfer Station £ 228,389
First Park $ 25000
Snowmobile (State reimb.) $ 1,748
Enterprise Fund $ 3,000
General Assistance (State reimb.) b 2.500

Total $7,140 ,161

Select Board recommends. Budget Committee recommends:

Article 35: Shall the Town vote to appropriate the following Designated Funds to reduce the 2022 Tax
Commitment?

Conservation $ 5450
Local Tax Relief $ 10,000
Readfield Enterprise Fund $ 7,000
Roads Operating $ 50,000
Roads Capital $150,000
Transfer Station Capital $ 19,803
Trust Funds Cemetery Perpetual Care $ 6,000

Total $248,253

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 36: Shall the Town vote to authorize the Select Board to expend up to $25,000 from the Unassigned Fund
Balance (General Fund), in the aggregate for one or more purposes as necessary to meet contingencies that may
occur during the ensuing fiscal year?

Select Board recommends: Budget Commiitee recommends:

Article 37: Shall the Town vote to appropriate $275,000 from the Unassigned Fund Balance to reduce the total
tax commitment?

Select Board recommends: Budget Committee recommends:

Article 38: Shall an ordinance entitled 2022 Amendments to the Town of Readfield Land Use Ordinance, be
enacted? (A copy of said Ordinance is attached to this Warrant.)

Article 39: Shall an ordinance entitled 2022 Amendments to the Town of Readfield Board of Appeals Ordinance,
be enacted? (A copy of said Ordinance is attached to this Warrant.)

Article 40: Should the Town continue to use the Secret Ballot process for the 2022 Annual Town Meeting?




Voted & Approved on , 2022 by:

Dennis Price, Chair

Kathryn Mills Woodsum, Vice Chair

Carol Doorenbos

Ralph Eno

Sean Keegan
A true copy of the warrant,

Attest:

Kristin Parks, Town Clerk
Town of Readfield




OTHER BUSINESS




TOWN OF READFIELD

8 OLD KENTS HILL RD. * READFIELD, MAINE 04355
TEL. (207) 685-4939 » FAX (207) 685-3420

Office of Registrar
Certificate of Appointment

(Municipal Officers are required to appoint a registrar by January 1% of each odd numbered year)

To: Kristin Parks

Pursuant to 21-A M.R.S.A. ss101.2 I, the undersigned Board of Selectmen of the municipality of Readfield, do
hereby appoint you as Registrar.

Your term of office is to expire on January 01, 2023.

Given under our hands on this / , 2022,
Carol Doorenbos Ralph Eno Dennis Price
Sean Keegan Kathryn Mills Woodsum

Oath of Office
Municipality of Readfield, Maine

2022

I, Kristin Parks, do swear, that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and of this State, so long as
I shall continue a citizen thereof. {Constitution of Maine, Art. IX, Sec.1.)

I, Kristin Parks, do swear, that I will faithfully discharge, to the best of my abilities, the duties incumbent on
me as Registrar of Readfield according to the Constitution and the law of the State.

Kristin Parks

State of Maine
County of Kennebec, ss 2022

Personally appeared before me the above-named Kristin Parks, who has been duly appointed as the Readfield
Registrar in said municipality and took the oath necessary to qualify for office and perform the duties thercof.

Before me,

, Deputy Clerk




FYl




KENNEBEC COUNTY BUDGET COMMITTEE
DISTRICT TWO CAUCUS

PUBLIC NOTICE - PLEASE POST

Attention: Municipal Officials:

The City of Gardiner has offered to host the District Two caucus for the
FY2023 Kennebec County Budget Committee member selection process.

Farmingdale, Favette, Gardiner, Hallowell, Litchfield, Monmouth, Mount Vernon, Pittston,
Randolph, Readfield, Vienna, Wayne, West Gardiner, Winthrop.

March 22" @ 5:00 p.m.
Gardiner City Office

Each year a caucus is held to fill vacancies on the Kennebec County Budget Committee to participate in the
annual budget process. The caucus will select an elected or appointed municipal official to serve a three-year
term on the county budget committee. The committee members are not limited by term limits and many
serve multiple terms. One seat is currently open for a municipal official the start of the FY23 budget.

https.://legislature. maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title 30-Asec86 2. html

[f you have any questions please call:
Scott Ferguson
Kennebec County Administrator
207.530.7369



Spirit of America Awards

Spinit gf Amenica Tripute

E.: 2022

TR
“\aum |
S The Spirit of America Foundation Tribute is
presented in the name of Maine Municipalities to local individuals,

organizations and projects for outstanding community service.

The Town will be accepting one page nominations through
Friday, May 20, 2022.

Nominations will be submitted to the Select Board and recipients will
be recognized later in the summer.

Please send nominations to clerk@readfieldmaine.org; by mail to
Readfield Town Office, 8 Old Kents Hill Road, Readfield, ME 04355 or
drop off at the Town Office.




